AGENDA
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
REGULAR MEETING
February 2, 2015
442 N. Cedar Lake Road
7:00 P.M.
CALL TO ORDER
1. ROLL CALL
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
3.1  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 19, 2015
3.2 Adopt a Resolution Relating to the Review of Closed Session Minutes
4. NOTES/COMMENDATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENT
4.1 Public Comment
5. CONSENT AGENDA
5.1  Approve Accounts Payable in the Amount of $646,102.17

5.2 Approve Payroll for the Period Ending January 25, 2015 in the Amount of
$126,491.47

5.3  Accept the Fiscal Year End April 30, 2014 Audit Report and Management Letter
as Presented

5.4  Approve the 2015 Special Events Meeting Dates
6. CLERK’S OFFICE
6.1  Holiday House Decorating Contest Winner
7. ADMINISTRATOR
7.1  Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Round Lake Village Code, 2006, as Amended,
by Rescinding a Local Amendment to the Building Code Related to Automatic
Sprinkler Systems in Village Buildings
8. FINANCE

9. POLICE
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10. PUBLIC WORKS

10.1 Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Repairs to Vactor Truck in the Amount not to
Exceed $2,910.10 by Standard Equipment Company

10.2  Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Repairs to the Prairie Walk Lift Station Pump in the
Amount not to Exceed $2,220.35 by Xylem Water Solutions, USA, Inc.

11. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
12. BUILDING AND ZONING
12.1  Adopt a Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow for the Sale of
Alcoholic Beverages to EMMA’s Deli, for the Property Located at 171 Belvidere
Road
12.2  Adopt an Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow for the Sale of
Alcoholic Beverages to Banquet Route 60, Inc. for the Property Located at 1797,
1805 and 1809 S. Cedar Lake Road
13. SPECIAL EVENTS
14. MAYOR’S COMMENTS

14.1  Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Liquor License Chapter of the Round Lake
Village Code (Number of Licenses)

14.2  Mayor’s Comment
14.3  Trustee’s Comments
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION
16. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS

17. ADJOURN



MINUTES
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
REGULAR MEETING
January 19, 2015
442 N. Cedar Lake Road
7:00 P.M.

il

CALL TO ORDER
THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE WAS CALLED
TO ORDER BY DAN MACGILLIS, VILLAGE PRESIDENT AT 7.01 P.M.

1.

ROLL CALL
Present: Trustees Frye, Kraly, Newby, Triphahn, Wicinski
Absent: Trustee Simoncelli

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.1  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 5, 2015
Motion by Trustee Newby, Seconded by Trustee Triphahn, to approve the Minutes

of the Regular Meeting of January 5, 2015. Upon a unanimous voice vote, the
Mayor declared the motion carried

NOTES/COMMENDATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENT

4.1 Public Comment
NONE

CONSENT AGENDA
Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Wicinski, to do an Omnibus approval on
item 5.1& 5.2.

Upon the call of the roll, the following voted:

Ayes: Trustees Frye, Kraly, Newby, Triphahn, Wicinski
Nays: None

Abstain; None

Absent: Trustee Simoncelli

Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried.

5.1 Approve Accounts Pavable in the Amount of $872.581.54

Approved — Omnibus Vote

5.2  Approve Payroll for the Period Ending January 11, 2015 in the Amount of
$171.987.45

Approved — Omnibus Vote

6. CLERK’S OFFICE
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6.1

6.2

6.3

15 Year Employee Recognition — Peggy Gustafson
Clerk Blauvelt recognized Peggy Gustafson on her 15 year anniversary with the
Village of Round Lake, presenting her with a certificate from the Village

Round Lake Area Chamber’s Annual Mayoral Luncheon — Friday. January 30,

2015 from 11:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m.

Round I.ake Area Chamber’s Installation Celebration — Friday. February 6, 2015 at
6:00 p.m.

Clerk Blauvelt also mentioned a Chamber Mixer taking place at the Round Lake
Area Public Library on Thursday January 22" between 4:00PM ~ 7:00PM as well
as a letter of thanks we received from the Shop with a Cop program that we had
donated to as well as our officers participated in

7. ADMINISTRATOR

7.1

7.2

Adopt a Resolution Approving a District Office Lease with Congressman Robert

Dold

Motion by Trustee Newby, Seconded by Trustee Frye to Adopt a Resolution
Approving a District Office Lease with Congressman Robert Dold. Under
discussion Village Administrator Shields stated he is still looking into a Fair
Market Value and is researching both Residential and Commercial properties
values. He also stated that the Resolution will allow staff to negotiate and complete
the lease agreement with Congressman Dold. In addition, any other issues will also
be discussed.

Upon the call of the roll, the following voted:

Ayes: Trustees Frye, Kraly, Newby, Triphahn, Wicinski
Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Trustee Simoncelli

Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried.

Homeowner’s Association Finance Seminar Follow-up
Village Administrator Shields stated that 14 people attended the event including

Assistant VA Shane Johnson, Trustee Triphahn, 3 Banking individuals with the
remaining being HOA members. VA Shields felt as though the seminar had been
successful and that the members that attended are the most dedicated and involved
within their own HOA’s

8. FINANCE

9. POLICE

10. PUBLIC WORKS
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11. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

12. BUILDING AND ZONING

13. SPECIAL EVENTS

14. MAYOR’S COMMENTS

14.1 Mayor’s Comment

14.1.1

14.1.2

2"! Annual Lake County Leaders Summit Summary
Mayor MacGillis discussed the Summit that had been attended by him and

Assistant Village Administrator Shane Johnson. The event had been
sponsored by Lake County and was well attended. The Mayor went on to
say that the room had been broken up into different tables, each discussing
different topics regarding the County as a whole. The Mayor mentioned
that the Eastern and Western parts of the County seemed segregated and
seems to be a common occurrence within the County

Approval of Lenny Gahgan as Primary Representative to the Central Lake

County Joint Action Water Agency Executive Board
Motion by Trustee Triphahn, Seconded by Trustee Kraly to approve Lenny

Gahgan as Primary Representative to the Central Lake County Joint Action
Water Agency Executive Board. After a unanimous voice vote, the Mayor
declared the motion carried

The Mayor also reminded everyone that the APWA meeting is tomorrow at
noon in Libertyville for the Hart Road/Sunset Project Award

142  Trustee’s Comments
Trustee Wicinski reminded everyone that the first Special Events meeting is set for
Monday February 2™ at 6pm. It was mentioned that there are Calcutta tickets
available for the Chambers Installation Dinner. Congratulations went to
Commander Akey on his graduation as well thank you to Public Works on making
sure the roads were save during the recent inclement weather. SWALCO updates
should be coming by next meeting.

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION

16. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS

17. ADJOURN

Trustee Newby moved, seconded by Trustee Kraly, to adjourn. Upon a unanimous voice
vote, the Mayor declared the motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 7:19 P.M.

APPROVED:

Patricia C. Blauvelt Daniel MacGillis

Village Clerk

Village President



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: CLOSED SESSION MINUTES Agenda Item No. 3.2

Executive Summary

As recommended by the Village Attorney, after reviewing the minutes for the Village’s Executive
Sessions, the Village Board should adopt a resolution relating to the review of closed session
minutes pursuant to section 2.06 of the Open Meeting Act, 5 ILCS 120, et seq., stating
confidentiality still exists as to all closed session minutes not previously release and the same
shall not be released for public inspection.

Recommended Action

Adopt a Resolution relating to the review of Closed Session Minutes

Committee: - Meeting Date(s): 2/2/15
Lead Department: - Presenter: Patty Blauvelt, Village Clerk
Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Item Budgeted: [ |Yes | [No @NIA XX-XX-XX-XXXXX $0.00
Item Requested $0.00
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed YTD Actuyal $0.00
explanation of what account(s) the overage will
be charged to will be provided in the Executive SouEncunibered $0.00
Summary or attached detail.
Total: $0.00 $0.00
Request is over/under budget:
Under]-
Over|-

UHR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\02.02.15 Closed Session Minutes.doc



RESOLUTION 2015-R-__

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE REVIEW
OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

WHEREAS, in accord with the Open Meetings Act, the Village of Round Lake (“the
Village™), has reviewed the existing minutes of its closed session meetings and has approved
same;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Village’s review of closed session meeting minutes, the
Village has made certain findings and determinations about whether to release certain minutes as
set forth below;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of
Trustees of the Village of Round Lake, and pursuant to Section 2.06 of the Open Meetings
Act, 5 ILCS 120, et seq., as follows:

SECTION ONE: The Village determines that the need for confidentiality still exists as
to all closed session minutes not previously released and the same shall not be released for public
inspection.

SECTION TWO: The Village finds that the minutes for the following closed session
meetings are approved and that the verbatim record of said meetings shall be destroyed by the

Village Clerk as soon as practicable:

Closed Session Date

November 19, 2012

April 1, 2013

June 3, 2013

July 1, 2013




Closed Session Date

July 15, 2013

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its

passage.
PASSED THIS day of , 2015,
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
APPROVED THIS day of , 2015.
APPROVED:
Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President
ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
APPROVES THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

IN THE AMOUNT OF $646,102.17

Daniel A, MacGillis, Village President
ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

Date: February 2, 2015

5.1



DATE:
TIME:
ID:

01/29/15
11:06:57
AP4ADD00, WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-05-66-56601

01-20-71-67120

01-20-72-67204

01-20-72-67208

01-20-73-77301

01-20-73-77307

01-20-73-77309

01-20-73-77313

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

MISCELLANEQUS RECEIPTS
NINA LARSCN

HEALTH INSURANCE
UMB

BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF IL

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS
LAKE COUNTY MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

MEETINGS, TRAVEL,
PATRICIA BLAUVELT
RUSSELL KRALY
RUSSELL KRALY
RUSSELL KRALY
RUSSELL KRALY
CHARTER ONE

& TRAINING

AUDITING EXPENSE
SIKICH LLP

ENGINEERING EXPENSES

BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.

VILLAGE PLANNER

TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC,

LEGAL SERVICES

VILLAGE OF

ROUND LAKE

PAID INVQICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

01/15/2015 To 01/29/2015

VENDOR # TRANSACTICN DESCRIPTION CHECK #

L134 UNION DUES REFUND 180058
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

U2z HSA CONTRIBUTIONS FEB 180090

B1i9 HEALTH INSURANCE FEBRUARY 179941
ACCOUNT TCTAL:

L8 2015-2016 ANNUAL DUES 180061
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

Bo6 RL CHAMBER INSTALLATION DINNER 180031

K13 DEC.BOCA MTG MILEAGE 180057

K73 DEC.BOCA MTG LUNCEH 180057

K73 JAN.BOCA MTG LUNCH 180057

K73 JAN.BCCA MTG MILEAGE 180057

cz82 NEW PW DIRECTOR BREAKFAST 178942
ACCOUNT TOQTAL:

5113 2014 AUDIT FINAL BILLING 180080
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

B2 REQUEST FOR SERVICE ADMIN 2014 180029

B2 CAPITAL PROJECT PLANNING 180025

BZ 2014 MFT COMPLIANCE RVW 180029
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

T49 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 180088

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHECK DATE

PAGE: 1

ITEM AMOUNT

01/2%/15 16.50
16.50

01/25/15 437.49
01/26/15 2,807.77
3,245.2¢8

01/29/15 1,353.17
1,353,17

01/29/15 50.00
01/29/15 30.24
01/29/15 20.00
01/29/15 15.00
01/29/15 30.24
01/26/15 30.10
175.58

01/29/15 278.50
278.50

01/29/1% 2,321.49
01/29/15 1,074.75
01/29/15 1,134.23
4,530.47

01/29/15 5,550.00
5,550.00



DATE: Ul/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4AQ000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-20-73-77313

01-20-74-77430

01-20-75-77511

01-20-75-77515

01-20-77-77704

01-20-77-77706

01-20-79-77903

01-20-82-88202

01-20-82-88204¢

ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/20i5 TO

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

LEGAL SERVICES

TRESSLER LLP

TRESSLER LLP

TRESSLER LLP

TRESSLER LLP

OFFICE SUPPLIES
CLASSIC PRINTERY
ICE MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
PADDOCK PUBLICATICNS, INC.

GARBAGE COLLECTION
WASTE MANAGEMENT

SPECIAL EVENTS
ACE HARDWARE

MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE
PATRICIA BLAUVELT
CHARTER ONE

B&G CONTRACTS
CRYSTAL MANAGEMENT &

TELEPHONE SERVICE
CALL ONE
COMCAST CABLE

CELLULAR SERVICE

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

VENDOR #

T11Q
T110
T110
T110

C13
149

p22

wWa3

A4

B56
cz282

c128

Cl39
C1l56

01/28/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIFTION

DECEMBER LEGAL 180086
DECEMBER LIQUCR 180086
DECEMBER LITIGATION 180086
DECEMBER EMPLOYMENT 180086

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

B CARDS & NAMEPLATE-SHANE
BOTTLED WATER

180033
180050

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

DATLY HERALD 2/2-8/2/15 180075

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

DECEMBER 2014 SERVICE 179247

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

XMAS LIGHT,TREE SKIRT, TINSEL 180024

ACCCUNT TOTAL:

GUSTAFSON 15YR RECOGNITION
CREDIT CARD MACHINE TESTING

180031
179942

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

FEBRAURY CUSTODIAL 180032

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

1/15-2/14/15 PHONE
01/21-02/20/15 INTERNET

180034
180035

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHECK # CHECK DATE

01/29/15
01/29/15
01/29/15%
01/29/15

01/2%/15
01/29/15

01/29/15

01/26/15

01/29/15

01/29/15
01/26/15

01/29/15

01/28/15
01/28/15

PAGE: 2

ITEM AMOUNT

3,937.50
2,535.00
1,735.50

663.00

8,871.00

79,980.53

7%,980.53

478B.26

478.26

75.00
1.65

76.65



DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4A0000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-20-82-88204

01-20-91-95107

01-40-71-87107

01-40-71-67108

01~-40-71-67109

01-40-71-67110

01-40-72-67204

01-40-72-67208

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTICN
VENDOR NAME

CELLULAR SERVICE
VERTZON WIRELESS
VERTZON WIRELESS

IT MAINTENANCE SERVICES
MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION

DENTAL INSURANCE
BRANDCON GULLIFOR
NINA LARSON

VISION INSURANCE
BRANDON GULLIFOR
NINA LARSCN

LIFE INSURANCE
NINA LARSON

HEALTH INSURANCE

BRANDON GULLIFOR

UMB

BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF IL

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS
LAKE COUNTY

MEETINGS, TRAVEL, & TRAINING
TROY AKEY
COLLEGE OF DUPAGE

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAID INVQICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

VENDOR #

V10
V1o

M119

G78
L134

G78
L134

L134

G78
U222
B19

L3

A&7
C35

01/15/2015 TO

01/29/2015

TRANSACTTION DESCRIFTION

TABLET SERVICE STAFF
TABLET SERVICE VB

ACCOUNT

COPIES OF SUPPLEMENT CODE ORD

ACCOUNT
DENTAL REFUND
DENTAL REFUND

ACCOUNT
VISION REFUND
VISION REFUND

ACCOUNT
EEALTH REFUND

ACCOUNT

HEALTH REFUND
HSA CONTRIBUTIONS - FEB
HEALTH INSURANCE FEBRUARY

ACCOUNT

MEMBERSHIP APPLICA & RENEWAL

ACCOUNT

TRAVEL, STAFF & COMMAND TRNING

MANAGING TRAINING

CHECK # CHEECK DATE

180091
179946

TOTAL:

180063

TOTAL:

18C¢094

180058

TOTAL:

180094

180058

TOTAL:

180058
TOTAL:
180094
180090
172941

TOTAL:

180059

TOTAL:

180026
180040

01/29/15
01/26/15

01/29/15

01/29/15
01/29/15

01/29/15
01/29/15

01/2%/15

01/29/15
01/29/15
01/26/15

01/29/15

01/29/15
01/29/15

PAGE: 3

ITEM AMOUNT

B3.50
308.72

3%2.22

1,839.13

1.44
1.44

2.88

30.89
30.89
30.89
2,041.62
21,293.35

23,365.86

50.00

50.00

66.85
95.00



DATE: U1l/729/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4AQ00C.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-40-72-67208

01-40-74-77430

01-40-74-77432

01-40-74-77434

01-40-75-77501

01-40-75-77505%

01-40-75-77511

01-40-77-77712

01-40-77-77715

01-40-77-77720

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

MEETINGS, TRAVEL, & TRAINING
LAKE COUNTY

OFFICE SUPPLIES
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION

POSTAGE
PURCHASE POWER

CPERATING SUPPLIES
INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM

ALERTS / MDT LINES
VERIZCN WIRELESS

CENCOM
CENCOM E 9-1-1

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
POWER DMS, INC.

SENATE 740 EXPENSES
ILL. LIQUCR CONTRCL COMMISSION

COMPUTER CRIME EXPENSES
CHARTER ONE

COMMUNITY EDUCATION

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAID INVCICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

VENDOR #

L3

Q2
o2

B30

I101

V10

C3

Pl32

I61A

C282

01/15/2015 TO

01/29/2015%

TRANSACTION DESCRIFTION

CHECK # CHECK DATE

MEMBERSHIP APPLICA & RENEWAL 180059
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
ENVELCPES 180078
3-16GB USB MEMORY CARD 180078
ACCCQUNT TOTAL:
12/10 METER REFILL & TRANS FEE 180076
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
FLASHLIGET BATTERIES 180048
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
11/16-12/25/14 BROAD 179946
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
02-15 OPERATION/BILLING 180039
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
sUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL FEE 180073
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
BASSET LICENSE RENEWAL 180051
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
SNAG IT-COMPUTER PROG. UPDATE 180038
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

01/29/15

01/29/15
01/29/15

01/29/15

01/29/15

01/26/15

01/29/15

a1/29/15

01/29/15

01/29/15

PAGE: 4

ITEM AMOUNT

180.00

341.85

£1.53
56,97

1,219.42

1,219.42

21,112.46

21,112.46

341.31

341.31

250.00

250.00



DATE:
TIME:

01/29/15
11:06:57

ID: AP4AQ000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-40-77-77720

01-40-79-77903

01-40-8G-88018

01-40-80-88024

01-40-82-88202

01-40-82-88204

01-60-71-67110

01-60-72-67234

G1-60-73-77307

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

COMMUNITY EDUCATION
P.F. PETTIBONE & CO.

B&G CONTRACTS
CRYSTAL MANAGEMENT &

OFFICE EQUIPMENT
KONICA MINOLTA
KONICA MINOLTA
KONICA MINOLTA

VEHICLE EQUIPMENT
STRCBES N' MCRE

TELEPHONE SERVICE
CALL ONE

CELLULAR SERVICE
VERIZON WIRELESS
VERIZON WIRELESS

HEALTH INSURANCE
UMB

BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF IL

HIRING PRCCESS
CHARTER ONE

ENGINEERING EXPENSES

VENDOR #

VILLAGE OF

ROUND LAKE

PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

Pi

clz28

K33
K33
K33

545

ci39

V1o
V1o

g22
B19

czg2

01/15/2015 ToO

01/29/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

NAMEPLATE WITH ENGRAVING

ACCOUNT

FEBRAURY CUSTODIAL

ACCOUNT

12/06/14-01/05/15 COPIES
12/01-12/31/14 CCPIES
12/01-12/31/14 CCPIE4S

ACCOUNT

PORTABLE ROOF LIGHT BAR

ACCOUNT

1/15-2/14/15 PHONE

ACCOUNT

TABLET SERVICE STAFF
CELL SERVICE STAFF

ACCOUNT

HSA CONTRIBUTIONS FEB
HEALTH INSURANCE FEBRUARY

ACCOUNT

APWA PW DIRECTOR AD

ACCOUNT

CHECK #

180072

TOTAL:

180032
TOTAL:
180055
180055
180055

TOTAL:

180084

TOTAL:

180034
TOTAL:
1800921
179946
TCTAL:
180090
179941

TOTAL:

179942

TOTAL:

PAGE: 5

CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
01/2%/15 12.00
12.00

01/29/15 490,00
490.00

01/29/15 135.00
01/29/15 158.34
01/29/15 128.59
421.83

01/29/15 247.12
247.12

01/29/15 155.72
158,72

01/29/15 54.39
01/26/15 420.36
474.75

01/29/15 364,58
t1/26/15 4,313.61
4,678.19

01/26/15 147,50
147.50



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVOQICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND

DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4AQ000.WOW
ACTIVITY FROM
ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT DESCRIFPTION
VENDOR NAME VENDOR #
01-60-73-773¢C7 ENGINEERING EXPENSES
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. B2
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. B2
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. B2
01-60-74-77418 ICE CONTRQCL
COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA C1l86
CCMPASS MINERALS AMERICA C1l86

01-60-74-77430 OFFICE SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION Q2

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5165

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5165

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5165
01-60-75-77543 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT. CONTRACT

STATE TREASURER Slé
01-60-79-77903 B&G CONTRACTS

CRYSTAL MANAGEMENT & clzas
01-60-79-77905 B&G REPAIRS

ACE HARDWARE Ad
01-60-79-77907 B & G BUILDING SUPPLIES

ACE HARDWARE Ad

LAWSON PROCDUCTS, INC. L72

SAFETY-KLEEN CORP. 52

01-60-80-88002 SAFETY EQUIPMENT

01/15/2015 TO

01/29/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

NBIS PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 180029
SMC REGULATION ASSISTANCE 2014 180029
CAPITAL PROJECT PLANNING 180029

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

WINTER SALT
WINTER SALT

180036
180036

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

4-USB MEMORY CARD 180078
3 CAMERA CASES 180082
BROTHER PT203C¢ LABELER 180082
PINK PAPER RIM & SUGAR 180082

ACCOUNT TQTAL:

MAINT QRTLY TRAFFIC SIGNAL 180081

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

FEBRAURY CUSTODIAL 1890032
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
CONNECTORS 180024
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
BAGS, BATTERIES, XMAS L.IGHTS 180024
PLOW BOLTS,NUTS & BOLTS FOR PW 180060
WASHER SOLVENT 180083
ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHECK # CHECK DATE

PAGE.:

01/29/15 332.
01/29/15 326
01/29/15 1,074.
1,732

01/29/15 14,790.
01/22/15 6,715.
21,506,

01/29/15 39
01/29/15 16.
01/29/15 24.
01/29/15 8.
a9

01/25/15 914
914

01/29/15 135
135

01/29/15 8.
8

01/29/15 302.
01/29/15 234.
01/29/15 152,
689.

6

ITEM AMQUNT

92
93

85

.98

19
25
83

.25



DATE: 01/29/15 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAGE: 7
TIME: 11:06:57 PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER
ID: AP4A0000.WOW
GENERAL FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015
ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDCR NAME VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK # CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
01-60-B0-88002 SAFETY FQUIPMENT
OLSEN SAFETY EQUIPMENT CORP. 015 12-PVC FOAM LINED GLOVES 180071 01/29/15 45,00
ACCQUNT TOTAL: 45,00
01-60-80-88018 OFFICE EQUIPMENT
KONICA MINCLTA K33 12/06/14-01/05/15 COPIES 180055 01/29/15 25,91
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 25.91
01-60-80-88024 VEEICLE EQUIPMENT
R.A. ADAMS ENTERPRISES INC. A6 AUGER FOR SALT SPREADER #49 180025 01/29%/15 855.00
HYDRAULIC SERVICES & REPAIRS H13 REBUILT RAMS FOR ALL S5YARDS 180046 01/29/15 457.02
JAY~R'S STEEL & WELDING, INC J20 4- WING BLADE CURB BAR ASSEMEL 180053 01/29/15 622.08
JAY-R'S STEEL & WELDING, INC J20 6-11' BLADE CURB BAR ASSEMBLY 180053 01/29/15 933.12
JAY-R'S STEEL & WELDING, INC J20 PLOW CUTTING EDGE & WING BLADE 180053 01/29/15 1,070.85
JAY-R'S STEEL & WELDING, INC J20 2-11' PLOW CUTTING EDGE 180053 01/29/15 686.26
JAY-R'S STEEL & WELDING, INC J20 9'WING BLADE,10'& 9'CURB BAR 180053 01/29/15 1,227.74
MIDWEST HOSE AND FITTINGS, INC M101 PLOW FITTINGS #49 180062 01/29/15 g.14
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. M61 SPARE PLOW PARTS 180066 01/29/15 78%.35
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. M61 SOCK FOR PLOW 180066 01/29/15 278.16
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. M61 SHOVEL HOLDER STAINLESS STEEL 180066 01/29/15 40,50
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 6,968.22
01-60-82-88202 TELEPHONE SERVICE
CALL ONE C139 1/15-2/14/15 PHONE 180034 01/29/15 182.31
ACCOQUNT TOTAL: 182.31
D1-60-82-88204 CELLULAR SERVICE
VERIZON WIRELESS V10 TABLET SERVICE STAFF 180091 01/29/15 41.75
VERIZON WIRELESS V10 CELL SERVICE STAFF 179946 01/26/15 102,22
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 143,97
01-60-82-88216 STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICAL
COMED c2027 STREET LIGHT 180037 01/29/15 7.89
COMED C6285 STREET LIGHT 180043 01/29/15 7.79
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 15.68

01-60-B4-88402 GAS & OTIL



DATE: 0l1/729/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4AQ000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-60-84-88404

01-60-84~-88405

01-60-84-88406

01-70-71-67110

01-70-73-77305

01-70-82-88202

ACTIVITY FRCM 01/15/2015 TO

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

GAS & CIL
PALATINE OIL CC., INC.
PALATINE OIL CO., INC.
PALATINE OIL CO., INC.

VEHICLE REPAIRS

A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE

A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE
BENNY'S SERVICE CENTER,
CARQUEST AUTO PARTS
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT,
RCOCK CHEVROLET GRAYSLAKE
ROCK CHEVROLET GRAYSLAKE
VICTOR FORD

INC.

INC.

EQUIPMENT REPATIRS

ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS
ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS
ANTIOCE AUTO PARTS
CARQUEST AUTO PARTS
WEST SIDE EXCHANGE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
BLUE TARP FINANCIAL, INC.

HEALTH INSURANCE
BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF IL

BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES
THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE

TELEPHONE SERVICE

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK #
P66 WINTERIZED DIESEL 180077
P66 WINTERIZED DIESEL 180077
P66 WINTERIZED DIESEL 180077
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
Al CHANGE MOTOR OIL #40 180021
Al RPLACE HYDRAULIC HOSE #53 180021
B4z DECEMBER SAFETY STICKERS 180030
C55 2-HALOGEN SEALED BEAM 180041
M61 PLASTIC SIDEBCARDS FOR #58 180066
R172 FLOOR MATS & MUD FLAPS #55 180079
R172 NEW MIRRORS FOR #54 180079
vz4 MUD FLAPS FOR #61 180092
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
Al07 OIL FILTER & FUEL FILTER 180022
Al07 WIPER BLADES 180022
A107 OIL FILTER 180022
Ch5 4-3012 BULBS,3 MINITURE LAMPS 180041
W50 BACKHOE BOLTS 180093
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
B160 GREASE GUN KIT 180027
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
B19 HEALTH INSURANCE FEBRUARY 179941
ACCOUNT TOTAL:
T3 409 NIPPERSINK ELEVATOR INSPEC 180087

GENERAL FUND
01/29/2015

ACCCUNT TOTAL:

CHECK DATE

PAGE: 8

ITEM AMOUNT

01/29/15 604.88
01/29/15 571.52
01/25/15 373.9%5
1,550.35

01/29/15 15.98
01/29/15 349.74
01/29/15 128.25
01/29/15 27.98
01/29/15 112.50
01/29/15 51.00
01/29/15 344.99
01/29/15 37.49
1,067.93

01/29/15 13.51
01/29/15 1.60
01/29/15 8.20
01/29/15 165.63
G1/28/15 14.82
203.76

01/29/15 140.44
140.44

01/26/15 2,948.82
2,948.82

01/29/15 100.¢0
100.00



DATE: 01/29/15%
TIME: 11:Q6:57
ID: AP4AD0Q0.WOW

ACCOUNT #

01-70-82~-88202

01-70-82-88204

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

VENDOR NAME

TELEPHONE SERVICE

CALL ONE

CELLULAR SERVICE
VERIZON WIRELESS

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE PAGE: 9
PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

GENERAL FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015

VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK # CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
C139 1/15-2/14/15 PHONFE 180034 01/29/15 26.54
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 26.54
V10 CELL SERVICE STAFF 179546 01/26/15 40.32
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 40.32

GENERAL FUND 200,844.29



DATE: 01/29/1%
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4AO0Q0D.WOW

ACCQUNT #

10-60-83-88301

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

BAXTER & WCODMAN, INC.
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVQICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015

VENDOR #

B2
B2

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK #

HEART RD. RECON CONST.SERVICES 180029
LAKEWOOD TERR. PH.III SERVICES 180029

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

CHECK DAT

01/29/15
01/29/15

E

PAGE: 10

LTEM AMOUNT

10,814.33
975.06



DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4A0000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

35-20-73-77307

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

ENGINERRING EXPENSES

BAXTER & WCODMAN, INC.

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE ' PAGE: 11
PAID INVQICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015

VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK 4 CHECK DAT ITEM AMOQUNT
B2 MACGILLIS BRIDGE PH.II DESIGN 180029 01/29/15 1,816.43
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 1,816.49

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,816.49



DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4A0000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

50-60-71-67110

50-60-72-67208

50-60-72-67234

50-60-73-77307

50-60-73-77313

50-60-74-77428

50-60-74-77430

50-60-74-77432

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

POSTAGE

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

WATER/SEWER FUND

ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO

VENDOR NAME VENDOR #
HEALTH INSURANCE

UMB uz2
BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF IL B15
MEETING, TRAVEL, & TRAINING

CROWN PLAZA Ce01
ILLINOIS SECTICN AWWA I2
HIRING PRCOCESS

CHARTER ONE C282
ENGINEERING EXPENSES

BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. B2
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. B2
LEGAL SERVICES

TRESSLER LLP T110
WATER METERS

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. H45
OFFICE SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION Q2
STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5165
STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5165
STAPLES ADVANTAGE S165

01/29/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

HSA CONTRIBUTIONS - FEB
HEALTH INSURANCE FEBRUARY

180090
179941

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

RILARSKI ISAWWA CONFERENCE
KILARSKI CONFERENCE

180042
180049

ACCQUNT TOTAL:

APWA PW DIRECTOR AD 179942

ACCCUNT TCTAL:

REQUEST FOR SERVICE PW W&S
CAPITAL PROJECT PLANNING

180029
180029

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

DECEMBER LEGAL 180086

ACCOUNT TQTAL:

METRES, GASKET & BOLTS, NO LEAD 180047

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

4-USB MEMORY CARD 180078
BROTHER PT2030 LABELER 180082
PINK PAPER RIM & SUGAR 180082
3 CAMERA CASES 180082

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHECK # CHECK DATE

PAGE:

01/29/15 510,
01/26/15 5,826,
6,336.

01/29/15 418,
01/29/15 250,
668.

01/26/15 147,
147

01/2%/15 420.
01/29/15 1,074.
1,495,

01/29%/15 1,312.
1,312,

01/29/15 1,355.
1,355.

01/29/15 35.
01/29/15 24,
01/29/15 8.
01/29/15 16,
89.

12

ITEM AMOUNT

40
05

4

&5
00

65

74
77

5

50

50

00

0

98
24
82
18

22



DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:57
ID: AP4A0000C.WOW

ACCOUNT #

50-60-75-77535

50-60-75-77547

50-60-79-77903

50-60-79-77905

50~60-79-77907

50-60-80-88002

50-60-80-88018

50-60-80-88024

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME

POSTAGE

POSTMASTER

OUTSOQOURCING WATER BILLS
THE DIRECT RESPONSE RESCURCE

WATER SAMPLES
MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER
MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER

B&G CONTRACTS
CRYSTAL MANAGEMENT &

B&G REPAIRS
NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY

B&G SUPPLIES
ACE HARDWARE

LAWSCN PRODUCTS, INC.

SAFETY EQUIPMENT
ULINE

OFFICE EQUIPMENT
KONICA MINQLTA

VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

WATER/SEWER FUND

VENDOR #

P18

b22

M27
MS7

cl128

N39

A4
L72

uis

K33

01/15/2015 TO

01/29/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

POSTAGE FOR PERMIT 53 180074

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

WATER BILLING POSTAGE 180044

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

WATER SAMPLES
ROUTINE WATER SAMPLE

180068
180068

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

FEBRAURY CUSTODIAL 180032

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

MATERIAL FOR GENERATOR REPAIRS 180069

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

PROPANE TANK, DEGREASER, PVC
PLOW BOLTS,NUTS & BOLTS FOR PW

180024
180060

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

NITRILE POWLDER FREE GLOVES 180089

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

12/06/14-01/05/15 COPIES 180055

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHECK # CHECK DATE

01/29/15

01/258/15

01/29/15
01/29/15

PAGE: 13

1

1

2

2

1

,000.00

,000.00

, 600,29

,600.29

262.50

625,00

01/29/15

01/29/15

01/29/15
61/29/15

01/29/15

01/29/15

1

,B87.50

135.00

135.00

16.89

16.89

172.22
234.83



DATE: U1/725/15
TIME: 11:06:58
ID: AP4A0000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

50-60-80-88024

50-60-81-88101

50-60-82-88202

50-60-82-88204

50-60-82-8820¢6

50-60-82-88208

50-60-82-88210

50-60~-82-88212

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTICN

LAKE COUNTY SEWER

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ACTIVITY FROM

VENDOR #

VENDOR NAME

VEHICLE EQUIFMENT

MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. M6 1
WATER/SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

BAXTER & WOODMAN, B2
BAXTER & WOODMAN, B2
TELEPHONE SERVICE

CALL ONE c13%
CELLULAR SERVICE

VERIZON WIRELESS V10
VERIZON WIRELESS V1o
ELECTRICAL SERVICE

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY M95
HEATING

NICOR GAS N7
NICOR GAS N7
NICOR GAS N7
NICOR GAS N7
NICOR GAS N7
NICOR GAS N7
JAWA EXPENSE

CENTRAL LAKE COUNTY Cc5

WATER/SEWER PFUND

PAGE: 14
01/15/2015 TO 01/29/201%

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK # CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
SHOVEL ROLDER STAINLESS STEEL 180066 01/29/15 40.50
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 40.50

LAKEWOOD TERR. PH.III SERVICES 180029 01/29/15 1,763.10
SANRY SWR REHAB CONTRCTION $SER 180029 01/2%/15 945.49
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 2,708.59

1/15-2/14/15 PHONE 180034 01/25/15 182.30
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 182,30

TABLET SERVICE STAFF 180091 01/29/15 41.75
CELL SERVICE STAFF 179946 01/26/15 102,22
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 143.97

11/19-12/22/14 ELECTRIC 180067 01/29/15 3,457.23
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 3,457.23

12/04/14-01/02/15 HEAT 180070 01/29/15 25.04
12/12/14-01/14/15 HEAT 180070 01/29/15 25.66
12/15/14-01/15/15 HEAT 180070 01/2%/15 78.15
12/12/14-01/14/15 HEAT 180070 01/29%/15 275.84
12/11/14-01/13/15 HEAT 180070 01/29/15 27.42
12/05/14-01/07/15 HEAT 180070 01/29/15 103.28
ACCOQUNT TOTAL: 535.39

DECEMBER WATER USAGE 179943 01/26/15 81,990.58
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 81,990.58



LATE:
TIME:
ID:

11:06:58

ACCOUNT #

50-60-82-88212

50-60-82-88214

50-60-84-88402

50-60-84-88404

50-60-B4-88405

50-60-84-88406

50-60-84-88412

01/29/15

AP4AQROOO.WOW

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

VENDOR NAME

LAKE COUNTY
LAKE COUNTY
LAKE COUNTY
LAKE COUNTY

PUBLIC WORKS
PUBLIC WORKS
PUBLIC WORKS

DEPT
DEPT
DEPT

EXCESS FACILITY CHARGES
LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

GAS & OIL

PALATINE OIL CO.,
PALATINE OIL CO0.,
PALATINE OIL co.,

INC.
INC.
INC.

VEEICLE REPAIRS

A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE
BENNY'S SERVICE CENTER,
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT,
RCCK CHEVROLET GRAYSLAKE
ROCK CHEVROLET GRAYSLAKE
VICTOR FORD

INC.
INC.

EQUIPMENT REPAIRS
ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS
ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS
ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS

VERICLE MAINTENANCE

BLUE TARP FINANCIAL, INC.

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

ACTIVITY FROM

VENDOR #

LS
Lo
L9

L9B
L9B
L9B

P66
P&6
P66

Al
B42
M61
R172
R172
V24

Al07
Al07
Al107

Ble0

PAID INVOICES BY ACCCUNT NUMBER

WATER/SEWER FUND
01/15/2015 TO

01/29/2015

TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

CHECK # CHECK DATE

11/1-11/36/14 SEWER FEES 179944
10/1-10/31/14 SEWER FEES 179944
12/1-12/31/14 SEWER FEES 179544

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

11/1-11/30/14 FACILITY FEES 179945
10/1-10/31/14 FACILITY FEES 179945
12/1-12/31/14 FACILITY FEES 179945

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

WINTERIZED DIESEL 1800717
WINTERIZED DIESEL 180077
WINTERIZED DIESEL 180077

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CHANGE MOTCR OIL #40 180021
DECEMBER SAFETY STICKERS 180030
PLASTIC SIDEBOARDS FOR #58 18C066
FLOOR MATS & MUD FLAPS #55 180079
NEW MIRRORS FOR #54 180079
MUD FLAPS FOR #61 1800982

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

0IL FILTER & FUEL FILTER 180022
WIPER BLADES 180022
OIL FILTER 180022

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

GREASE GUN KIT 180027

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

01/26/15
01/26/15
01/26/15

01/26/15
01/26/15
01/26/15

01/29%/15
01/2%/15
01/29/15

01/25/15
01/29/15
01/29/15
01/25/15
01/29/15
01/29/15

01/29/15
01/29/15
01/29/15

01/29/15

PAGE: 15

ITEM AMOUNT

92,069.16
85,490.37
96,517.8¢9

604,
571.
373.

1,550.

15.
.25
112,

51.
.98
37.

128

344

13.
.59

690.

.42

.50
.00
.50

88
51
95

34

97

50
090

49

20

51

8.21

1490.

140.

23,

44

44



DATE:
TIME:
ID:

01/29/15
11:06:58
AP4A0000.wWOW

ACCOQUNT #

50-60-90-99005

50-60-91-99107

50-60-92-99204

50-60-92-99208

ACTIVITY FROM

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME
EQUIPMENT RENTAL
ATLAS BOBCAT INC.

J.U.L.I.E,
JULIE, INC,

IT MAINTENANCE
SENSUS TECHNOLOGIES INC.

REPAIR TO WATER LINES

MID AMERICAN WATER OF WAUCCNDA
MARK MEADE EXCAVATORS, INC.
CHARTER ONE

REPAIRS TO LIFT STATIONS
ACE HARDWARE

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

WATER/SEWER FUND

VENDOR #

A31

J3

$6

M25
M28
c282

Al

01/15/2015

TGO 01/25/2015

TRANSACTICN DESCRIPTION

RAMMER HAMMER RENTAL 180023

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

ANNUAL PRINT,FAX TRANSMISSICNS 180054

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

ANNUAL RENEWAL-SYSTEM SUPPORT 180085

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

CLAMPS FOR MAIN BREAK REPAIR 180C64
515 CL ROAD MAIN BREAK REPAIR 180065
MATERIAL-515 CL RD. MAIN BREAK 170942

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

COUPLINGS, NIPPLES, KLIP IT 180024

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

WATER/SEWER FUND

CHECK # CHECK DATE

PAGE: 18

ITEM AMOUNT

01/29/15 190.00
120.00

01/29/15 2,637.74
2,637.74

01/29/15 45,74
45.74

01/29/15 722.85
01/25/15 8,762.50
01/26/15 1,272.03
10,757.38

01/29/15 20.03
20.03

424,227.63




DATE: 01/29/15 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE PAGE: 17
TIME: 11:06:58 PAID INVCICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER
ID: AP4A0000.WOW
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015

ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK # CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
51-60-79-77903 B&G CONTRACTS
KAPLAN PAVEMENT SERVICES K66 PARKING LOT SNOW PLOWING 180056 01/29/15 4,625.00
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 4,625.00
51-60-86-88601 LAND/LAND IMPROVEMENTS
BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC, B2 METRA LOT REHAB-PLAN RVW 180029 01/2%/15 616.32

ACCOUNT TOTAL: 616.32

COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND 5,241.32



DATE: 01/29/15
TIME: 11:06:58
ID: AP4A0000.WOW

ACCOUNT #

70-20-73-77301

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

POLICE PENSION FUND
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TO 01/29/2015

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDCR NAME VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK #

AUDITING EXPENSE
SIKICH LLP 5113 2014 AUDIT FINAL BILLING 180080

ACCOUNT TOTAL:

POLICE PENSION FUND

PAGE: 18

CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
01/29/15 351.50
351.50



DATE: 01/29/15 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE PAGE: 19
TIME: 11:06:58 PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER
ID: AP4R0000.WOW
BUILDERS ESCROW
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/201% TO 01/29/2015

ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
VENDOR NAME VENDOR # TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION CHECK # CHECK DATE ITEM AMOUNT
83-00-24-22455 PERMIT BONDS
JJL BODY SHOP J173 BOND REFUND 180052 01/29/15 250.00
ACCOUNT TOTAL: 250.00
83-00-24-22490 MONTESSORI SCHOOL
BAXTER & WCODMAN, INC. B2 ENGING RVW MONTESSORI SCHOOL 180029 01/29/15 1,581.55
ACCQUNT TOTAL: 1,581.55

BUILDERS ESCROW 1,831.55



DATE: 01/29/15 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE PAGE: 20
TIME: 11:06:58 PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER
ID: AP4A00CGO.WOW
FINAL TOTALS
ACTIVITY FROM 01/15/2015 TC 01/29/2015

GENERAL FUND 200,844.29
MOTCR FUEL TAX FUND 11,789.39
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,816.49
WATER/SEWER FUND 424,227.63
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND 5,241.32
POLICE PENSION FUND 351.50
BUILDERS ESCROW 1,831.55

GRAND TOTAL 646,102.17



ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

Dated: February 2, 2015

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
APPROVES THE PAYMENT OF PAYROLL
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 25, 2015

IN THE AMOUNT OF $126,491.47

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

5.2



DAIE: 01/2%/2015
TIME: 11:33:08

TD: PR460000 . WOW
EMPL. §# NAME

GRAND TOTALS:

CODE

MP
REG

PAY

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

GROSS

VILLAGE QF ROUND LAKE
PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

VILLAGE BOARD

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015
- DEDUCTIONS
EARNINGS -—--- e e TAXES ~———-mmm -—- VOLUNTARY ---
RATE HOURS TOTAL CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER CODE EMPLOYEE
12.9000 1,200.00 FED 95.00 DDl 3,225.08
2.000 2,500,00 FICA 229.40 229.40
MEDIC 53.65 53.65
STATE 96.87
FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 3,700.00 TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA: 229.40
MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 3,700.00 TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE: 53.65
FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES: 3,700.00
STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 3,700.00
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 8
PAY: £3,700.00 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS: 3,700.00 NET PAY: $0.00

EMPLOYEE

PAGE:

EMPLOYER



DATE: 01/298/2015 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

g PAGE:
n
TIME: 11:36:53 PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT 2 or1vN
ID:  PR460000.WOW
FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015
s - : DEDUCTIONS --- - e
EARNINGS weo————enn TAXES ————-- e —~-— VOLUNTARY ---  —eooo PENSTON/INSUR —-—-—~—-
EMPL. #  NAME CODF  PAY RATE HCURS TOTAL CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER CODE EMPLOYE CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLGYER
GRANC TOTALS: COM 4.000 169.00 FED DDl 107.82
FICA 9.92 9.92
MEDIC 2.32 2.32
STATE 3.00
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 160,00 TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA: 9.92
TOTEL, MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 160.00 TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE: z.32
TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES: 160.00
TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 160.00
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 4

GRO3S PAY: $160.00 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS: 123.06 NET PAY: $36.94



CATE: 01/29/2015
TIME: 11:29:16
ID: PR460000. WOW

GRAND TOTALS:

CODE
REG
CA
GWA
VAC
FLH
5IC
JD

EARNINGS ---—-

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015

------------ TAXES ——-mmo e

PAY RATE HOURS TOTAL COQDE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER CODR
407.000 13,153.11 FED 1,711.67 DD1
1.000 115.3% FICA 955.09 955.09 DDz
1.000 39.62 MEDIC 223 .38 223.38 GW
36.800 1,318.31 STATE 498.18 GWA
8.000 318.28 usa
21.4000 551.24 Icm
§.000 289.48 IMV
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 15,404.87 TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:
TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 15,404.87 TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:
TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES: 13,615.27 TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSICON:
TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 13,615.27
TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES: 15,785.43
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 3
GROSS PAY: $15, 785.43 TCTAL DEDUCTIONS: 14,336.32 NET PAY:

DEDUCTIONS

~-- VOLUNTARY -——

EMPLOYER
T,482.63
1,19%.72

250.00
39.62
75.00

789.63
95.49

955.09

223.38
1,556.44

$1,449.11

ADMIN1sTRATION

———————— PENSIQN/INSUR

CODE EMPLOYEE
IMR 710.35
DFA 18.50
HFA 172.56
VEFA 2.27
DSA 15.96
HZA 95.22
VSA 1.05

EMPLOYER

1,556.44



DATE; 01/29/2015 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE " PAGE: 1
TIME: 11:31:57 PAYRCLL REGISTER REPORT Bu; ( (n
ID: PR46000D.WOW %

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO D1/29/2015

- E==t= DEBUCTIONS RS - -
EARNINGS --~-= e TAXES -—-——-o—— e —-— VOLUNTARY --- = -~ PENSION/INSUR --—=--——-
EMPL. NAME CODE FAY RATE HOURS TOTAL CCDE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER CODE EMPLOYEE CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER
GRAND TOTALS: REG 203,000 5,399.62 FED 853.01 npl 4,402.00 IMR 297.71 652.31
SIC 4.000 113.30 FIca 390.15 390.15 AF1 28.25 DFB 18.50
VAC 25.000 663.71 MEDIC 91.25 91.25 PLI 36.86 PFB 273.93
Jb 8.000 226.59 STATE 221.72 VFB 2.27
oT 5.000 212.43
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 6,292.70 TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA: 390.158
TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 6,292,770 TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE: 21.25
TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES: 5,994.99 TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION: 852,31
TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 5,994.99
TOTAL PENSION EMFLOYEE WAGES: 6,615.65
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 3

GROSS PAY: $6,615.65 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS: 6,615.65 NET PAY: 50.00



DATE: 01/28/2015
TIME: 11:34:35
ID: PRAGO0O0 . WwoW

EMPL. ¥ NAME

GRAND TOTALS:

EARNINGS ~----
PAY RATE HOURS IOTAL
2,038,500 66,100.02
8.000 193,869
2.000 120.900
32.000 1,673.85
52.000 1,99%0.01
3.000 105,25
1.000 60.85
47,000 1,560.37
8.00¢0 161.52
12.000 420,99
4.000 140.33
80.000 2,806.58
1.800 75.00
1.000 60.00
1.000 285.10
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:
TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:
TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:
TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:

TOTAL

GROSS

PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:

FAY:

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015

———————————— TAXES --=— -
EMPLOYEE EMPLOYE
B,044.34
4,556.01 4,556.0
1,065.51 1,065.5
2,494 .66

73,484.03
73,484.03
65,686.61
65,686.61
69,870.82

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:

$75,753.58

29

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:

TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:

R CODE
AF2

1 DD1

1 DD2
MAP
AF1
GW
PLIT
HSA
ICM
CD3
C34

TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:

TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSIO

73,771.76

Nz

NET PAY:

--— VOLU

DEDUCTIONS
NTARY —--

EMPLOYEE

240.74
41,839.49
3,059.66
330.00
36.34
350.00
78.18
100.00
925.00
1,793.22
203,80

4,556.01
1,065.51
732.27

$1,981.80

Police

PENSION/INSUR
EMPLOYEE

334.19
15.96
151.16
2.27
6,188.23
13.76
123.56
102.80
404.74
642,54
17.00
2.57
17.34
1.17
1.44
8.64
17.62
273.93
0.%4
110.88
6.70
58.38
1.05
0.89
6.07
24.76

PAGE

EMPLOYER

13z2.27

H 1



DATE: 01/29/2015 VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

PAGE: 1°
TIME: 11:35:52 PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT ]a‘ - w ks
ID:  PRAGONGO.WOW PL{ (RS or
FOR CHECK DATES £1/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015
e e DEDUCTIONS T —— -
EARNTNGS —--=- oo o o TAXES -~ —————moo oo -—- VOLUNTARY -—= e PENSION/INSUR —-———-—-
EMPL. §  NAME CODE  PAY RATE HOURS TOTAL CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER  CODE EMPLOYEE CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER
GRAND TOTALS: REG 861.000 21,643.93 FED 2,471.36 AFL 43.98 MR 975.46 2,137.34
atr 56.500 2,015.66 FICA 1,446.07 1,446.07 au 320.00 Dsu 15.96
sIC 18.000 487.14 MEDIC 338.20 338,20 HSA 91.25 HSW 95.22
cme 1.000 29.32 STATE 790.50 NS 8.00 vSH 1.05
oc 14.000 300.78 UOE 413 .59 DFH 55.50
DD1 12,947.88 PFH 547.86
Dp2 1,282,469 VEW .81
DOR 362.64 PCH 122.77
1cM 169.76 HFH 172.56
PLI 10.72
AF2 26,36
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 23,323.87  TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA: 1,446.07
TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 23,323.87  TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE: 338.20
TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEF WAGES: 21,658.65  TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION: 2,137.34
TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 21,658.65
TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES: 21,676.83
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 11

GROSS PAY: 524,476.83 TIOTAL DERUCTIONS: 22,936.19 NET PAY: $1,540.64



DATE: 01/25/2015
TIME: 11;37:53
ID: PR460000 ., WOW

EMPL. # NAME

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO 01/29/2015

Total

DEDUCTIONS = —

-— ERRNINGS -—v--—so—smman o TAXES ----— e === VOLUNTARY --- = oo PENSION/INSUR
CODE PAY RATE HOURS TOTAL CODBE EMPLDYEE EMPLOYER CODE EMPLOYEE CODE EMPLOYEE
REG 3,511.500 108,796.68 FED 13,175.38 DDl 70,004.90 IMR 2,317.71
CA 1.000 115.39 FIcCA 7,586.64 T.586.64 pD2 5,542.07 DFA 18.50
GWA 1.000 39.62 MEDIC 1,774.31 1,774.31 oW 920.00 HFA 172.56
VAC 69.000 2,175.71 STATE 4,104.93 GUWA 39.682 VFA 2.27
FLH 20.000 738,27 HSA 266.25 DSA 15.96
SIC 95.000 3,141.69 ICM 2,084,39 HSA 95,22
I 16.000 516.07 IMV 55.49 VSA 1.05
Mp 12.000 1,200.00 AF1 188.57 DSW 13.986
CoM 4,000 160.00 INS 8.00 HSW 93.22
aT 61.500 2,228.09 UOE 413,59 vau 1.05
CMP 48.000 1,5859.69 DOR 382.64 DEW 55.50
oc 14.000 300.78 PLI 125.76 PFW 547.86
POIL 2.000 120.00 AF2 267.10 VEW 6.81
BO 32.000 1,673.85% MAP 330.00 PCW 122.77
DIC 3.000 105.25 Db3 1,793,22 HFW 172.586
RR 1.000 60,85 C54 203.00 D5P 15.96
Fu 8.000 161.52 PSP 151.16
FTO 4.000 140.33 VFE 2.27
wC 80.000 2,806.58 FOL 6,188,23
PSI 1.000 75.00 EFP 13.76
SRO 1.008 60.00 RIP 123.56
INS 1.000 285.10 TFP 102,80

IFP 404.76
RFP 642.54
Isp 77.00
nce 9.57
HCP 77.34
vCPp 1.17
EIP 1.44
TIP 8.64
DFFP 17.62
PFP 273.93
ECP 0.94
RCP 110.88
TCP 6.70
IIP 58.38
V5P 1.65
ESP 0,89
TSP §.07
BIFP 24.76
DFB 18.50
PFB 273.93
VFB 2.27
TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES: 122,365.47 TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA: 7.586.64

PAGE: 1

5,078.36



bali. Gij25,20La

TIME: 11:37:53
iD: PR460000.WOW
EMPL. # CODE

NAME

PAY

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

GROSS

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

PAGE: 2

FOR CHECK DATES 01/29/2015 TO N1/29/2015

e —————— —— “=== DEDUCTIONS — o e e
EARNINGS —--—- T T TAYES ———-n oo —--— VOLUNTARY --- = o _._ PENSTUN/INSUR
RATE HOURS TOTAL CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER CODE EMPLOYEE CODE EMPLOYEE EMPLOYER
MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES: 122,365.47 TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE: 1,774.31
FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES: 110,815.52 TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION: 5,078.36
STATE EMPLCYEE WAGES: 110,815.52
PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES: 113,948.73
TGTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 61
PAY: 5126,491.47 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS: 121,482.98 NET PAY: $5,008.49



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: FISCAL YEAR END APRIL 30, 2014
AUDIT REPORT & MANAGEMENT LETTER

Agenda Item No, 5.3

Executive Summary:

Attached is the required, per professional standards, communication regarding the audit from our auditors along with
the fiscal year end April 30, 2014 audit report for review and discussion. Dan Berg, a partner from Sikich, was in
attendance at the last COTW meeting on January 19, 2014 and provided a brief overview of the audit report and
answered questions from the Village Board.

Also attached is the management letter that lists current comments, future accounting pronouncements, and the
status of prior year comments. There is one new comment for the fiscal year end April 30, 2014 that addresses the
lack of custodial credit risk over both Village and Police Fund investments. There are mitigating controls currently
inplacethatprotectbothplans,andstaﬁ'wiﬂresemchﬁxrtherandmakethenec&ssarychanges to adhere to the
auditor’s comment. In addition, prior year comments remain open and need to be addressed.

Recommended Action:

Accept the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2014 Audit Report and Management Letter as presented.

Committee: Human Resources & Finance Meeting Date: February 2, 2015
Lead Department: Administration Presenter: Shane D. Johnson, AVA/Director of Finance
Ttem Budgeted: | - [Yes [ - No [X IN/A Account(s) Budget Expenditure
If amount requested is over budget, a detafled Item Requested
explanation of what account(s) the overage will be All Other Items
charged to will be provided in the Execntive Y-T-D Actual
Summary or attached detail, Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Request is over/under budget:
Under|-
Over|-







VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION TO
THE VILLAGE BOARD

For the Year Ended
April 30, 2014

% Sikich.
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1415 W. Diehd Road, Suite 400 Certified Public Accountants & Advisors
Naparville, llincis 60563 Membsrs of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

October 8, 2014

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of Round Lake

442 North Cedar Lake Road
Round Lake, Illinois 60073

Ladies and Gentlemen:

As part of our audit process we are required to have certain communications with those charged
with governance at the beginning of our audit process and at the conclusion of the audit. Those
communications include information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit, as well
as other information required by audit standards, Our communication at the beginning of our
audit process along with our questionnaire regarding consideration of fraud in a financial
statement audit was sent to you on July 18, 2014.

In addition, auditing standards require the communication of internal control related matters to
those charged with governance. Our management letter, as well as a listing of future
pronouncements that may affect the Village of Round Lake, are enclosed within this document.

This information is intended solely for the use of the President, Village Board and Management
of the Village of Round Lake and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

Jddur

Sikich LLP
By: Daniel A. Berg, CPA
Partner

630.566.8400 // wwwslKkich.com
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1415 W. Dieh Road, Suite 400 Coertified Public Accountants & Advisors
Naperville, lincis 60563 Members of American Institute of Cerified Public Accountants

October 8, 2014

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of Round Lake, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Round Lake (the Village) for the year ended Aprit 30, 2014. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepting auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated April 29, 2014. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the Village are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year
ended April 30, 2014, We noted no transactions entered into by the Village during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. We noted no particularly sensitive
estimates made by management during our audit of the financial statements.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. We noted no particularly sensitive disclosures during the audit of our
financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

-2




Village of Round Lake, Illinois
October 8, 2014

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, AJEQ1 of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and cormrected by management was
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken
as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the ‘auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated October 8, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Village's financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We were engaged to report on supplementary information, which accompany the financial
statements. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and
the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

£33



Village of Round Lake, Illinois
October 8§, 2014

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory Section and supplementary data which
accompany the financial statements. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other
information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the President, Village Board and Management

of the Village and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Sincerely,

Sikich LLP
By: Daniel A. Berg, CPA.
Partner



Village of Round Lake
Year End: April 30, 2014
Adjusting Journal Entrles
Date: 5M/2013 To 4/30/2014

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit
AJEH 4/30/2014 Real Estate Taxes - Police Pension 01-05-50-55002 GF-01 (427,638.30)
AJEO1 4130/2014 Police Panslon Contribution 01-40-71-67117 GF-01 427,638.30

To record revenue and expenditure in the General Fund for
police pension property taxes and pension contributions




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT LETTER

April 30, 2014

% sikich.
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1415 W. Dighl Road, Suite 400 Certified Public Accountants & Advisors
Naperville, Minols 60563 Members of American institute of Certified Public Accountants
The Honorable President

Members of the Village Board
Village of Round Lake, Illinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Village of Round Lake, Hlinois (the Village) for the year ended April 30, 2014, in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the
Village’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Village’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro] that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in infernal control that might be material
weaknesses. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified. We also identified certain matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency, of which management should be aware.
In addition we reviewed the status of the recommendations for the year ended April 30, 2013.
The status of these recommendations is included in Appendix A. This letter does not affect our
report dated October 8, 2014, on the basic financial statements of the Village.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the President, Board Members and
Management and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Susr

Naperville, lllinois
QOctober 8, 2014



SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

1.

Custodial Credit Risk over Investments

As of April 30, 2014, the Village and Police Pension Fund investments were being held by
the counterparty, resulting in exposure to custodial credit risk. The Village’s investment
policy requires that all investments be held by an independent third party custodian. The
Police Pension Fund’s investment policy is silent regarding custodial credit risk for
investments. The Government Finance Officers Association best practice recommends
separating the brokerage function from the custodial function to implement proper internal
controls over the purchase and custody of investments. In addition, the Illinois Department
of Insurance - Pension Division, in their frequently asked questions (FAQ) also
recommends segregating these two functions. We recommend segregating the custodial
function from the brokerage function for both Village and Police Pension investments, We
further recommend clarifying the investment policy for the Police Pension Fund regarding
custodial credit risk and the segregation of the brokerage and custodial functions.

OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued a number of
pronouncements that will impact the Village in the future.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, replaces the
requirements of Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50, Pension
Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or similar
arrangements meeting certain criteria. The statement builds upon the existing framework
for financial reports of defined benefit pension plans, which includes a statement of
fiduciary net position (the amount held in a trust for paying retirement benefits) and a
statement of changes in fiduciary net position. GASB Statement No. 67 enhances note
disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) for both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans. GASB Statement No. 67 also requires the presentation
of new information about annual money-weighted rates of return in the notes to the
financial statements and in 10-year RSI schedules. GASB Statement No. 67 is applicable
for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, replaces the
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar
arrangements that meet certain criteria. GASB Statement No. 68 requires governments
providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The statement also enhances accountability
and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and RSI. GASB Statement No.
68 is applicable for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2016.



OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

1.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related
to government combinations and disposals of government operations. GASB Statement
No. 69 is applicable for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Guarantees, is intended to enhance comparability of financial statements among
governments by requiring consistent reporting by those govemments that extend
nonexchange financial guarantees and by those governments that receive nonexchange
financial guarantees. This statement also intends to enhance the information disclosed
about a government’s obligations and risk exposure from extending nonexchange financial
guarantees and augment the ability of financial statement users to assess the probability
that governments will repay obligation holders by requiring disclosures about obligations
that are issued with this type of financial guarantee. GASB Statement No. 70 is applicable
for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, addresses an issue
regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-employer
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the
government’s beginning net pension liability. GASB Statement No. 71 is applicable for the
fiscal year ending April 30, 2016.



APPENDIX A
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

1.

Segregation of Duties

A system of internal control provides for a proper segregation of the accounting functions.
This system would segregate recording of fransactions, custody of assets, and authorization
of transactions. Proper segregation is not always possible in smaller entities, but limited
segregation to the extent possible can and should be implemented to reduce the risk of
errors or fraud. At the Village, there is a lack of segregation of duties due to the number of
personnel performing the accounting functions. The Village does have significant
compensating controls, such as Board approval of bills lists and Finance Director review
and approval of payroll transactions, accounts payable invoices and checks. We
recommend that management continuously review the current assignments of accounting
functions and, when possible, segregate duties and/or implement compensating controls to
reduce the risk of errors or fraud. Additionally we recommend that the Village’s finance
department employees be cross-trained on each other’s job responsibilities and that
reviews and approvals be more prevalent in the Village’s internal controls. We noted the
following specific weaknesses:

Outstanding

. The same person that opens the mail is recording cash receipts in the general ledger.
Additionally, the same individual that collects and counts collections from the drop
box outside Village Hall records the receipts in the general ledger. These activities
should be segregated, if at all possible. The compensating control of having the
Finance Director code the receipts for nonrecurring receipts before entry somewhat
mitigates the lack of controls.

. The Village does not lock the safe during the day; it is held open for access to
finance department employees. All employees are aware of how to access the safe.
The Village should limit access to the safe to specific individuals.

. Employees who handle cash also have the ability to enter the financial software
system and edit or make changes to cash register entries. Also, a procedure is not in
place that monitors the frequency of modifications to cash register entries.
Employees who handie cash should not be allowed access to the system and modify
their entries. All changes to entries should be reviewed and approved by
management.

»  The utility billing clerk is able to collect utility cash receipts and enter them into the
system. The clerk is also able to go into the system and add/edit/delete customers
from the system. These functions should be kept separate and any edits to customer
accounts should be reviewed and approved.

Status - Comment still applicable at April 30, 2014.
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APPENDIX A
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS (Continued)

DEFICIENCIES

1.

3.

Reporting on the Modified Cash Basis

The Village currently records and reports their financial activity on the Modified Cash Basis
of Accounting, which is another comprehensive basis of accounting that is not a generally
accepted accounting principle (GAAP). GAAP requires that governmental agencies report
their governmental funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting and business-type
activities on the full accrual basis of accounting, which require the recognition of revenues
when they are both measurable and available and expenditures when they are due and
payable, rather than when the cash comes in or out of the Village. The Village has determined
that the needs and requirements of the external report users (i.e. the Board of Trustee, citizens
of the Village and the various State agencies) are being met with the modified cash basis of
accounting. The Village’s current reporting is acceptable and allows the financial records to
be reported fairly in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting. We would
encourage the Village to continue to review the costs and benefits of converting to the
modified accrual basis as the needs of their users may change in future periods. For example,
if the Village were to seek to issue additional debt in order to finance a project, we would
encourage the Village to seek the advice of a bond consultant to determine if a change in
accounting basis is warranted.

Status - Comment is still applicable as of April 30, 2014.
System Generated Reports

During our review of the open accounts receivable system generated report, we noted that
the total account balance did not agree to the total for each category listed on the aging
report (i.e., 0-30 days, 31-60 days, etc). The net difference is immaterial and the Village
does not record a receivable on the balance sheet due to being cash basis. However, we
recommend the Village to investigate and reconcile the difference so that the report is
accurate. Also, the Village should contact the software company and correct the error in
the calculations.

Status - Comment is still applicable as of April 30, 2014.
IMRF Contribution Expenditures

During testing of expenditures for Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)
contributions, we noted that the general ledger recorded more IMRF expense than was
actually paid out. The difference between the general ledger and the IMRF reports, in total,
was attributable to the IMRF report being generated a day before the third payroll in
Angust was posted. As a result, the IMRF report only picked up two of the three payrolls
in August and calculated IMRF expense based on the total of the two payrolls. We
recommend that the Village hold off on generating the monthly IMRF reports until all
payrolls have been posted for each month.

Status - Comment implemented as of April 30, 2014,
-11 -



APPENDIX A
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS (Continued)

OTHER COMNMENTS

1.

Old OQutstanding Checks

The Village does not have a policy that relates to the aged outstanding checks. In one of its
accounts, checks dating back to 2002 remain on the outstanding check list for the bank
reconciliation. We recommend that the Village develop a policy and procedure for
accounting and resolving its old outstanding checks.

Status - Comment still applicable at April 30, 2014. We also noted that there were checks
totaling $2,458 that were greater than 7 years outstanding that had not been turned over to
the State as required by Illinois escheat law.

Recapture Agreements

In the past several years, the Village has entered into a number of recapture agreements.
Because the nature of the individual agreement varies, the agreements can result in
receivables or payables in future periods.

The Village is not currently maintaining a subsidiary ledger to monitor the position of each
agreement. We recommend that the Village develop procedures to track each agreement
over time and the relative activity and position of each agreement.

Status - Comment still applicable at April 30, 2014.
Internal Controls over Parking Lot Collections

We noted during our review of internal control over the Village’s parking lot cash
collection procedures that there is a lack of control at the older parking lot location. At the
newer location, the collection box is locked and can only be opened by the finance staff at
Village hall. Also, a receipt is printed that supports the amount actually collected. The
Village currently does not use these receipts to ensure the proper amount is being
deposited at the bank. We recommend the Village add controls at the older location and
consider adding the new locked collection boxes at the older location. We also recommend
the Village perform regular reconciliations of the money deposited at the bank from
collections.

Status - Comment still applicable at April 30, 2014.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
APRIL 30, 2014

The discussion and analysis of the Village of Round Lake’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Village’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

# The Village’s Governmental net position, which equal total assets plus deferred outflows of resources less
total liabilities, was $33,979,962 and $32,294,240 at the end of fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively, an
increase of $1,685,722. Business-type activities net position was $40,149,780 and $40,452,733 at the end
of fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively, a decrease of $302,953.

s Governmental unrestricted net position, assets that may be used to meet the Village’s ongoing obligations
to residents and creditors, was $7,425,327 and $7,524,108 for fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively, a
decrease of $98,781. Business-type activities unrestricted net position was $7,358,823 and $7,701,931 for
fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively, a decrease of $343,108.

s Revenues for Governmental Activities (excluding transfers} equaled $9,196,236 and were higher than total
program expenses of $7,510,514 by $1,685,722 as compared to total revenues of $9,053,924 which were
higher than total expenses of $6,818,763 by $2,235,161 in the prior year. Revenues for Business-Type
Activities (excluding transfers) equaled $4,097.833 and were lower than total program expenses of
$4,400,786 by $302,953, as compared to total revenues of $4,467,980 which were higher than total
expenses of $4,323,065 by $144.915, in the prior vear.

e The fund balance for the General Fund equaled $5,872,470, a decrease of $500,531 from the beginning
fund balance of $6,373,001.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of Round Lake’s basic financial
statements. The Village's basic financial statements are comprised of three main components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
supplementary data in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of
Round Lake’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. The statement of net position presents
information on all of the Village's assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities on a modified cash basis,
with the difference between the three being reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal vear. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the receipts are collected (revenues) and
the expenditures are paid {expenditures or expenses), except for capital asset and debt related transactions.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the Village include general government, public safety, public works, community development, and
interest expense. The business-type activities of Village include water/sewer operations, commuter parking lot
activities, and internal service purchases.
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Fund Finsncial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided
into three categories; governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental finds balance
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revennes, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Proprietary funds. The Village maintains two proprietary fund types. One type is enterprise funds, which has a
fund for water and sewer operations and another for commuter lot operations. The other type is internal service,
which has three funds; vehicle replacement, technology replacement, and building replacement. The enterprise
funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the governmental-wide financial
statements. The internal service fumds are reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements becanse the resources of
those funds are not available to support the Village’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. The fiduciary funds include the Police Pension Fund, Special Service
Areas #1, #2, and #4, Builders Escrow, and the Impact Fee Funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
data.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted eatlier, the net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of 2 government’s financial position. In
the case of the Village of Round Lake, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded Liabilities by $74.1
million at April 30, 2014.

By far the largest portion of the Village’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets still outstanding. As
of April 30, 2014, net investment in capital assets totaled $56.8 million, representing 76.65% of total net position.
The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Village’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other resources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Just under $2.6 million (3.44%) of the Village’s net position represents resources that are subject to restrictions on
how they may be used, such as for debt service, capital projects, and other specific purposes. The remaining
$14,784,150 balance of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Village's ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors.

Following is a table that summarizes the net position of the Village at the close of the recent fiscal year by
governmental activities, business-type activities, and village-wide. A comparison to the preceding fiscal vear is
presented for all three categories.

Village of Round Lake Net Position
Fiscal Years Ended April 30"

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current assets $9,994,102  $9,315,423 $7,400,445  §7,744,779 $17,403,547 $17,060,202
Capital assets 36,952,957 36,513,877 33,635,957 33,705,802 70,588,914 70,219,679

Total assets 46,947,059 45,829,300 41,045,402 41,450,581 87,992,461 87,279,881
Unameortized loss on refunding

Total Deferred Outflows 774,051 841 460 0 0 774,051 841,460
Other liabilites 18,202 17,456 50,622 42,848 68,824 60,304
Noncurrent liabilities 13,722,946 14,359,064 845,000 955,000 14,567,946 15,314,064

Total liabilities 13,741,148 14,376,520 895,622 997.848 14,636,770 15,374,368
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 24,004,062 22,996,273 32,790,957 32,750,802 56,795,019 55,747,075

Restricted 2,550,573 1,773,859 0 0 2,550,573 1,773,859

Unrestricted 7,425,327 7,524,108 7,358,823 7,701,931 14,784,150 15,226,039
Total net position $33,979,962 $32,294,240 540,149,780  $40,452,733 $74,129,742 572,746,973

Total net position of the Village increased by $1,382,769 for the fiscal year ended 2014. The net position related to
governmental activities increased by $1,685,722, while net position related to business-type activities decreased by
$302,953.

In the governmental activities, current assets, mainly cash and investments, increased $678,679. General Fund cash
and investments decreased $499,787; internal service activities cash increased $207,406, while other governmental
funds cash and investments increased $971,058. The General Fund had excess revenues over expenditures of
roughly $950,000 coupled with transfers om of $1,450,000 to fund capital projects and debt service resulting in a
reduction in cash and investments. All other governmental funds cash and investments increased $971,058 mainly
due to a $700,000 transfer to the Capital Projects fund for capital outlay and a $400,000 transfer to the MFT Fund.
Noncurrent Liabilities decreased $636,118 mainly due to normal principal reductions for the Village’s general
obligation bonds.

In the business-type activities, current assets decreased by $335,334 mainly due to lower water, sewer, and parking
receipts from customers and users, coupled with an increase in operating expenses over the previous year. The
slight increase in other liabilities is mainly water and sewer utility bill credits as a result of customer overpayments
that are owed to them as of April 30, 2014. Noncurrent liabilities decrcased from the preceding fiscal year due to a
$110,000 principal payment made on the Village's 2010C outstanding debt series
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The table that follows summarizes the changes in net position for the fiscal year just ended and the prior fiscal year.

Village of Round Lake Changes in Net Position

Fiscal Years Ended April 30™
Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenueg
Program revenues
Charges for services $1,172,330 $1,090,179 $3,969,799 $3,982,654 $5,142,129 $5,072,833
Operating Grants 662,365 569,172 . 662,365 569,172
Capita] Grants 93,882 98,250 . - 93,882 98,250
General revenues
Property taxes 3,491,123 3,520,879 - - 3.491,128 3,520,879
Income tax 1,768,456 1,927,497 - - 1,768,456 1,927 497
Utility taxes 943,776 906,791 - . 943,776 906,791
Other taxes 832,978 782,931 - . 832,978 782,931
Interest income 7,798 4,675 15,384 (5,954) 23,182 (1,319)
Impact fees and recaptures 53,580 31,608 - . 53,580 31,608
Miscellaneous 169,943 121,942 112,650 62,835 282,503 184,777
Total revenues 9,196,236 9,053,924 4,097.833 4,039,495 13,294,069 13,093,419
Program expenses
General government 2,180,910 2,017,736 . - 2,180,910 2,007,736
Police department 3,513,671 3,128,966 . - 3,513,671 3,128,966
Public works 949,236 784,647 . - 949,236 784,647
Community development 250,786 241,523 - - 250,786 241,523
Debt gervice 615,911 645,891 - - 615,911 645,391
Parking Lot . - 52,144 34,157 52,144 34,157
Water and sewer - . 4,348 642 4,288,908 4,348,642 4,288,908
Total expenses 7,510,514 6,818,763 4,400,786 4,323,065 11,911,300 11,141,828
Changes in net position before

contributions and transfers 1,685,722 2,235,161 (302,953) (283,570) 1,382,769 1,951,591
Contributions - . - 428,485 - 42B 485
Transfers - (100,000) - 100,000 - -
Increase (decrease) in net position 1,685,722 2,135,161 (302,953) 244915 1,382,76% 2,380,076
Beginning of year 32,294,240 30,159,079 40,452,733 40,207,818 72,746,973 70,366,897
End of year $33,979,962 $32,294,240 $40,149,780 $40,452,733 $74,129,742 STZ,?%

Governmental Activities

Program revenues (amounts charged to residents for programs plus operating and capital grants) for governmental
activities totaled $1,928,577 and general revenues totaled $7,267,659 for a total of $9,196,236, an increase of
$142,312 from the preceding year.

The following graph depicts both program and general revenues by major revenue sources for governmental
activities.
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities
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Property taxes account for the largest revenue source in the governmental type activities of the Village at 37.96% of
the overall revenues. Charges for services, 12.75% of the total, include items such as business licenses, building
permits, and refuse pickup. Income Tax, 19.23% is the portion of state income tax that the State of Illinois
distributes 10 the Village on a per capita basis. Utility taxes include electric, gas, and the municipal
telecommunications tax, which accounted for 10.26% of the overall revenues. Other taxes of $363,679 include use
and replacement tax.

Expenses related to governmental activities totaled $7,510.514 in the current fiscal year, representing an increase of
$691,751 from the preceding fiscal year. The significant increase can be attributed to the following; additional legal
and consulting services provided, an increase in regular, part-time, and overtime salaries, and an increase in certain
commodities due to the severe winter during 2014,

Business-Type Activities

Program revenues for business type activities totaled $3,969,799 and general revenues totaled $128,034 for a total of
$4,097.833, a decrease of $470,147 from the preceding year. Charges for services decreased $12,855 from 2013 due
to a slight decrease in consumption. Miscellaneous revenue increased $49,815 from 2013 due to higher permit fee
receipts from the Emerald Bay subdivision.

Expenses from business-type activities totaled $4,400,786 compared to 54,323,065 in the preceding year, an
increase of $77,721 or 1.79%.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Village of Round Lake uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Village’s
financing requirements. In particniar, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of April 30, 2014, the Village’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $9,557,685,
representing an increase of $470,527 or 5.18%, from the preceding year. Approximately 59.97% or $5,732,144,
constitutes unrestricted, unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the village’s discretion. The
remainder of fund balance is restricted or assigned, to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been earmarked: 1) to pay debt service, or 2) for a variety of other restricted purposes.

General Fund. The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Village. At April 30, 2014 total fund balance
was $5,872,470, a decrease of $500,531 over the prior year fund balance. The following table summarizes General
Fund revenues and expenditures, with a comparison to the operating budget, for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2014.

Operating Percent
Budget Actual  Variance  Variance

Revenues

Taxes 3,002,813 3,458,935 456,122 15.19%
Charges For Service 575,650 582,777 7,127 1.24%
Licenses And Permits 76,218 155,678 79,460 104.25%
Intergovernmental 2,553,930 2,618,354 64,424 2.52%
Fines 190,000 196,108 6,108 3.21%
Franchise Fees 233,000 237,768 4,768 2.05%
Interest Income 15,000 5,917 (9,083) (60.55%)
Miscellaneous Income 102,400 154,935 52,535 51.30%
Total Revenues 6,749,011 7410472 661,461 9.80%
Expenditures

General Government 1,827,093 1,831,245 {4,152) (0.23%)
Police Department 3,115,212 3,372,262 (257,050) (8.25%)
Public Works 928,554 911,566 16,988 1.83%
Community Development 276,718 274,597 1,721 0.62%
Capital Outlay 118,795 70,933 47,862 40.29%
Qther Financing Uses 1,450,000 1,450,000 0 0.00%
Total Expenditures 7,716,372 7,911,003 (194,631) (2.52%)

Changes In Fund Balance __ (967,361)  (500,531) 466,830 48.26%

It should be noted for audit purposes the Police Pension Fund tax levy is included in the General Fund as revenue in
the taxes category and as an expenditure in the Police Department, at $427,638. As the chart shows, revenues were
$661,461, 9.80% above the operating budget amount. Besides taxes, the largest dollar variance is licenses and
permits revenue; with actual revenue $79,460 over the budget amount due to the continuing development of the
Emerald Bay subdivision, Due to the uncertainty of the construction industry and economy, development permit
revenues were not budgeted for in fiscal year 2014.

Expenditures were 2.52% over the operating budget of $7,716,372. The Police Department expenditures are
$170,588 under the operating budget after backing out the $427,638 Police Pension tax levy. Capital outlay was
under budget due to shifting certain capital purchases to the next fiscal year. All other operating expenditures were
consistent with the operating budget.
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Other Governmental Funds. All other governmental fund type revenues were $1,785,764, an increase of $156,973
from the prior year amount of $1,628.791. The table below lists the revenue types and the change from the prior
year.

Dollar Percent
2014 2013 Change  Change

Revenues
Taxes $975,970 $937,192 $38,778 4.14%
Imtergovernmental $£739,900 $657,742 $82,158 12.49%
Impact Fees $53,580 $31,608 £21972  69.51%
Interest Income $1,881 $2.249 ($268) (16.36%)
Miscellaneous Income $14,433 S0 514,433 0.00%
Total Revenues $1,785,764 51,628,791 $156,973 9.64%

Fiscal year end 2014 taxes were $38,778 higher than 2013 due 1o gas tax increasing 38.15% from the previous fiscal
year directly related to the significantly cold winter. Intergovernmental revenue increased $82,158 due to receiving
$55,819 Township reimbursement for a roadway project and $20,700 for a Watershed Grant for storm water
management. Impact fees were $21,972 higher than 2013 due to the continued development of the Emerald Bay
subdivision.

The table below lists the expense types and the change from the prior year,

Dollar Percent

2014 2013 Change Change _
Expenditures
General Government 104,631 150,832 (46,201) (30.63%)
Public Works 37,320 96,931 {59.611) {61.50%)
Capital Outlay 938,135 681,607 256,528  37.64%
Debt Service 1,184,620 1,184,600 20 0.00%
Total Expenditures 2,264,706 2,113,970 150,736 7.13%

All other governmental fund type expenditures were $2,264,706, an increase of $150,736 from the prior year. As
shown in the table above the major increase was in the capital outlay categorv. The majority of the net increase
relates to projects in the Capital Projects Fund. Offsetting the capital outlay increase were minor decreases in both
the general government and public works categories.

Proprietary funds. The Village’s proprictary funds, the enterprise funds, which includes water/sewer and the
commuter parking lot funds and the internal service funds which include the vehicle, technology, and building
replacement funds, provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in
more detail.

The Water and Sewer Fund reported total operating income before depreciation expense of $803,551. Operating
revenues totaled $3,996,283, an increase of $40,197 from the preceding year. Operating expenses excluding
depreciation totaled $3,192,732, an increase of $21,756 from the prior year. Operating loss before non-operating
items, transfers and contributions totaled $323,561. The total change in net position reported for the current fiscal
year was a negative $337,006.

The Commuter Parking Lot Fund reported total operating income before depreciation expense of $34,022.
Operating revenue totaled $86,166, a decrease of $3,237 from the preceding year. Operating expenses excluding
depreciation totaled $52,144, an increase of $18,029 from the prior year. The total change in net position reported
for the current fiscal year was a positive $34,053.

The internal service funds, which includes vehicle, technology, and the building replacement funds reported total
operating income before depreciation expense of $365,560. Operating revenues totaled $379,892 and operating
expenses excluding depreciation totaled $14,332. The total change in net position reported for the current fiscal year
was a positive $370,841.
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Fiduciary funds. The Village’s fiduciary funds consist of five agency funds and one Police Pension Trust Fund. Net
position held by the Police Pension Trust Fund totaled $5,549,023 at April 30, 2014, an increase of $536,409 from
the prior year. Additions to the pension trust fund totaled $992,056 and deductions totaled $455,647.

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

All funds actual expenses, prior to capitalization of assets and depreciation expenses were under the overall
appropriations by nearly $3.7 million due to capital projects budgeted and moved to the subsequent fiscal year.
However, the Commuter Parking Lot fund was over budget by roughly $10,000 due to higher snow removal costs
associated with the abnormally high snow totals from the previous season.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of April 30, 2014 was
$70,588,914 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land; buildings and
improvements, land improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, streets and related infrastructure, The total
increase in the Village’s investment in capital assets for the year ended April 30, 2014 was $369,235.

Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
Fiscal Years Ended April 30™

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total
Description 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land $12,026,483 $12,026,483 $130,000 $130,000 $12,156,483  $12,156,483
Construction in

progress 961,618 1,007,978 656,395 563,396 1,618,013 1,571,374
Buildings 7,794,332 8,021,757 0 0 7,794,332 8,021,757
Land Improvements 346,156 380,408 0 0 346,156 380,408
Vehicles and

Equipment 377,787 247,089 263,862 84,231 641,649 331,320
Infrastructure 15,446,581 14,830,162 32,585,700 32,928,175 48,032,281 47,758,337
Totals 53 57 $36,513,877 $33,635,957  §33,705,802 $70,588,914  $70.219,679

Governmental activities capital assets increased $439,080 from the prior year and business-type activities capital
assets decreased 0.21%. The majority of the increase in the current fiscal year relates to the capitalization completed
construction projects along with prior year’s construction in progress in the infrastructure category. The category
increased $616,419 with the larger current fiscal year projects included below:

¢  Wildspring/Nippersink roadway repaving $111,629
Lakewood Terrace roadway and watermain reconstruction §119,122

Depreciation expense in the governmental and business-type activities totaled $700,522 and $1,127,112 respectively
in the cwrrent fiscal year.
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DEBT ADMIMSTRATION

As of April 30, 2014, the Village had five general obligation bonds outstanding. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the Village of Round Lake had $14,439,000 of debt outstanding as shown by the table below.

Qutstanding Debt
Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2014
Business
General Obligation Governmental Type
Bonds Activities - Activities Total

Series 2005 $1,014,000 50 $1,014,000
Series 2010A $9.100,000 50 $9,100,000
Series 2010B $830,000 $0 $830,000
Series 2010C 0 845,000 845,000
Series 2011 2,650,000 0 2,650,000
Total $13,594,000 $845,000 $14,439,000

During the year the Village's total outstanding debt decreased by $730,000. All the decrease was attributed to
retirements of general obligation bonds. There were no new issuances during the fiscal year 2014.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

General economic conditions are expected to improve in the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2014 and ending April 30,
2015. However, it is anticipated that no new development will occur in the near future. Although economic
revenues are balanced with property tax revenues, certain tax revenues that are impacted by the economy will need
to be monitored carefully, such as sales and income tax. Both revenue sources are expected to increase in the
upcoming year.

In addition, Village officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget and the
associated property tax rates and charges for services. These factors include anticipated consumer priced indexed
costs, economic driven revenue sources, completion of capital projects along with future projects, larger contracts
that may be up for renewal, and an assessment of future staffing needs.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Round Lake for all those with an
interest in the Village’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to Shane D. Johnson, Finance Director, Village of Round Lake,
442 N. Cedar Lake Road, Round Lake, IL 60073.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Round Lake

Round Lake, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Round Lake, Ilinois (the Village) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2014, and the related
notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1d; this includes
determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation
of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
error or frand.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assecssments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Village’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activitics, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village, as of April 30, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in Note 1d.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1d of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to that matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements. The management discussion and
analysis, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and the
supplementary data are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The management discussion and analysis and supplementary data has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.,

Naperville, Illinois M

October 8, 2014
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YILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

April 30, 2014

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 9013654 § 4,115,111 § 13,128,765
Investments 980,415 3,294,334 4,274,749
Due from fiduciary funds 33 - 33
Capital assets not being depreciated 12,988,101 786,395 13,774,496
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 23,964,856 32,849,562 56,814,418
Total assets 46,947,059 41,045,402 87,992,461
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unameortized loss on refunding 774,051 - 774,051
Total deferred outflows of resources 774,051 - 774,051
LIABILITIES
Escrow deposits 18,202 - 18,202
Other liabilities - 50,622 50,622
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 629,000 110,000 739,000
Due within more than one year 13,093,946 735,000 13,828,946
Total liabilities 13,741,148 895,622 14,636,770
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 24,004,062 32,790,957 56,795,019
Restricted for
Public safety 140,326 - 140,326
Streets 1,566,642 e 1,566,642
Working cash 673,563 - 673,563
Debt service 51,980 = 51,980
Specific purposes 118,062 - 118,062
Unrestricted 7,425,327 7,358,823 14,784,150
TOTAL NET POSITION § 33979962 § 40,149,780 5§ 74,129,742

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Program Revenues
Charges Operating Capital
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Grants Grants
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Govemnmental Activities
General government $ 2,180910 $ 974774 3 - $
Public safety 3,513,671 197,556 16,920 -
Public works 949,236 - 645,445 93,882
Community development 250,786 - - -
Interest 615,911 - - -
Total governmental activities 7,510,514 1,172,330 662,365 93,882
Business-Type Activities
Water and sewer 4,348,642 3,883,633 -
Parking lot 52,144 86,166 -
Total business-type activities 4,400,786 3,969,799 - -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT § 11911300 § 5,142,129 § 662,365 § 93,882




General Revenues

Taxes

Property

Replacement

Sales

Utility

Other
State-shared income taxes
Impact and traffic fees
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, MAY 1

NET POSITION, APRIL 39

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (1,206,136) § - $ {1,206,136)
(3.299,195) (3,299,195)
(209,909) - (209,909)
(250,786) - (250,786)
(615,911) - (615,911)
(5,581,937) - {5,581,937)
- {465,009) (465,009)
- 34,022 34,022
= (430,987) (430,987)
(5,581,937) (430,987) (6,012,924)
3,491,128 3,491.128
25,450 - 25,450
469,299 469,299
943,776 - 943,776
338,229 338,229
1,768,456 1,768,456
53,580 - 53,580
7.798 15,384 23,182
169,943 112,650 282,593
7,267,659 128,034 7,395,693
1,685,722 (302,953) 1,382,769
32,294,240 40,452,733 72,746,973
$ 33,979,962 S 40,149,780 § 74,129,742

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

ARISING FROM CASH BASIS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
April 30, 2014
Capital Nonmajor
General Projects Governmental Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 5010623 $ 1,175,787 § 2,409,029 § 8595439
Investments 880,016 99,181 1,218 980,415
Due from fiduciary funds 33 - - 33
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5890672 § 1274968 $ 2410247 § 9,575,887
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Escrow deposits $ 18,202 § - b3 5 18,202
Total liabilitics 18,202 - - 18,202
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Public safety 140,326 - - 140,326
Streets - 1,566,642 1,566,642
Working cash 673,563 673,563
Debt service 51,980 51,980
Specific purposes 118,062 118,062
Assigned
Specific purposes - 1,274,968 1,274,968
Unrestricted
Unassigned 5,732,144 - - 5,732,144
Total fund balances 5,872,470 1,274,968 2,410,247 9,557,685
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 5890672 5 1274968 3 2410247 $ 9,575,887

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM CASH BASIS
OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

April 30, 2014

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 9,557,685

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds 36,952,957

Less amount reported in internal service funds below (233,077)

Unamortized loss on refunding is reported as a deferred outflow of
resources on the statement of net position 774,051

Long-term liabilities, including installment contracts, are
not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (13,722,946)
The net position of internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of net position 651,292
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 33,979,962

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

REVENUES COLLECTED
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines
Charges for service
Impact fees
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues collected

EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures paid

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources {uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Capital Nonmajor
General Projects Governmental Total

$ 3458935 § 121,416 § B54,554 § 4,434,905
2,618,354 78,605 661,295 3,358,254
155,678 - - 155,678
196,108 - 196,108
582,777 - - 582,777
- 53,580 . 53,580
5,917 1,491 390 7,798
392,703 14,433 - 407,136
7,410,472 269,525 1,516,239 9,196,236
1,831,245 80,785 23,846 1,935,876
3,372,262 - - 3,372,262
911,566 37,320 948,886
274,997 - - 274,997
70,933 554,070 384,065 1,009,068
- - 620,000 620,000
- - 564,620 564,620
6,461,003 634,855 1,629,851 8,725,709
949,469 (365,330} (113,612) 470,527
- 700,000 750,000 1,450,000
(1,450,000) - - (1,450,000)

(1,450,000) 700,000 750,000 -
(500,531) 334,670 636,388 470,527
6,373,001 940,298 1,773,859 9,087,158
$ 5872470 § 1,274,968 § 2410247 § 9,557,685




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES
COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
CASH BASIS - TO THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 470,527

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are
capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities 975,194

Proceeds from the disposal of capital assets is reported in the governmental
funds, but gain or loss on the disposal of capital assets is calculated and
reported in the statement of activities (32,467)

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds

Depreciation (700,522)
Amortization (51,291)
Less amount reported in intemal service funds below 33,440

The repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure when
due in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding
in the statement of activities 620,000

The change in net position of internal service funds is
in governmental funds 370,841

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1,685,722

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30, 2014
Water and Nonmajor Internal
Sewer Enterprise Total Service
ASSETS
Cash § 3,784968 § 330,143 § 4,115,111 § 418,215
Investments 3,204,334 - 3,294,334 -
Capital assets not being depreciated 686,395 100,000 786,395 -
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 32,849,562 - 32,849,562 233,077
Total assets 40,615,259 430,143 41,045,402 651,292
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 50,622 - 50,622 -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 110,000 - 110,000 -
Due within more than one year 735,000 - 735,000
Total liabilities 895,622 - 895,622 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 32,690,957 100,000 32,790,957 233,077
Unrestricted 7,028,680 330,143 7,358,823 418,215
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 39,719,637 $ 430,143 § 40,149,780 § 651,292

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Water and Nonmajor Internal
Sewer Enterprise Total Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3,883,633 § 86,166 & 3969799 3 -
Interfund contributions - - - 379,892
Miscellaneous 112,650 - 112,650 -
Total operating revenues 3,996,283 86,166 4,082,449 379,892
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 3,192,732 52,144 3,244,876 14,332
Total operating expenses 3,192,732 52,144 3,244,876 14,332
OPERATING INCOME
BEFORE DEPRECIATION 803,551 34,022 837,573 365,560
Depreciation 1,127,112 - 1,127,112 33,440
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (323,561) 34,022 '(289,539) 332,120
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 15,353 31 15,384 33
Insurance reimbursement - - - 37.658
Intergovernmentat - - - 1,030
Interest expense {28,798) - {28,798} .
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) {13,445) 31 (13,414) 38,721
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (337,006) 34,053 (302,953) 370,341
NET POSITION, MAY 1 40,056,643 396,090 40,452,733 280,451
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 39,719,637 $ 430,143 § 40,149,780 S 651,292

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services
Receipts from miscellaneous
Payments to supplicrs
Payments for interfund services

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental receipts

Net cash from noncapital
finencing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased
Bond principal payments
Bond interest payments

Net cash from ceapital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of investments

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

Other miscellaneous receipts

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Other lisbilities

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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‘Water and Noomajor Internal
Sewer Enterprise Total Service
§ 4,004,056 % 86,166 § 4,090,222 § -
. - - 379,892
- - - 37,658
(3,104,021) (52,144) (3,156,165) (14,332)
(88,711) - {88,711) -
811,324 34,022 845,346 403,218
- - - 1,030
- - - 1,030
(1,057,266) - (1,057,266) (196,875)
(110,000) - (110,000) -
(28,798) - (28,798) -
(1,196,064) - (1,196,064) (196,875)
15,353 31 15,384 33
(3,294,334) - (3,294.334) -
(3,278,981) 31 (3,278,950) 33
(3,663,721) 34,053 (3,629.,668) 207,406
7,448,689 286,090 7,744,779 210,809
$ 3784968 § 330,143 $ 4115111 § 418215
5 (323,561) § 34,022 § (289,539 § 332,120
- . - 37,658
1,127,112 1,127,112 33,440
7,773 - 7,773 -
$ 811,324 3 34,022 § 845346 § 403,218




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
April 30, 2014
Pension Agency
Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 344630 $ 1,451.421
Investments
U.S. Treasury obligations 1,129,957 -
U.S. agency obligations 739,967 -
Corporate bonds 630,788 -
Money market mutual funds 179,894 -
Mutual funds 2,523,787 -
Total assets 5,549,023 § 1,451,421
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable - $ 60,697
Due to other funds - 33
Other payables 1,390,691
Total liabilities - $ 1,451,421
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS S 5,549,023

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
PENSION TRUST FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
Interest earned on investments
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Retirement pension
Disability pension
Refund of contribution
Administrative
Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR

PENSION BENEFITS
May1

April 30

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
1

427,638
164,392

592,030

354,297
65,615

419,912

(19,886)

400,026

992,056

258,273
84,234
97,415
15,725

455,647

536,409

5,012,614

$ 5,549,023




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Round Lake, Illinois (the Village) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP)), except as described in Note 1d. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Village’s accounting policies are described below.

a.

Reporting Entity

The Village is a body corporate and politic established under Illinois Compiled
Statutes (ILCS) governed by an elected Mayor/Board of Trustees. These financial
statements present the Village and its component units as required by GAAP.

The Village’s financial statements include a pension trust fund:
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees
Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees
and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the
Village’s President, one pension beneficiary elected by the membership and two
police employees elected by the membership constitute the pension board. The
Village and PPERS participants are obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon
actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and
the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the
characteristics of a legally separate government, PPERS is reported as if it were part
of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the
pensions of the Village’s police employees and because of the fiduciary nature of
such activities. PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.

Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to report on its financial position and the changes in its
financial position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and
to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain
government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting {Continued)

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the Village’s general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed
monies (special revenue funds), the funds committed, restricted or assigned for the
acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects funds), the funds
committed, restricted or assigned for the servicing of long-term debt (debt service
funds) and the management of funds held in trust where the interest earnings can be
used for governmental services (permanent fund). The general fund is used to
account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other
fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the deftermination of net income is necessary or useful for
sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be
provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or
agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. The
Village utilizes a pension trust fund which is generally used to account for assets that
the Village holds in a fiduciary capacity and agency funds which are used fo account
for funds held by the Village in an agent capacity.

Govermment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
staternent of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
Village. The effect of material interfind activity has been eliminated from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, if
any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and
(2) grants and standard revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the Village, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for resources assigned for village-
wide capital projects. The Village has elected to report this fund as major.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and wastewater
services to the residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund.

The Village reports a pension trust fund as a fiduciary fund to account for the Police
Pension Fund and agency funds for special service areas and impact fees.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and using the modified cash basis of
accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recorded
at the time of receipt by the Village. Expenses are recorded when the funds are
disbursed. Depreciation of capital assets has also been shown on the government-wide
financial statements. Payroll withholdings from employees and escrow deposits are
reflected on the statement of net position and balance sheets as liabilities. Other
liabilities are primarily credit balances in customer accounts. Finally, debt payable
and the unamortized loss on refunding related to capital assets are reflected as
liabilities and deferred outflows of resources, respectively, on the statement of net
position and proprietary fund balance sheet. Accordingly, the financial statements
are not intended to present financial position and changes in financial position in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the cash basis of accounting which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recorded at the time of receipt
by the Village. Expenditures are recorded when the funds are disbursed. Accordingly,
the financial statements are not intended to present financial position and changes in
financial position in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, non-negotiable
certificates of deposit and investments with a maturity of less than one year at date of
purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.
All investments of the pension trust fund are stated at fair value. Fair value has been
based on quoted market prices at April 30, 2014 for debt and equity securities.

Interfind Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are
classified as “due from other funds” or “due to other funds” on the balance
sheet/statement of net position. Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as
“interfund receivables/payables.” Long-term portions are classified as “advances
from other funds” or “advances to other funds.”

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental columns
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Village
as assets with an initial, individual cost in excess of $5,000 (except for land which has
no threshold) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B

Capital Assets (Continued)

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value or service
capacity of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 2045

Equipment and vehicles 5-10

Water and sewer infrastructure 30-50

Other infrastructure 10-50
Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities. Principal payments
on long-term debt are recorded as expenditures in the fund financial statements but as a
reduction of a liability on the government-wide and proprietary fund statements.

Fund Balance/Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds can report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are either not spendable in form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for amounts
constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific purpose, or
externally imposed by outside entities. None of the restricted fund balance result from
enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Committed fund balance is constrained by
formal actions of the Village’s Board of Trustees, which is considered the Village's
highest level of decision-making authority. Formal actions include ordinances approved
by the Board of Trustees. Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by the
Village’s intent to use them for a specific purpose. The authority to assign fund balance
has been delegated 1o the Village Administrator; however, this has not been authorized
through a formal policy. Any residual fund balance in the General Fund is reported as
unassigned.

The Village’s flow of funds assumption specified that the funds with the highest level
of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available for
spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds to
be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
L Fund Balance/Net Position (Contimzed)

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net investment in capital assets
represents the book value of capital assets less any long-term debt principal outstanding
issued to construct capital assets.

i- Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report 2 separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village’s investment policy authorizes the Village to invest in debt securities
guaranteed by the United States (explicitly or implicitly), interest-bearing savings and
money market accounts (also interest-bearing time deposits if FDIC insured and credit if
main office is located in Illinois), interest-bearing certificates of deposit and Iilinois Funds
(a money market fund created by the state legislature under the control of the State
Treasurer that maintains a $1 share value).

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a maoner which will provide the highest
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands
of the Village and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of
public funds using “good judgment and care” for managing the overall portfolio. The
primary objective of the policy is safety (preservation of capital and protection of
investment principal), liquidity and yield.

The Village maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. In addition, cash
and investments are separately held by several of the Village’s funds.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit rigk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of
bank failure, the Village’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Village’s investment
policy requires pledging of collateral at a minimum of 110% of all bank balances in excess
of federal depository insurance with the collateral held by an agent of the Village in the
Village’s name.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Village Investments

In accordance with its investment policy, the Village limits its exposure to interest rate risk
by structuring the portfolio to meet daily cash flow requirements for ongoing operations in
order to maximize yield on longer term investments by avoiding having to sell securities
on the open market before maturity and by investing operating funds in shorter term
securities, money market mutual funds or external investment pools.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the Village’s
investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk
to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments
held by a third party custodian evidenced by safekeeping receipts. As of April 30, 2014,
the investments were being held by the Village’s counterparty, which is not in accordance
with the investment policy.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Village has too high a percentage of their
investments invested in one type of investment. The Village's investment policy requires
diversification of investment to avoid unreasonable risk.

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Village’s debt securities
as of April 30, 2014:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less Than Greater Than
Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
U .S. Treasury $ 1,246,875 § 200,172 $1,046,703 S - 8 -
U.S. agency securities 2,706,126 1,449,615 1,256,511 -
TOTAL $ 3,953,000 $§ 1649787 $2303214 § - 8 -

The Village limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security will
not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in Illinois Funds. Illinois Funds
is rated AA. The U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency Securities are rated AAA.

Police Pension Investments

The Police Pension Fund’s investment policy authorizes the fund to invest in instruments
allowable under Ilinois statutes and limits the equity investments to 45% of the net asset
market value.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Police Pension Investments (Continued)

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Police Pension Fund’s
debt securities as of April 30, 2014:

Investment Maturities In Years
Less Than Greater Than
Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
U.S. Treasury $ 1,129957 § 247,352 § 436,060 $ 446,545 $ -
U.S. agency securities 739,967 45,931 209,682 16,183 468,171
Corporate bonds 630,788 183,827 359,681 87,280 .
TOTAL $ 2,500,712 $ 477,110 $1,005423 $ 550,008 § 468,171

In accordance with its investment policy, the Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to
interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to meet daily cash flow requirements for
ongoing operations in order to maximize yield on longer term investments by avoiding
having to sell securities on the open market before maturity and by investing operating
funds in shorter term securities, money market mutual funds or external investment pools.
The Police Pension Fund’s investment policy requires that securities purchased will not
have a maturity of more than one year unless matched to a specific cash flow.

The Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt
security will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in investments
approved by the Ilinois Pension Code. The U.S. agency obligations and money market
mutual funds are rated AA. The corporate bonds are rated A3 to AA2.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty fo the investment, the Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover the
value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. The Police Pension
Fund’s investment policy is silent, as to custodial credit risk, and the counterparty currently
holds the investments. This is partially mitigated by the counterparty’s SIPC and excess
SIPC insurance, which may not be sufficient to cover 100% of the portfolio.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Police Pension Fund has too high a

percentage of their investments invested in one type of investment. The Police Pension
Fund’s investment policy requires diversification of investment to avoid unreasonable risk.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the
Village.

» The property tax lien date is January 1;

» Property taxes are due to the County Collector in two installments, June 1 and
September 1; and

* Property taxes for 2013 were levied in December 2013 and are normally received
monthly beginning in June and generally ending by December 2014.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities

Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2014 was as follows:

Balances Balances
May 1 Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 12,026,483 S - 5 - $£12.026,483
Construction in progress 1,007,978 924,547 970,907 961,618
Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,034,461 924,547 970,007 12,988,101
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 9,865,131 - - 9,865,131
Land improvements 877,587 - - 877,587
Vehicles and equipment 1,969,178 247,522 97,678 2,119,022
Infrastructure 16,900,395 970,907 - 17,871,302
Total capital assets being depreciated 29,612,291 1,218,429 97,678 30,733,042
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 1,843374 227425 . 2,070,799
Land improvements 497,179 34,252 - 531,431
Vehicles and equipment 1,722,089 84,357 65,211 1,741,235
Infrastructure 2.070.233 354,488 - 2,424,721
Total accumulated depreciation 6,132,875 700,522 65,211 6,768,186
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,479,416 517,907 32,467 23,964,856
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 36,513,877 § 1442454 § 1,003,374 $36,952.957
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Governmental Activities (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government $ 280,476
Public safety 363,283
Public works 55,014
Community development 1,749
TOTAL $ 700,522

Business-Type Activities

Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2014 was as follows:

Balances Balances
May 1 Increases Decreases April 30
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 563396 $ 785140 $ 692141 § 656,395
Land 130,000 - - 130,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 693,396 785,140 692,141 786,395
Capitai assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 42,954,521 738,272 - 43,692,793
Vehicles and equipment 696,003 225,996 41,050 880,949
Total capital assets being depreciated 43,650,524 964,268 41,050 44,573,742
Less accumulated depreciation for
Infrastructure 10,026,346 1,080,747 - 11,107,093
Vehicles and equipment 611,772 46,365 41,050 617,087
Total accumulated depreciation 10,638,118 1,127,112 41,050 11,724,180
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,012,406 (162,844) - 32,849,562
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 33,705,802 § 622296 § 692,141 $33,635957
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, 1LLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of long-term debt of the Village for the year ended April 30, 2014 consisted of

the following:

a.  General Obligation Bonds

Issue

Fund Debt
Retired by

Balances

May 1 Issuances Retirements

Current
Portion

Balances
Aprii 30

General Obligation (Altemate
Revenue Source) Bonds,
Series 2005, are due in annual
installments ranging from
$35,000 to $275,000 through
January 1, 2018, interest rates
range from 2.6% to 4.1%, and
payments are due
semiannually on January 1
and July 1.

General Obligation (Alternate
Revenue Source) Refunding
Bonds, Series 20104, are due
in annual installments ranging
from $50,000 to $1,320,000
through January 1, 2029,
interest rates range from
3.60% to 4.65%, and
payments are due
semiannuatly on January 1
and July 1.

General Obligation (Alternate
Revenue Source) Refunding
Bonds, Series 20108, are due
in annual installments ranging
from $105,000 to $255,000
through January 1, 2021,
interest rates range from
2.25% 1o 3.60%, and
payments are due
semiannually on January 1
and July 1.

General Obligation (Alernate
Revenue Source) Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010C, are due
in annuai installments ranging
from $105,000 to $135,000
through January 1, 2021,
interest rates range from 2.0%
to 3.7%, and payments are
due semiannually on January
1 and July 1.

2005
Bonds
Debt
Service

$ 1,235,000 $ - § 225,000

2010
Bonds
Debt

Service 9,100,000 - -

2010
Bonds
Debt
Service

940,000 110,000

Water

Sewer 955,000 - 110,000
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Fund Debt  Balances Balances Current
Issue Retired by May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 Portion
General Obligation (Alternate
Revenue Source) Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011, are due
in annual installments ranging
from $20,000 to $500,000
through Janvary 1, 2022,
interest rates range from
2.00% to 4.00%, and 2011
payments are due Bonds
semiannually on January 1 Debt
and July 1. Service _§ 2,935000 § - § 285000 $ 2650000 § 285,000
TOTAL $15,169,000 % - $§ 730,000 $14,439000 § 739,000

b. Long-Term Liabilities Summarized

Transactions for the year ended April 30, 2014 are summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds § 14214000 § - $ 620,000 § 13,594,000 $ 625,000
Unamortized premium
on bonds 145,064 - 16,118 128,946 -
Total governmental
activities 14,359,064 - 636,118 13,722,946 629,000
Business-Type Activities
General obligation bonds 955,000 - 110,000 845,000 110,000
Total business-type
activities 955,000 - 110,000 845,000 110,000
TOTAL GOVERNMENT $ 15,314,064 $ - $ 746,118 $ 14567946 § 739,000

_26 -



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

C.

Debt Service to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding of the Village as of
April 30, 2014 are as follows:

Bonds
Fiscal Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 620000 $ 545835 $ 1,174835 $ 110,000 $ 25808 3 135808
2016 645,000 526,765 1,171,765 115,000 23,333 138,333
2017 725,000 506,635 1,231,635 115,000 20,458 135,458
2018 755,000 481,885 1,236,885 120,000 17,583 137,583
2019 625,000 455,785 1,080,785 125,000 13,683 138,683

2020-2024 4,625,000 1,802,339 6,427,339 260,000 14,615 274,615
2025-2029 5,590,000 803,669 6,393,669 - - -

TOTAL $13,594,000 § 5,122,913 $18716913 $ 845000 § 115480 $ 960,480

Special Service Area Debt without Village Obligation

Special Service Area #1 - The Village issued special tax bonds in the fiscal year
ended 2003 in the amount of $12,600,000 for improvements within Special Service
Arear (SSA) #1. During the fiscal year ended 2007, the Village, as agent for
Lakewood Grove Special Service Area #1 issued Special Tax Refunding Bonds,
Series 2007 with a face value of $13,000,000, bearing interest ranging from 5% to
9%. A portion of the sale of the bonds has been deposited into an escrow account to
be used to advance refund the Prior SSA One Bonds. These bonds are payable by tax
levy from the SSA #1 only, and are not village obligations. No SSA One Bonds were
outstanding at April 30, 2014, and Refunding Bonds outstanding at April 30, 2014
were $11,935,000.

Special Service Area #3 - The Village issued special tax bonds in the fiscal year
ended 2004 in the amount of $3,570,000 for improvements within SSA #3. During
the fiscal year ended 2007, the Village, as agent for Lakewood Grove Special
Service Area #3 issued Special Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 with a face value
of $4,040,000 bearing interest ranging from 4.7% to 5.5%. A portion of the sale of
the bonds has been deposited into an escrow account to be used to advance refund
Prior SSA Three Bonds. These bonds are payable by tax levy from the SSA #3 only,
and are not village obligations. No SSA Three Bonds were outstanding at April 30,
2014, and Refunding Bonds outstanding at April 30, 2014 were $3,605,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d

Special Service Area Debt without Village Obligation (Continued)

Special Service Area #4 - The Village issued special tax bonds in the fiscal year
ended 2004 in the amount of $5,040,000 for improvements within SSA #4. During
the fiscal year ended 2007, the Village, as agent for Lakewood Grove Special
Service Area #4 issued Special Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 with a face value
of $5,750,000 and an interest rate of 6.75%. A portion of the sale of the bonds has
been deposited inte an escrow account to be used to advance refund Prior SSA Four
Bonds. These bonds are payable by tax levy from the SSA #4 only, and are not
village obligations. No SSA Four Bonds were outstanding at April 30, 2014, and
Refunding Bonds outstanding at April 30, 2014 were $5,119,000.

These Special Service Area Bonds are treated as special service area no commitment
debt without village obligation. The Village acts only as an agent for the property
owners in collecting property taxes and forwarding payments to the bond paying
agent. Transactions are recorded in an agency fund. The bonds are not reflected in
long-term debt.

Alternate Revenue Bonds

The Village has pledged future simplified telecommunications tax, electric utility tax
and natural gas tax revenues (collectively, the utility taxes) to repay the General
Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Bonds, Series 2005 and the General
Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A, 2010B and
2011. The bonds are payable from the utility taxes and ad valorem taxes and are
payable through 2029. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the
bonds is $18,716,910. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net
revenues, excluding ad valorem taxes, were $908,045 and $943,776, respectively.
The current year pledge of $908,045 was 96.2% of the pledged utility taxes.

The Village has pledged future water and sewer revenue to repay the General
Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Refunding Bonds, Series 2010C. The bonds
are payable from the water and sewer revenues and ad valorem taxes and are payable
through 2021. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is
$960,478. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net revenues were
$138,283 and $3,883,575, respectively. The current year of $138,283 was 3.6% of
the pledged water and sewer revenues.
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6.

INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Interfund transfers during the year ended April 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

TransferIn  Transfer Out

General Fund $ - § 1,450,000
Capital Projects Fund 700,000 -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 750,000 -
TOTAL $ 1,450,000 § 1,450,000

Significant transfers between funds for the year ended April 30, 2014 consist of the
following:

. $700,000 and $400,000 transferred to the Capital Projects Fund and a nonmajor
governmental fund, respectively, from the General Fund to support future capital
projects, $350,000 of the transfer to a nonmajor governmental fund to support debt
service payments. The transfers will not be repaid.

Interfund payables and receivables at April 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

Payable Receivable

Fund Fund
General Fund hY - 8 33
Agency Funds 33 -
TOTAL S 33 % 33

Interfund payables and receivables at April 30, 2014 consist of the following:

. $33 payable to the General Fund from Agency Funds represents interest earned on
cash balances in those funds. Repayment is expected within one year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village purchases property, auto, general liability, public officials bonds and heaith,
dental, vision and life insurance from various insurance brokers for the benefit of its
employees. Losses have not exceeded coverage in the current year or the preceding two
years.

linois Public Risk Fund

The Village participates in the Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF). IPRF is an organization of
Illinois municipalities and special districts in Illinois which have formed an association
under the Illincis Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool its workers’
compensation needs.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a.

Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Village’s attorney, the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the Village.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

The Village’s contract with Solid Waste Agency of Lake County (SWALCO)
provides that each member is liable for its proportionate share of any costs arising
from defaults in payment obligations by other members.

Construction Contracts

The Village has entered into contracts for the construction or renovation of various
facilities as follows:

Expended Total
Purpose 1o Date Commitment

Hart and Sunset Road

Long Lake Drive
Lincoln Avenue Watermain
Washington Street Sewer Lining

Washington Street Watermain

Reconstruct roads and
storm sewers

Street resurfacing
Watermain replacement
Lining of sewers

Watermain replacement

-30-

379,113
435,942

129,213

$ 1,435,346
384,900
459,415
159,479

771,917



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. JOINT VENTURES
Solid Waste Agency of Lake County (SWALCO)
Description of Joint Venture

The Village is a member of SWALCO, which consists of 42 municipalities. SWALCO is a
municipal corporation and public body politic and corporate established pursuant to the
Constitution of the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State
of Illinois, as amended (the Act). SWALCO is empowered under the Act to plan,
construct, finance, operate and maintain a solid waste disposal system to serve its
members.

The members form a contiguous geographic service area, which is located in Lake County.
Under the Agency Agreement, additional members may join SWALCO upon the approval
of each member.

SWALCO is governed by a Board of Directors, which consists of one appointed
representative from each member municipality. Each Director has an equal vote. The
officers of SWALCO are appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
determines the general policy of SWALCO; makes all appropriations; approves contracts;
adopts resolutions providing for the issuance of bonds or notes by SWALCO; adopts by-
laws, rules and regulations; and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be
prescribed in the Agency Agreement or the by-laws.

SWALCO is an oversight advisory board providing long-range planning services to
member municipalities. The Village is a participant in SWALCO, but no agreement has
been reached as to services to be provided. The Village made no payments 10 SWALCO
during the current fiscal year.

Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Solid Waste Agency of Lake
County, 1300 N. Skokie Highway, Suite 103, Gurnee, Illinois 60031.

The Village does not have an equity interest in SWALCO at April 30, 2014,

CenCom E-911 Joint Emergency Telephone System (CenCom)

The Village is a member of CenCom E-911 Joint Emergency Telephone System
(CenCom). The Village’s contribution to CenCom is reflected as an operating

disbursement of the General Fund.

The purpose of the joint agreement is to provide joint and mutual operation of an E-911
emergency telephone system.
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9.

10.

JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

CenCom E-911 Joint Emergency Telephone System (CenCom) (Continued)

At April 30, 2014, CenCom had eight members. Each member is represented on the Board
of Directors, which governs CenCom and establishes the budget.

CenCom is financed by a telephone surcharge. In addition, participating members pay a
share of operating costs for dispatching services. Payments to CenCom during the current
fiscal year totaled $240,591. The entity is not considered a component unit of the Village.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions

The Viliage contributes to three defined benefit pension plans (collectively referred
to as the Pension Plans), the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system; the Sherif’s Law
Enforcement Personnel Fund (SLEP), which is administered by IMRF and is also an
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system; and the Police Pension
Plan, which is a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions for all three plans are govemned by Illinois
Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by the Hlinois General
Assembly. The Pension Plans do not issue separate reports on the plans. However,
IMRF issues a publicly available report that inchides financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not for individual
employers. Those reports can be obtained from IMRF, 2211 York Road, Suite 500,
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

All employees (other than those covered by SLEP or the Police Pension Plan) hired
in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be
enrolled in IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of
service. IMRF also provides death and disability benefits.

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1,
2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest
after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced
benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are
entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal
to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15
years, and 2% for each year thereafter.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) {Continued)

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier
2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members
who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for
life, in an amount equal 1o 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of
credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.

These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.
Participating members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary to
IMRF. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
the coverage of its own employees in the system, using the actuarial basis specified
by state statute {entry-age normal). The employer required annual contribution rate
for the calendar year 2013 was 11.94% of covered payroll.

Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel

Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) having accumulated at least 20 years
of SLEP service and terminating IMRF participation or after January 1, 1988, may
elect to retire at or after age 50 with no early retirement discount penalty. SLEP
members meeting these two qualifications are entitled to an annual retirement benefit
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2 1/2% of their final rate of earnings
for each year of credited service up to 20 years, 2% of their final earnings rate for the
next ten years of credited service and 1% for each year thereafter. For SLEP
members retiring with less than 20 years of SLEP service, the regular IMRF pension
formula applies. SLEP also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit
provisions and all other requirements are established by ILCS. Participating
members are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual salary to SLEP. The Village
is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund SLEP as specified
by statute. The employer required annual contribution rate for the calendar year 2013
was 0% of covered payroll as the Village had no participants in SLEP.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Police Pension Plan

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan, which is a defined
benefit single-employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension
plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer contributions levels are
governed by ILCS (Chapter 40 - Article 5/3) and can be amended only by the Illinois
legislature. The Village accounts for the Police Pension Plan as a pension trust fund.
At April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them 0
Current employees
Vested 8
Nonvested 13
TOTAL 29

The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in ILCS.

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Tier 1 employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of
50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an
annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on
the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The
annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to 2 maximum of 75% of such salary.
Employees with at least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may
retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a
police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977
shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be
paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3%
compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ¥ of the annual change in the Consumer Price
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10.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Index or 3% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such
salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50
and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., 2% for each month under 55). The monthly
benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on the
January 1* after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension
starting date, whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each
January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or '2 of the change in the
Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the
Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to finance the Police Pension Plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled
actuary. The Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where the past
service cost for the Police Pension Plan is fully funded by the vear 2033. The
employer contribution for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014 was 26.73% of
covered payroll.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting: The financial statements are prepared using the modified cash
basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized as
revenues in the period in which employee contributions are withheld and the
employer contributions are received.

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value.
Investment income is recognized as earned.

Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed-income securities are recognized
on the transaction date.

Significant Investments: There were no investments (other than U.S. Government
and U.S. Government guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represents
5% or more of net position available for benefits.

Related Party Transactions: There were no securities of the employer or any other
related parties included in plan assets, including any loans.

Administrative costs for the Police Pension Plan are financed primarily through
investment earnings.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

c. Annual Pension Cost

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Significant actuarial assumptions
a) Rate of return on
present and future assets

b) Projected salary increase -
attributable to inflation

¢) Additional projected
salary increases -
seniority/merit
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Sheriff’s Law Nlinois
Enforcement Municipal Police
Personnel] Retirement Pension
December 31, December 31, April 30,
2011 2011 2012
Entry-age Enfry-age Entry-age
Normal Normmal Normat
5 Year 5 Year
Smoothed Smoothed
Market Market Market
Level Level Level
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
Payroll Payroll Payroll
30 Years, 30 Years, 28 Years,
Open Open Closed
7.50% 7.50% 7.00%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
4.00% 4.00% 5.50%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
40% to 10.00% .40% to 10.00%  Not Available
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10.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

C.

Annual Pension Cost (Continued})

Employer annual pension cost (APC) actual contributions and the net pension
obligation (NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the

APC and the contributions actually made.

For Sheriff’s Law Nlinois
Fiscal Enforcement Municipal Police
Year Personnel Retirement Pension
Annual pension cost 2012 N/A § 164,453 $ 462,910
(APC) 2013 N/A 150,005 438,745
2014 N/A 153,533 403,199
Actal contribution 2012 N/A S 164,417 §% 314,268
2013 N/A 149,968 395,437
2014 /A 153,495 427,638
Percentage of APC 2012 N/A 99.98% 67.89%
contributed 2013 N/A 99.98% 90.13%
2014 N/A 99.98% 106.06%
NPO (asset) 2012 N/A § 1,725 § 366,291
2013 N/A 1,762 412,221
2014 N/A 1,800 387,781

A net pension obligation {asset) has not been included in the basic financial
statements of the Village, as it is not a requirement for cash basis presentation.

The NPO (asset) has been calculated as follows as of April 30, 2014:

Annual required contributions
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, May 1

NET PENSION OBLIGATION, APRIL 30

-37.

Illinois
Municipal Police
Retirement Pension

$ 153,495 § 392,293
132 28,855

(94) (17,950)
153,533 403,198
153,495 427,638

38 (24,440)
1,762 412,221
) 1,800 § 387,781
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
c¢.  Annual Pension Cost (Continued)
Funded Status and Funding Progress: Based on actuarial valuations as of
December 31, 2013 and April 30, 2013, the funded status of the plans as of April 30,
2014 was as follows:
Illinois Sheriff’s Law
Municipal Enforcement Police
Retirement Personnel Pension
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 3,115,667 § - $ 8,655213
Actuarial value of plan assets 2,869,113 2,081 5,012,615
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) 246,554 (2,081) 3,642,508
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan
assets/AAL) 62.09% 0.00% 57.91%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 1,319,714 § - 8 1479479
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 18.68% 0.00% 246.21%
11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

a.

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pemsion benefits described, the Village provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single-
employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village and can be
amended by the Village through its personnel manual and union contracts. The Plan
is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to
account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The activity of the
Plan is reported in the Village’s governmental and business-type activities.

Benefits Provided

The Village provides pre and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee’s retirement). To
be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
Village’s two retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a retiree
becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Village’s health plan
will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those expenses that are
covered under both.
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
c.  Membership
At April 30, 2013, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3
Terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them -

Active employees 43
TOTAL —_ 46
Participating Employers 1

d. Funding Policy
The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of
benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the Plan until retirement.

e.  Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the Plan and the net OPEB obligation for 2014 and the two preceding years is as

follows:
Fiscal Annual Percentage of
Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributions  Cost Contributed Obligation
April 30, 2012 $ 25365 § 9,088 3583% § 32,688
April 30, 2013 25,449 3,061 12.03% 55,076
April 30, 2014 25,694 13,268 51.64% 67,502

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30, 2014 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 25,091
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,401
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,798)
Annual OPEB cost 25,694
Contributions made 13,268
Increase in net OPEB obligation 12,426
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 55,076
NET OPEB OBLIGATION, END OF YEAR S 67,502
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11.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e.

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

A net other postemployment benefit obligation (asset) has not been included in the
basic financial statements of the Village, as it is not a requirement for cash basis
presentation.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30,
2013 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 3 285,903
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 285,903
Funded ratic (actuarial value of plan assets/AAT) 0.00%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 2,707,531
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 10.56%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the futurc. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included no investment rate of return and an
initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8% with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of
5%. Both rates include a 3% inflation assumption and 4.5% wage inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village has not
advance funded its obligation. The Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2013 was 30 years.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES COLLECTED

Property taxes $ 3,002,813 $ 3,458,935

Charges for service 575,650 582,777

Licenses and permits 76,218 155,678

Intergovernmental 2,553,930 2,618,354

Fines 190,000 196,108

Franchise fees 233,000 237,768

Investment income 15,000 5,917

Miscellaneous income 102,400 154,935

Total revenues collected 6,749,011 7,410,472
EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General govemment 1,827,093 1,831,245
Public safety 3,115,212 3,372,262
Public works 928,554 911,566
Community development 276,718 274,997
Capital outlay 118,795 70,933
Total expenditures paid 6,266,372 6,461,003
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID 482,639 949,469
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers (out) (1,450,000) (1,450,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE S (967,361) (500,531)
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 6,373,001
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 5,872,470

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES PAID -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES PAID
General government
Administration
Personal services $ 354,549 § 309,204
Taxes, pensions and insurance 95,875 86,879
Contractnal services 1,304,794 1,362,324
Commodities 9,008 9,386
Repairs and replacement 42,623 48,120
Miscellaneous 20,244 14,832
Total administration 1,827,093 1,831,245
Capital outlay 5,303 5,809
Public safety
Police
Personal services 1,998,357 1,924,443
Taxes, pensions and insurance 382,050 803,225
Contractual services 401,293 374,260
Commodities 107,346 86,476
Repairs and replacement 66,044 30,805
Miscellaneous 160,122 153,053
Total police 3,115,212 3,372,262
Capital outlay 14,937 10,301
Public works
Public works department
Personal services 285,492 292 390
Taxes, pensions and insurance 94,200 99,949
Contractual services 153,937 124,620
Commodities 142,347 170,753
Repairs and replacement 242,578 223,854
Total public works 928,554 011,566
Capital outlay 98,555 54,823

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES PAID -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES PAID (Continued)
Communiry development
Building department

Personal services $ 161,705 § 162,220
Taxes, pensions and insurance 57,485 57,474
Contractual services 24974 24.864
Commodities 8.551 5,140
Repairs and replacement 24.003 25,299
Total building department 276,718 274,997
TOTAL EXPENDITURES PAID $ 6266372 § 6,461,003

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

REVENUES COLLECTED
Utility tax
Intergovernmental
Impact fees
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues collected
EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General government
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures paid

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original
and Final
Budget Actual

$ 107,500 $ 121,416

223,741 78,605

s 53,580
2,460 1,491

. 14,433
333,701 269,525
269,246 80,785
901,702 554,070
1,170,948 634,855
(837,247) (365,330)
700,000 700,000
$ (137,247 334,670
940,298

$ 1,274,968

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
ARISING FROM CASH BASIS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30, 2014
Debt
Special Revenue Service
Motor Fuel Bright Meadows 2005 Bonds
Tax SSA #1 Debt Service
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,566,642 $ 118,062 §$ 19,179
Investments - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,566,642 § 118,062 § 19,179
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
None $ - $ - $ -
Total liabilities - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Streets 1,566,642 - =
Working cash - E -
Debt service - - 19,179
Specific purpose - 118,062 -
Total fund balances 1,566,642 118,062 19,179
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES 3 1,566,642 $ 118,062 $ 19,179
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Debt Service Permanent

2010 Bonds 2011 Bonds

Debt Service Debt Service  Working Cash Total

$ 15,890 § 15,693 § 673,563 § 2,409,029
1,218 - - 1,218
$ 17,108 S 15,693 § 673,563 § 2410247

S - $ - $ - S -
. u - 1,566,642
- - 673,563 673,563
17,108 15,693 . 51,980
B, -~ = 118,062
17,108 15,693 673,563 2,410,247
) 17,108 § 15,693 § 673,563 § 2,410,247

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CASH BASIS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Debt
Special Revenue Service
Motor Fuel Bright Meadows 2005 Bonds
Tax SSA#1 Debt Service
REVENUES COLLECTED
Property taxes $ - $ 23970 $ -
Utility taxes - - 270,998
Intergovernmental
Motor fuel tax 496,959 - -
Other 164,336 - -
Investment income 200 60 15
Total revenues collected 661,495 24,030 271,013
EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General government - 13,596 -
Public works 37,317 3 .
Capital outlay 384,065 - -
Debt service
Principal . - 225,000
Interest and fiscal charges - - 50,030
Total expenditures paid 421,382 13,599 275,030
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID 240,113 10,431 (4,017)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 400,000 - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 400,000 - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BATLANCES 640,113 10,431 (4,017
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 926,529 107,631 23,196
FUND BALANCES, APRIL. 30 $ 1566642 % 118,062 § 19,179
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Debt Service Permanent

2010 Bonds 2011 Bonds

Debt Service Debt Service  Working Cash Total

$ - $ - $ 8224 $ 32,194

192,017 359,345 E 822,360

= - - 496,959

: - - 164,336

15 38 62 300

192,032 359,383 8,286 1,516,239

- 10,250 - 23,846

- - - 37,320

- - - 384,065

110,000 235,000 - 620,000

420,225 04,365 - 564,620

530,225 389,615 - 1,629,851
(338,193) (30,232) 8,286 (113,612)

350,000 - - 750,000

350,000 - . - 750,000

11,807 (30,232) 8,286 636,388

5,301 45,925 665,277 1,773,859

g 17,108 % 15,603 § 673,563 S 2,410,247

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Blgget Actual
REVENUES COLLECTED
Intergovernmental
Motor fuel tax $ 477,673 $ 496,959
Other 271,849 164,336
Investment income 2,299 200
Total revenues collected 751,821 661,495
EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
Public works
Contractual services 1,000 -
Commodities 68,890 12,317
Administrative charges 25,000 25,000
Capital outlay 1,521,776 384,065
Total expenditures paid 1,616,666 421,382
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID (864,845) 240,113
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 400,000 400,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (464.845) 640,113
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 926,529
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,566,642

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
BRIGHT MEADOWS SSA #1 FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

REVENUES COLLECTED
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues collected

EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General government
Contractual services
Public works
Contractual services

Total expenditures paid
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original
and Final
Budget Actual

$ 23,730 S 23,970

268 60
23,998 24,030
25,616 13,596

25 3

25,641 13,599

$ (1,643) 10,431
107,631

$ 118,062

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
2005 BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES COLLECTED
Utility taxes $ 287,000 $ 270,998
Investment income 51 15
Total revenues collected 287,051 271,013
EXPENDITURES PAID
Debt service
Principal 225,000 225,000
Interest and fiscal charges 50,266 50,030
Total expenditures paid 275,266 275,030
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 11,785 4,017)
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 23,196
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 19,179

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
2010 BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES COLLECTED
Utility taxes $ 182,500 $ 192,017
Investment income 72 15
Total revenues collected 182,572 192,032
EXPENDITURES PAID
Debt service
Principal 110,600 110,000
Interest and fiscal charges 420,295 420,225
Total expenditures paid 530,295 530,225
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
COLLECTED OVER EXPENDITURES PAID (347,723) (338,193)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 350,000 350,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 350,000 350,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 2,277 11,807
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 5,301
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 S 17,108

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS

2011 BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

REVENUES COLLECTED
Utility taxes
Investment income

Total revenues collected

EXPENDITURES PAID
Current
General government
Rebates
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures paid

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
$ 388,000 $ 388,000 $ 359,345
123 123 38
388,123 388,123 359,383
7,500 10,250 10,250
285,000 285,000 285,000
94,850 94,850 94,365
387,350 390,100 389,615
$ 773 § (1,977) (30,232)
45,925
$ 15,693




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS
WORKING CASH FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES COLLECTED
Property tax S 6,375 § 8,224
Investment income 1,663 62
Total revenues collected 8,038 8,286
EXPENDITURES PAID
None - -
Total expenditures paid - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 8,038 8,286
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 665,277
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 673,563

(See independent auditor's report.)



ENTERPRISE FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOQIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water and sewer fees § 3,826,244 § 3,883,633
Miscellaneous
Permits and fees - 109,500
Other 1,500 3,150
Total operating revenues 3,827.744 3,996,283
OPERATING EXPENSES EXCLUDING
DEPRECIATION
Water and sewer operations
Personal services 443,430 438 817
Taxes, pensions and insurance 141,775 135,516
Contractual services 2,444,428 2,355,913
Commodities 61,825 80,024
Repairs and replacement 200,785 148,146
Capital outlay 2,615,772 1,091,582
Total operating expenses excluding depreciation 5.908,015 4,249,998
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (2,080,271) (253,715)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 18,857 15,353
Debt service
Principal (110,000) (110,000)
Interest expense (28,983) (28,798)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (120,126) (123.,445)
NET INCOME (LOSS) - BUDGETARY BASIS $ (2.200,397) {377,160)
ADJUSTMENTS TO MODIFIED CASH BASIS
Debt principal payment 110,000
Capitalized assets 1,057,266
Depreciation (1,127,112)
Total adjustments to modified cash basis 40,154
CHANGE IN NET POSITION {337,006)
NET POSITION, MAY 1 40,056,643
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 39,719,637

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Parking lot fees $ 91,000 $ 86,166
Total operating revenues 91,000 86,166
OPERATING EXPENSES
Parking lot operations
Contractual services 10,490 9,972
Commodities 1,375 501
Repairs and replacement 27,722 38,999
Miscellaneous 2,706 2,672
Total operating expenses 42,293 52,144
OPERATING INCOME 48,707 34,022
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 739 31
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 739 31
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 49,446 34,053
NET POSITION, MAY 1 396,090
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 430,143

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NET POSITION ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
April 30,2014
Vehicle Technology Building
Replacement Replacement Replacement Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 188,694 § 87416 § 142,105 § 418,215
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 183,781 49,296 - 233,077
Total assets 372475 136,712 142,105 651,292
LIABILITIES
None . - - -
Total liabilities . -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 183,781 49,296 - 233,077
Unrestricted 188,694 87,416 142,105 418,215
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 372,475 _$ 136,712 § 142,105 § 651,292

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES
PAID AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 3¢, 2014

Vehicle Technology Brilding
Replacement  Replacement  Replacement Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Contributions 5 215888 § 78,750 § 85,254 379,892
Total operating revenues 215,888 78,750 85,254 379,892
OPERATING EXPENSES
Capital outlay 8,721 5,611 - 14,332
Total operating expenses 8,721 5.611 - 14,332
OPERATING INCOME
BEFORE DEPRECIATION 207,167 73,139 85,254 365,560
Depreciation 28,884 4,556 - 33,440
OPERATING INCOME 178,283 68,583 85,254 332,120
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 13 8 12 33
Insurance reimbursement 37,658 - 37,658
Intergovernmental - 1,030 - 1,030
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 37,671 1,038 12 38,721
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 215,954 69,621 85,266 370,841
NET POSITION, MAY 1 156,521 67,091 56,839 280,451
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 3 372475 % 136,712 3§ 142,105 651,292

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from interfund services
Receipts from miscellaneous
Payments to suppliers

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental receipts

Net cash from noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased

Net cash from capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Other miscellaneous receipts
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Vehicle Technology Building

Replacement  Replacement Replacement Total
$ 215888 § 78,750 $ 85254 § 379,892
37,658 . - 37,658
(8,721) (5,611) - (14,332)
244,825 73,139 85,254 403,218
. 1,030 - 1,030
- 1,030 - 1,030
(150,344) (46,531) - (196,875)
(150,344) (46.531) - (196,875)
13 8 12 33
13 B 12 33
94,494 27,646 85,266 207,406
94,200 59,770 56,839 210,308
$ 188,694 § 87416 $ 142,105 § 418215
$ 178283 § 68,583 § 85254 $ 332,120
37,658 - - 37,658
28,884 4,556 - 33,440
$ 244825 § 73,139 § 85254 § 403,218

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Contributions
General Fund $ 159,336 § 159,336 $ 159,336
Water and Sewer Fund 56,552 56,552 56,552
Total operating revenues 215,888 215,888 215,888
OPERATING EXPENSES EXCLUDING
DEPRECIATION
Capital outlay 160,500 175,500 159,065
Total operating expenses excluding depreciation 160,500 175,500 159,065
OPERATING INCOME 55,388 40,388 56,823
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 235 235 13
Insurance reimbursement - - 37,658
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 235 235 37,671
NET INCOME - BUDGETARY BASIS S 55623 § 40,623 94,494
ADJUSTMENTS TO MODIFIED CASH BASIS
Capitalized assets 150,344
Depreciation (28,884)
Total adjustments to modified cash basis 121,460
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 215,954
NET POSITION, MAY 1 156,521
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 372,475

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
TECHNOLOGY REPLACEMENT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Contributions
General Fund $ 60,900 $ 60,900
Water and Sewer Fund 17,850 17,850
Total operating revenues 78,750 78,750
OPERATING EXPENSES EXCLUDING
DEPRECIATION
Capital outlay 57,184 52,142
Total operating expenses excluding depreciation 57,184 52,142
OPERATING INCOME 21,566 26,608
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 150 8
Intergovernmental 2,432 1,030
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 2,582 1,038
NET INCOME - BUDGETARY BASIS $ 24,148 27,646
ADJUSTMENTS TO MODIFIED CASH BASIS
Capitalized assets 46,531
Depreciation (4,556)
Total adjustments to modified cash basis 41,975
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 69,621
NET POSITION, MAY 1 67,091
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 136,712

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

BUILDING REPLACEMENT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Contributions
General Fund $ 70,945 70,945
Water and Sewer Fund 14,309 14,309
Total operating revenues 85,254 85,254
OPERATING EXPENSES
None - -
Total operating expenses - -
OPERATING INCOME 85,254 85,254
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 142 12
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 142 12
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 85,396 85,266
NET POSITION, MAY 1 56,839
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 142,105

(See independent auditor's report.)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CASH BASIS

POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Contributions - other

Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
Interest earned on investments
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Retirement pension
Disability pension
Refund of contribution
Administrative

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR

PENSION BENEFITS
May 1

April 30

Original Final
Budget Budget Actunal
$ 424248 § 424,248 § 427,638
160,000 160,000 164,392
1,000 1,000 -

585,248 585,248 592,030
56,000 56,000 354,297

75,000 75,000 65,615
131,000 131,000 419,912
(19,200) (19,200) (19,886)
111,800 111,800 400,026
697,048 697,048 992,056
258,296 258,296 258,273
84,300 84,300 84,234

5,000 105,000 97,415

33,975 33,975 15,725
381,571 481,571 455,647

3 315477 8 215477 536,409
5,012,614

§ 5,549,023

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - CASH BASIS
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Balances Balances
May 1 Additions Deductions April 30
ALL FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1559881 $§ 1665222 $§ 1,773,682 $ 1,451421
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,559,881 § 1665222 $ 1773682 § 1451421
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable 3 57,556 § 13,293 § 10,152 § 60,697
Other payables 1,502,294 1,651,926 1,763,529 1,390,691
Due to other funds 31 3 1 33
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1559881 $ 1665222 § 1773682 § 1451 A21
BUILDERS ESCROW FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments 3 57,585 3 13,203 § 10,153 $ 60,725
TOTAL ASSETS $ 57h585 3 13,293 § 10,153 § 60,725
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable $ 57556 $ 13293 § 1052 $ 60,697
Due to other funds 29 - 1 28
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 57585 § 13,293 § 10,153 $ 60,725
IMPACT FEE FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2 $ 3 8 - 3 5
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2 $ 3 % - $ 5
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds $ 2 % 3 8 - $ 5
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2 8 3 5 - $ 5

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - CASH BASIS (Continued)
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Balances Balances
May 1 Additions Deductions April 30
LAKEWOOD GROVE SSA #1 FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 806,582 $ 969,331 § 990,064 § 785,849
TOTAL ASSETS $ 806,582 % 969,331 S 990,064 % 785,849
LIABILITIES
Other payables $ 806,582 § 969,331 § 990,064 § 785,849
TOTAL LIABILITIES S 806,582 § 969,331 § 990,064 % 785,849
LAKEWOOD GROVE SSA #3 FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 260,766 S 292,237 § 290432 § 262,571
TOTAL ASSETS ) 260,766 3 202237 § 290432 § 262.571
LIABILITIES
Other payables $ 260,766 $ 202,237 8§ 290,432 § 262,571
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 260.766 8 292,237 § 290,432 % 262,571
LAKEWOOD GROVE SSA #4 FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 434,946 390,358 § 483,033 § 342,271
TOTAL ASSETS 3 434946 $ 390,358 § 483,033 8 342,271
LIABILITIES
Other payables 5 434946 $ 390,358 § 483,033 § 342271
TOTAL LIABILITIES S 434946 S 390,358 § 483,033 § 342,271

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30, 2014

Schedule of Funding Progress
2) UAAL
Actuarial @ asa
Actuarial 1 Accrued 3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31, Assets Entrv-Age /() 2)-(1) Payroll 4/ (5)
2008 $§ 2055947 5 2,846,652 7222% $ 790,705 S 1,864,145 42.42%
2009 1,384,125 2,401,393 57.64% 1,017,268 1,699,152 59.87%
2010 1,618,945 2,602,860 62.20% 983,915 1,518,888 64.78%
2011 1,907,753 2,749,088 69.40% 841,335 1,432,499 58.73%
2012 2,298,161 2,813,782 81.68% 515,621 1,293,636 39.86%
2013 2,869,113 3,115,667 92.09% 246,554 1,319,714 18.68%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required
Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions {ARC) Contributed
2009 $ 178,771 § 178,771 100.00%
2010 166,565 166,565 100.00%
2011 165,731 167.420 58.99%
2012 164,417 164,417 100.00%
2013 149,968 149,968 100.00%
2014 153,495 153,495 100.00%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN
SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL PLAN

April 30, 2014
Schedule of Funding Progress
) UAAL
Actuarial @ asa
Actnarial (1) Accrued 3 Unfonded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL o) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31, Assets Entry-Age 1) /(2 (2) - (1) Payroll /(5
2008 b 64,775 § 232,612 27.85% $ 167,837 $ 96,910 173.19%
2009 49,815 - 0.00% {49,815) 98,958 0.00%
2010 53,897 - 0.00% (53,397) 08,958 0.00%
2011 51,114 - 0.00% (51,114) - 0.00%
2012 55,948 - 0.00% (55,948) - 0.00%
2013 2,081 - 0.00% (2,081) - 0.00%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required
Fiseal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed
2009 % 22,793 $ 22,793 100.00%
2010 13,167 13,167 100.00%
2011 NA NA NA
2012 NA NA NA
2013 NA NA NA
2014 NA NA NA

NA - The Village began participation in the plan in fiscal year 2007. As of April 30, 2011,
the Village no longer contributed to the plan as there were no longer any participating
employees.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

POLICE PENSION FUND
April 30, 2014
Schedule of Funding Progress
@ UAAL
Actuarial “@ asa
Actuarial (1) Accrued 3 Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL {5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
April 30, Assets Entry-Age 1/ 2) 2)- Payroll @)/ 5)
2008 $ 3.615290 § 5,893,880 61.34% $ 2,278,590 § 1,250,304 182.24%
2009 3,382,221 6,581,524 51.39%% 3,199,303 1,303,735 245.40%
2010 4,046,216 7,181,102 56.35% 3,134,886 1,495,709 209.59%
2011 4,481,472 7,840,806 57.16% 3,359,334 1,483,736 226.41%
2012 4,574,871 7,989,295 57.26% 3,414,424 1,378,412 247.71%
2013 5,012,615 8,655,213 57.91% 3,642,598 1,479,479 246.21%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required
Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions {ARC) Contributed
2009 $ 276974 $ 276,974 100.00%
2010 239507 342,824 69.98%
2011 294,349 409,081 71.95%
2012 314,268 459,452 68.40%
2013 395,437 428,533 92.28%
2014 427,638 392,293 109.01%

The Village contributes to the Police Pension Fund based on the State of Illinois Department of Insurance actual
valuation. Fiscal years 2010 through 2014 annual required contributions (ARC) are based on an independent
actuarial valuation.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

April 30, 2014
Schedule of Funding Progress
@ UAAL
Actuarial ) asa
Actuarial gy Accrued 3 Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5 of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
April 30, Assefs Entry-Age {1/ 2 - (1) Payroll 4)/ (5)
2010 $ - $ 175402 0.00% $§ 175402 § 2,911,431 6.02%
2011 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2013 - 285,903 0.00% 285,903 2,707,531 10.56%
2014 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Fiscal Required
Year Employer Contribution Percentage
April 30, Contributions (ARC) Contributed
2010 $ 16,333 b 25,348 64.44%
2011 17,845 25,241 70.70%
2012 9,088 25,241 36.00%
2013 3,061 25,091 12.20%
2014 13,268 25,091 52.88%

Note: The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 45 as of April 30, 2010.
No information is available for prior periods.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

ASSESSED VALUATION

TAX RATES BY FUND
Corporate
Municipal audit
Road and bridge
Garbage
Retirement
Working cash
Liability insurance
Civil defense/ES&DA
Police protection
Police pension

TOTAL TAX RATES BY FUND

TAX EXTENSIONS BY FUND
Corporate
Municipal audit
Road and bridge
Garbage
Retirement
Working cash
Liability insurance
Civil defense/ES&DA
Police protection
Police pension

TOTAL TAX EXTENSIONS BY FUND

TAX COLLECTIONS - ALL FUNDS
Levy collections through year end

PERCENT COLLECTED

SCHEDULE OF TAX DATA
For the Last Nine Levy Years
Levy Year
2013 2012 2011

$ 251,520,156 & 275,111,595 § 321,967,538

0.398 0.433 0.396
0.009 0.008 0.007

0.021 0.019 0.034

0.139 0.126 0.078

0.130 0.122 0.098

- 0.003 0.002

0.048 0.037 0.043

0.002 0.002 0.002

0.440 0.338 0.288

0.199 0.156 0.123

1.386 1.244 1.071

$ 1,001,050 $ 1,191,233 S 1,274,991
22,637 22,009 22,538
52,819 52,271 109,469
349,613 346,641 251,135
326,976 335,636 315,528

: 8,253 6,439

120,730 101,791 138,446
5,030 5,502 6,439
1,106,689 929,877 927,267
500,525 429,174 396,020

§ 3486069 S 3422387 § 3448272
g - § 3410038 $ 3,443,199
N/A 99.64% 99.85%
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Levy Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

§ 363,428,091 $ 404,464,351 §$ 421,556,835 § 407,703,238 §$ 377,475,750 $§ 319,702,385

0.399 0.433 0416 0.386 0.359 0.246
0.006 0.006 0.006 0.008 0.012 0.014
0.030 0.022 0.021 0.029 0.031 0.048
0.069 0.049 0.076 0.078 0.103 0.168
0.084 0.098 0.091 0.118 0.125 0.136
0.001 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.007 0.035
0.046 0.039 0.041 0.050 0.056 0.064
0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 -

0.274 0.147 0.116 0.083 0.076 0.074
0.087 0.073 0.057 0.068 0.065 0.070
0.997 0.869 0.827 0.824 0.835 0.855

$ 1,450,078 § 1,751,331 § 1,753,676 §$ 1,573,735 § 1,355,138 3% 786,468

21,806 24,268 25,293 32,616 45,297 44,758
109,028 88,982 88,527 30,992 76,099 117,115
250,766 198,188 320,383 318,009 388,800 537,100
305,280 396,375 383,617 481,090 471,845 434,795

3,634 4,044 8,431 12,231 26,423 111,896
167,177 157,741 172,838 203,852 211,386 204,610
3,634 4,044 4,216 4,077 3,775 -
995,793 594,563 489,006 338,394 286,882 236,580
316,182 295,259 240,287 277,238 245,359 223,792

$§ 3623378 $ 3514795 $§ 3486274 $  3,322234 $ 3,111,004 $ 2,697,114

§ 3600578 § 3503869 $ 3481655 $ 3,319,067 $ 3,106020 $ 2,684,166

99.37% 99.69% 99.87% 99.90% 99.84% 99.52%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATION BY TYPE OF PROPERTY

For the Last Ten Levy Years

Tax

Levy

Year Real Estate Railroad Total
2004 $ 243,920,458 §$ $ 243,920,458
2005 319,702,385 - 319,702,385
2006 377,475,750 - 377,475,750
2007 407,703,238 407,703,238
2008 421,556,835 - 421,556,835
2009 404,464,351 404,464,351
2010 363,428,091 - 363,428,091
2011 321,967,538 - 321,967,538
2012 275,111,595 - 275,111,595
2013 251,520,156 - 251,520,156

(See independent auditor's report.)



Village of Round Lake 54
Special Events Committee
Meeting Dates 2015
442 N. Cedar Lake Road
All meeting times will be at 6:00 P.M.

February 2™ and 17th

March 2™ and 16™

April 6™ and 20"

May 4™ and 18"

June 1% and 15®

July 6" and 20™

August 3™ and 17"

September g

October - No Meetings Scheduled
November 2™ and 16"

December - No Meetings Scheduled

Notes:
¢ The 2™ meeting in February will be held on Tuesday, February
17", The Village Hall will be closed on Monday, February 16
in observance of the President’s Day Holiday
o The 1¥ meeting in September will be held on Tuesday,
September 8, The Village will be closed on Monday,
September 7" in observance of the Labor Day Holiday

Special Event Dates

Memorial Day Parade — Monday May 25, 2015

Arbor Day is scheduled for Saturday, TBD

4™ of July Parade — Saturday July 4, 2015

National Night Out - August 4, 2015

Home Town Fest is scheduled for — TBD

Tree Lighting is scheduled for Friday, December 4, 2015




VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: AMENDMENT TO FIRE CODE Agenda Item No. 7.1

Executive Summary:

Approximately a month ago staff met with a business owner that was willing to purchase property and
relocate to the Village of Round Lake. However, due to the significant costs for fire suppression the
business owner was hesitant to move forward with the project and as of today has not purchased the
property. The fire suppression cost has been brought up a number of times in the last year by other
developers and business owners.

Therefore, to remain competitive with surrounding communities and to support development, staff is
recommending changes to the fire code. Specifically, section 15.04.020 — amendments and revisions,
“Regardless of any conditions allowed in this section, all new commercial, industrial, and residential
other than R-3 uses, shall be provided with an automatic sprinkler system.” The following would be
replaced without any revisions and Section 903, Automatic Sprinkler Systems of the 2006 Internal
Building Code would be referenced in its entirety.

Attached is an Ordinance changing the Village Code, a memorandum from the Village Attorney, a copy
of the Village’s Fire Code, Chapter 15.44 (and the area to be changed), the 2006 International Building
Code Section 903 — Automatic Sprinkler Systems, and Chapter 3, Use and Occupancy Classification of
the 2006 International Building Code. Such classifications in Chapter 3 clarify the type of businesses
contained in the grouping of section 903.

Recommended Action:

Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Round Lake Village Code, 2006, as Amended, by Rescinding a Local
Amendment to the Building Code Related to Auto matric Sprinkler Systems in Village Buildings.

Committee: - Meeting Date: 1/5, 1/19, and 2/2/15
Lead Department: Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator
Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Item Budgeted: E'Yes ENO ENIA XX XX-XX-XXXKK -
Ttem Requested
Y-T-D Actual

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed Amount Encumbered
explanation of what account(s) the overage will
be charged to will be provided in the Executive
Summary or attached detail.

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Request is over/under budget:
Under|-
Qver|-

U:AHR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\02.02.15 Amendment to Fire Code.doc




ORDINANCE NO. 15-0-__
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROUND LAKE VILLAGE CODE, 2006,
AS AMENDED, BY RESCINDING A LOCAL AMENDMENT TO
THE BUILDING CODE RELATED TO AUTOMATIC
SPRINKLER SYSTEMS IN VILLAGE BUILDINGS

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees (hereinafier collectively referred to
as the “Village Board”) of the Village of Round Lake, Lake County, Illinois (hereinafier the
“Village”), finds that certain amendments to the Round Lake Village Code, enacted in 2006, are
not in the bests interests of public health, safety, morals and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Village Board further finds that rescinding a portion of the 2006
amendments to the Round Lake Village Code provides for the protection of the public health,
safety, morals and welfare, and is otherwise in the public interest; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES of the Village of Round Lake, Lake County, Illinois, as follows:

SECTION1: The foregoing findings and recitals are hereby adopted as Section 1 of this
Ordinance and are incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein.

SECTION2: The Municipal Code of the Village of Round Lake, as amended, shall be
further amended in Chapter 15.04, Building Code Adopted, in the manner and form shown below
with additions being underlined and deletions being shown in strikethrough text, so that Section
15.04.020, as it references Section 903.2.1 through Section 903.2.10.3 of the International

Building Code, 2006 Edition, shall hereafter provide as follows:

903.2.1 through 903.2.10.3 These provisions of the Intermational Building Code, 2006
Edition, shall be readopted as though fully set forth herein.




SECTION3:  That the Village Clerk is directed hereby to publish this Ordinance in
pamphlet form, pursvant to the Statutes of the State of Ilinois.

SECTION4:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and afier jts

passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blanvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:



Tressler,.,

MEMORANDUM
To: Mayor MacGillis and Village Board
Cc: Steve Shields, Village Administrator
From: Michael F. Zimmermann and Luke Glisan
Date: January 2, 2015
Re: Proposed amendment to the fire suppression requirements in the Round
Lake Village Code
Introduction

This memorandum provides relevant information for discussion at the January 5, 2015
Committee of the Whole Meeting concerning a potential amendment to the fire suppression
requirements in the Round Lake Village Code. The Round Lake Village Code currentiy provides,

in Section 15.04.020:

Regardless of any conditions allowed in this section, all new commercial,
industrial, and residential other than R-3 uses (single family, duplex and
townhouse residence), shall be provided with an automatic sprinkler system.

Examples of Other Ruricipalities

Nelghboring municipalities have a variety of differing standards for fire suppression. As you will
see in the examples below, many municipalities set a square footage threshold that must first
be met for fire suppression to be required. Municipalities also frequently distinguish between
requirements for new construction, as opposed to requirements for existing buildings,

Example 1. Round Lake Beach
An automatic sprinkler system shali be provided throughout a fire area containing a Group A-3

or Business Group B occupancy where one of the following conditions exists:
1. The fire area exceeds 12,000 square feet (1115m?).
2. The fire area has an occupancy load of 300 or more.
3. The fire area is located on a floor other than the level of exit discharge.

An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all fire areas including basements
ctontaining a Group R-1 occupancy, R-2 occupancy, R-4 occupancy and throughout all dwelling



units in conformity with Village Ordnance #02-03-02.

Example 2. Mundeleln
Buildings or structures which are newly constructed are required to install an NFPA 13

compliant automatic sprinkier system throughout the entire building, which shall be maintained
in full operating condition at all times,

An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in existing buildings that change from one
occupancy classification to another occupancy classification, as defined In Chapter 2 of the code

as follows.

From any occupancy classification to Business Group B, where one of the following conditions

exists:
1. The fire area exceeds 12,000 square feet;
2. The fire area has an occupant load of 300 or more;
3. The fire area is located on a floor other than the level of exit discharge;

4. From any occupancy dassification to Miscelianeous Group U.

Exceptions:
1. One and two family residence and accessory structures related thereto, unless specified

elsewhere In this code.

2. Buildings and structures that are classified as Miscellaneous group shall not be required
to Install a required NFPA 13 compliant sprinkler system when all of the following are
met:

a. Have a maximum floor area of 1000 square feet:

b. Are a maximum of two stories in height

¢. Have a maximum building height of 25 feet, as measured to the average “mean”
of the butiding or structure;

d. Have a minimum separation to other buildings or structures of 20 feet;

e. Cannot be used for storage of hazardous materials;

f. Shall have heat and/or smoke detectors, supervised by the Village of Mundelein
Dispatch System in accordance with Section 907.2.2.

Example 3. Village of Volo
New construction — Automatic sprinkler systems shall be installed in all new commercial and

industrial buildings of one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet or more, gross bullding
area.  Automatic sprinkler systems shall be installed in all new health care, Institutional,
education, hotels, motels, dormitories, non-residential day care, and bed and breakfast
facilities, and buildings with three (3) or more dwelling units regardless of size. Automatic
sprinkler systems shall be installed in accordance with the National Fire Protection Assaciation
("NFPA”) standard no. 13, 2010 edition. The system shall also have the approval of the village
fire code official in respect to design, installation, and number of fire zones. In the event that
municipal water is not avallable at the time of the new construction the sprinkler systems shall
be pre-piped within the building with a fire department connection and tied to the municipal
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water system when it becomes available. This exception only applies to facilities amended by
this ordinance.

Existing buildings — If an existing building Is enlarged to three thousand (3000) square feet or
more the building and/or the addition shall be equipped with a sprinkler system and a one hour
fire rating shall protect the existing structure.

Example 4. Wauconda
New construction. Automatic sprinkler systems shall be installed in al new commercial and

industrial occupancies of one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet or more, gross building
area. Automatic sprinkler systems shall be installed in all new health care, institutional,
education, hotels, motels, dormitories, non-residential day care, and bed and breakfast facilities
regardiess of size. Automatic sprinkler systems shall be installed in accordance with the
National Fire Protection Association Standard No. 13, 2002 Edition. The system shall also have
the approval of the Village Fire Marshal in respect to design, installation, and number of fire

Zones,

Existing bulldings. if the structure is larger than two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet
gross bullding area and if the structure Is enlarged in any manner, a sprinkler system shall be

installed.

Commitiee of the Whole Discussion
~2TrTiitee or the Wihoie Discussion

The examples above demonstrate that municipalities have discretion in establishing fire
suppression standards. However, there are certaln fire suppression standargs that
municipalities generally adhere to, such as those set forth by the National Fire Protection

Association.
The Office of the Village Administrator recommends establishing a 12,000 square foot threshold
as part of the Village’s requirements for automatic sprinklers in existing buildings. As seen in

the examples above, neighboring municipalities have adopted an identical square footage
threshold as one part of a multi-factor standard to determine if a Particular building needs

automatic sprinklers.

Following the discussion by the Committee of the Whole, the Village’s attorneys will review the
proposed fire suppression standard to ensure compliance with all applicable legal guidefines.

Page 3 of3



Round Lake, IL. Code of Ordinances gbout:blank

Chapter 15.44 - FIRE CCDE ADOPTED
Sections:

15.44.010 - International Fire Code, 2006 Edition, adopted,

That a certain document, three copies of which are on file in the office of the clerk of Round Lake,
being marked and designated as the International Fire Code, 2006 Edition, as published by the
International Code Council, be and is adopted as the Fire Code of the village of Round Lake, in the state

of inois for regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from fire and explosion
hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, materials and devices,

and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the eccupancy of buiidings and premises in as
herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefore; and each and
all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Fire Code on file in the office
of the village of Round Lake are referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this
chapter, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 15.44.020 of

this chapter,
(Ord, 07-0-05 § 1 (part)

15.04.020 - Amendments and revisions.
The following sections of the International Fire Code, 2006 Edition, are amended and revised as

hereinafter stated:
Section 101.1. Insert; Village of Round Lake
Section 109.3. Insert: Misdemeanor, $750, 180 days
Section 111.4. Insert: $50, $750

Section 201.3. Delete reference to the International Plumbing Code and replace with Illinols

Plumbing Code.
;}i{ Section 903.2.1 thru Section 903.2.10.3. Delete this section in its entirety and substitute in jts *s}g
" place the following: _

Regardless of any conditions allowed in this section, all new commercial, industrial, and
residentlal other than R-3 uses (single family, duplex and townhouse residences), shall be provided

with an autamatic sprinkler system.
Section 907.1.2.1. Add the following to this section:

The transmission of all required automatic fire alarm signals shall be by wireless radio

transmisslon to an approved location.

Section 903.3.5. Delete reference to the International Plumbing Code and replace with lliinois
Plumbing Code.

Section 912.5. Delete reference to the International Plumbing Code and replace with Hlinois
Plumbing Code.

1of2 172205 2-<1 ppq
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Round Lake, I1. Code of Ordinances sbout:blan}

Section 2211.2.3, Delete refa

rence to the International Plumbing Code and replace with
illinois Plumbing Code.

Section 2704.2.2.6. Delete reference to the international Plumbing Code and replace with
Hiinois Plumbing Code.
The geographic limits referred toinS

ections 3204.3.1.1 thru 3804.2 of the 2006 International
Fire Code are esta blished as foliows:

Section 2204.3.1.1 (geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in
Stationary containers is prohibited): Viliage of Round Lake.

Section 3404.2.9.5.1

(geographic limits in which the storage of Class | and Class || liquids in
above-ground tanks outsi

de of buildings is prohibited): village of Round Lake.

Section 3406.2.4.4 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class | and Class Jj liquids in
above-ground tanks Is prohibited): Village of Round Lake,

Section 3804.2 (geographic limits in which the sto

rage of liquefied petroleum £3s is restricted
for the protection of he

avily populated or congested areasy: Village of Round Lake,

Chapter 45,

Delete all references to the International Piumbing Code and replace with lllinois
Plumbing Code.

(Ord. 07-0-05 5 1 (pory)



FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

[F] WIRELESS PROTECTION SYSTEM. A system or a
part of a systean chat can transmit and receive signals without
the uid of wire.

[F] ZONE. A defined ares within the protected premiges. A
zone can define an area from which a signal can be received, an
area to which a signal can be seot or an anea in which a form of
comtrol can be executed.

"~ SECTION 903
AUTOMATIC SPRINKL.ER SYSTEMS
{F] 913.1 General, Antomatic sprinkier systems shall comply
[F1903.1.1 Alternafive protection. Aliernstive automatic
firg-extinguishing systems complying with Section 904
ghall be permiiied in lico of antomatic sprinkler protection
‘where recognized by the applicable standard and approved
by the fire cods official.

IF] 963.2 Where reqaired. Approved automatic sprinkler sys-
tems in new baildings avd stuuctures shallbcpumdedmlhe
locations described in this section. -

jes and standby engives, provided those spaces or areas are
equipped throughout with an stomatic fire elamn systern

andmsepnmdﬁmmemmdﬂ'ofd:ebmdmgbyﬁm
batriers consisting of not less Than 1-hour fire-resis-
tance-rated walls and 2-hour fire-resistance-rated floos/
ceiling assembles,

[F]9683.2.1 Group A. An antomatic sprinkier system shall
ummmmmmmmww

as Groop A occupagrcies &5 in this section. For
Gaoup A-1, A-2, A-3 and A-4 ocoupancies, the antomatic
sp:mkiusystemshmbe throughout the floor ares

provided
where the Group A-I, A2, A-3 or A4 occopancy is
locsted, and in all floors between the Group A oocupsucy
and the level of exit discharge. For Group A-5 occapancies,.
the anfomatic speinkler system shall be provided in the
spaces indicated in Section 903.2,1.5.
¥ 903.2.1.1 Grobp A-1. An antomatic sprinkler sys-
tem shall be providad fior Group A-} occupancies wheze
one of the foliowing conditions exisis: .
1. The fire area exceeds §2,000 sqguare feet (1115
m?).
2. 'The fire ercahas an occupant Ioad of 300 or mare.
3. The fire area is located on a floor other than the
level of exit discharpe.
4, The firc area coatains & multitheater complex.
[F1 903.2.1.2 Group A-2. An anlomatic sprinkler sys-
tem shall be provided for Gronp A-2 occupancies where
one of the following coaditions exists:
1. The fire area exceeds 5,000 square feet (465 w?);
2. 'The fire area has an occupant Joad of 100 ormore;
or

T4

3. The fire ares is located on a floor other than the
fevel of exit discharge,
{F} 903.2.1.3 Gromp A-3. At automatic sprinkler sys-
tem shall be provided for Group A-3 occupancies where
one of the following condiions exists:
1. The fire area excoeds 12,000 square feet (1115
m?).
2. The fire area has an occupant Joad of 300 or more.

3. ‘The fire area is located on a floor other than the
level of exit discharge.

Exception: Areas uscd cxciusively as participant

sports srens where the main floor wrea is located at the

same [evel as the leval of exit discharge of the main

eatrence and exit.

[F} 903.2.1.4 Grovp A-4. An antomatic sprinkier sys-
tanstnnbeprwidedfm'ﬁzpr4 occupancies where
one of the following conditons exists:

1. m’l'l;)e‘ﬁre area exceeds 12.000 scuare feet (1115

2. The fire areahas m occupaat load of 300 or more.

3. The fire area is located on & floor other than the
level of exit dischargs, -

Escepiion: Arens used exclusively as participant

sports areas where the main floor area is located at the

same Jevel as the level of exit discharge of the main

entrance and exit

{F] 903215 Group A-S. An antomatic sprinkier sys-
tem shall be provided for Group A-5 octupancies in the
following sreas; concession stands, retail areas, press
boxes and other accessory use areas in excess of 1,000
square feet (93 m?).
[¥1903.2.2 Growp E. An avtomatic sprinkler system shall
be provided for Group E occupancies as follows:
L,, Theonghout all Gronp E fire areas greater than 20,000
square feet (1858 m?) in area.
2. Throughout gvery portion of edurations] buildings
below the level of exit discharge.

Excepiion: An automatic sprinkler system is not
required in any fire area of srea below the level of exit

discharpge where every clazsroom throughout the build-
anghasaumonemwmtdmrnsromdlem.
fF] $03.2.3 Group F-I.Anmmmcspnn!danym
shall be provided theoughout all buildings contzining a
Group F-1 occupancy where one of the following condi-
tions exists:
1, Where a Group F-1 fire area exceeds 12,000 square
feet (1115 m®;
2. Wherea Groop F-1 fire ares is located more than three
stories above grade plane; or
3. Where the combined area of all Group F-] fire areas
on all floors, inclading any mezzanines, exceeds
24,000 square feet (2230 m?}.

2006 INTERNATIONAL BULDING CODE®



[¥] 903.2.3.1 Woodwarking aperations. An avtomatic
sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all Group
F-1 occupancy fire areas that contain woodworking
operations in excess of 2,500 square feet (232 m?) in area
which geperate finely divided combustible waste or use
[F] $03.2.4 Group H. Automatic sprinkier systems shall be
provided in high-hazard occupancies zs required in Sec-
tins 903.2.4.1 throngh 203.2.4.3.
[F] 903241 General. Ar automatic sprinkler system
shall be installed in Group H occupancies.

1F] 903.2.4.2 Group H-5. An antomatic sprinkler sys-
tem shall be fnstalled throughout budldings containing
"Growp H-5 occupancies. The design of the sprinkder sys-
tom shall not be less than that required by this code for
the oocupancy hazard classifications in accordance with
Table 903.2.4.2. Where the desipn ares of the sprinkler
system consists of a coidor protecied by one yow of
sprinkless, the maximum number of sprinklers required
to be caleulated is 13,
* [FITABLE 903.24.2 -

- GRAOUP H.5 SPRINKLER DESIGN CRITERIA

. OCCUPANGY HAZARD
LOCATION - CLASSIFICATION

Service coridors Ordinary Hazard Group 2

Storage moapis withont dispensing | Ordinary Hazud Groap 2

Storape rooms with dispessing Extra Hazetd Group 2
Coridors Ordinary Hazard Group 2 _

[F] 503.24.3 Pyroxylin plastics. An mutomatic sprin-
kler system shall be provided in baildings, or portions
therwof, where cellofose titrate il or pyroxylin plastics
are manufactured, stored or hamdled in quantities
exceeding 100 pounds (45 kg).

¥} 903.2.5 Group L. An aotomatic sprinkler system shall

be provided throughout buildings with a Groep I fire area.
Excepfion: An automatic sprinkier system installed in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.2 0r 903.3.1.3 shall be
allowed in Group I-1 facilities.

[F1503.2.6 Group M. An antomatic sprinkler systern shall
be provided throughout tuikdings containing a Group M
occupancy where one of the following conditions exisis:
1. Where a Group M fire area exceeds 12,000 square
feet (1115 m?);
2. Where a Grovp M fire area is Jocated more than three
storics above grade plane; or
3. Wheyrs the combined zrea of all Group M fire arcas on
all floors, including any mezzanines, exceeds 24,000
square feet (2230 m¥).
Kler system shall be provided in accordance with the
Insernational Fire Code in gll buildings of Gronp M
where storage of merchandise is in high-piled o reck
Storage armays.

2006 INTERNATIONAL BUEDING CODE®

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTERS

[F1 993.2.7 Group R. An automatic sprinkier system
installed in accordance with Section 9033 shall be provided
th:wghomallbuildinxlwhhaﬁmupkﬁmm

[¥F1903.2.8 Group S-1. An antomatic system shall
be provided throughout all buildings comumns a Group

8-1 occupancy where one of the following conditions
£xiste:

1. & Group S-1 fire area exceeds 12,000 square fect
(1115 m?);

2, A Group 5-1 fire arca it Jocaied more than three sto-
ries above grade plane; or

3. The combined area of all Group S-1 firt areas on all
floors, including any mezzamines, exceeds 24,000
suare feet (2230 m?).

[F] 993.2.8.1 Repair garages. An antomatic sprinkier

system shall be provided throughout all boildingx ased 25
repair garages in accordance with Section 408, as shown:”

1 Buildmgstwocrmmsmmhdﬂl.mludhg
basemeals, with a fire ares containing a repair
garage exceeding 10,000 square foet (929 m?),

2. One-story buildings with a fire area containing a
;;c!pjmmgeexmedmglmqsqueﬂ(llls

. 3. Buildings with a repair guage servicing vehicles
patked in the baserent.

{¥1903.2.3.2 Bulk storage of tires. Buildings and struc-

turss where the area for the storage of tires excaeds

mmmtssﬁm‘)nbaubeeqﬂppadmm

with an aotomatic syetem in accordance with

Section 903.3.1.1.

[F]963.2.9 Group S-2. An mutomatic sprinkler system shall

be provided diroughout buildings clagsified a3 enclosed
parking garages in accordance with Section 405.4 or where
Iocated beneath other groups.

Ezception: Enclosed pasking garages located beneath

Group R-3 cocupanacies.

[F1 $63.2.9.1 Commercinl parking garages. An auto-

matic sprinkier systemn shall be pravided throughoot

buildings ased for storage of commercial trcks orbuses

vahm:heﬁreamcxneedssmosqnaw&u(mnﬂ.
{F1 963.2.10 Windowless stories in all
ammcspmkhsysmshaﬂbeinshlledm&lommns
set forth in Sections 903.2.10.1 throngh 963.2.10.1.3.

Exception: Group R-3 and Group U.

{F1 903.2:10.1 Stories and basements without epen-
my.Anaummahnsmnldusymmllbemlled
throughont every story or basement of all

where the floorarea exceeds 1,500 square feet (1394 m?)
and where there is not provided at least one of the follow-
ing types of exterior wall cpenings:

Y. Openings below grade that Jead directly to gromd
level by axi extarior stairway complying with Sec-
tion 1009 or an cutsids ramp complying with Sec-
tion 1010, Openings shell be loeated in each SO

L
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linear feet (15 240 mm), ot fraction thereof, of
extesior wall i the story on ai Jeast one gide.

2. Openings entirely above the adjaining ground
Jeve] winling at least 20 square feet (1.86 o¥) in
cach 50 Iinear feet (15 240 mm), or fraction
theseof, of exterior wall ir the story on at Jeast one
side.

[F] 903.2.16.1.1 Opeaing dimensions aod aceess.

shall have a minimom dimension of not less
than 30 inches (762 wmm). Such openings shall be
accessible to the fire department from the exterior and
shelinot be obstructed ina manner that fire fighting or
rescae cammof be accomplished from the exietior.

[F]903.2.10.1.2 Opexings on one side only. Where
openings in a story are peovided on only one side and
the opposite wall of such story is mare than 75 feet (22
860 mm) from such openings, the story shall be
equipped thronghout with an approved aptomatic
speinkier gystem, or openings 2 specificd above shall
be provided on at least two sides of the story.

[F] 993.2.10.1.3 Basements. Where any portion of a
basement is located more than 75 fect {22 860 mm)
from openings reqguired by Section 903.2.10.1, the
basement shall be eguipped throughout with an
approved automatic sprinkler system.

[F1963.2.10.2 Rebbich and nts chies. An automatic
sprinkler system shall be mstafisd et the top of rubbish
and linen clrutes and ta their terminal woms. Chutes
exfeading through three or more floors shall have addi-
tioual speinkler hegds instafled within such chutes 2t
alternate floors. Chute sprinkiers shall be accessible for
sezvicing,
{F1503.2.10.3 Buildings 5% feet or more in helght, An
autoimatic sprinkler systern shall be installed dhroughout
buildings with a floor leve! having an occupantlead of 30
or more that is locwied 55 feet {16 764 mm) or more
above the lowestleved of fire department vehicle access.

Exceptiong: :
1. Airport contrel fowess.
2. Open parking structures,
3. Occupancies in Group F-2.

[F] 9632.11 Doring coustroction. Automsric sprinkler
systems required during construction, alteration and demo-
Kition operations shall be provided in accordance with the
[¥] 983.2.12 Other hazawds, Antomatic sgeinkier protec-
tion shall be provided for the hazards indjcated in Sections
903.2.12.1 and 903.2.12.2.

[F] 903.2.12.1 Dueds conveying hazerdous exhmusis.
Where reguired by the International Mechanical Code,
automatic sprinkless shall be provided in ducts convey-
ing hazardous exhaust, o flammable or combustible
materials

: Ducts in which the [argest cross-seetional
dismeterof thedurt is less than 10 inches (254 mm}.

[F] 903.2.12.2 Commercial cooking operations. An
automatic sprinkier system shall be installed in commer-
¢inl kitchen exhaust hood and duct system where an
automatic sprinkler system fs used to comply with Sec-
tiog 904,

IF] 903.2.13 Other reqaired suppression systeras, In
addition to the requirements of Section 303.2, the mrovi-
siony indicated in Table 903.2.13 also require the inssalls-
tion of a suppression system for certain buildings and areas.

TABLE 503.2.43
ADDITICNAL SUPPRESSION SYSTEMS
SECTION SUBJECT
4028 Covercd malls
403.2, 4033 High-rise buildings
404.3 Atrims
4053 Underground stroctwes
4075 Group 12
4106 Stagos
4114 Special amusement buildings
- 412.25,41236 Ajrcrafl bangars
415624 Geoup H-2
4164 . Flammahi= finishes
4174 Dirying roduns
507 Updimited srea beildings
508.2 Incidentol groapcas - |
1025.623 _ Smatko-protected axscwbly geating
Sprinkder systom requimments 13 set forth in
IFC Sertion 903.2.i3 o&tmmmfm

{F] 903.3 Instailafion reguirements. Automatic sprinkler
systens shafl be designed and installed in accordince with Sec-
tions 903.3.1 throngh 903.3.7.

{F]903.3.1 Standards. Sprinkier systems shall be designed
and installed in aceordamece with Section 903.3.1.1,
903.3.1.2 0+ 503.3.1.3.

[F]1903.3.1.1 NFPA 13 spriokler systems, Where the
provisions of this code requirs that & building or partion
thereof be equipped thronghout with an sutomatic sprin-.
kler syswem in accordance with this section, sprinkiers
ghall be instelled throughout in accordance with NFPA
13 except as provided in Section.

] 903.3.1.1.1 Exesnpé locations, Avtomatic sprin-
klers shalf ot be required in the following rooms or
areas where snch rooms or areas are protected with an
approved automatic fire detection Sysiem, in accor-
dance with Section 907.2, that will respond ¢o visible
or invisthle particles 6f combustion, Sprinklers shall
not be omitted from any room metely because it is
danip, of fire-resistanee-raled coostraction or con-
tains electrical equipment.
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1. Any room wheye the application’ of water, or
fiame and water, constilutes & serious life or fire
hazand,

2. Any room or gpace where sprinklers are consid-
ered undesirable becanse of the pature of the
contents, when approved by the fire code offi-
Caal

3. Genexator end transformer rooms separated
from the remainder of the building by walls and
floor/ceiling or rooffceiling assemblies having
aﬁre-reaislmmﬂngofnothssmzm

Toa Inmomsormibﬂmofmmhmﬁbla
constroction with wholly noncombustible con-
tenits.-

[F1 903.3.1.2 NFFA 13R gystems, Where
aﬂowedmhﬂdinpof&nupk,upmmdﬁmhding&w
staries in height, aatomatic shall be
instafled throughout in accordence with NFPA 13R.

{F] 583.3.1.2.1 Balronies snd decks. Sprinkler protec-
tion shal be provided for exterior baloonies, decks and
ground floor patios of dwelling units where the building
isoﬂype\fmnuim. Skiewall sprinklers that aze
used io protect such arees shall be penmitted to be
located such that their deflectors are within 1 inch (25
mm) o & inchies (152 mm) below the stracmal mem-
bers and & maximum distence of 14 inches (356 mm)
bdwﬂtda&o{ﬁemmmd&&sﬂm
are constracied of open wood joist constroction,

{F] $033.1.3.NEFFA lsnaprmﬂu-sym. Where
allowed, awtomatic sprinkler systems in one- and
two-family dwellings shall be installed throughout in
acoordance with NFPA 13D,

[F] 96332 Quick-response and residential sprinkiers,

.Whuemmﬁcspmﬂu:sysmmmqmedhyﬁm

code, quick-response or recidential automatic sprinkiers
shall be installed in the following areas in accordance with

Section 903.3.1 and their listings:

L m@mmwﬁwﬁnam&w
containing patiept slesping wnits in Group I-2 in
accordance with this code,

2. Dwe&ngnmmdﬂmmm&oupnmdt-
cocupancices.

3 Iigl:—hamdoemmdaasdﬁneﬂmNFPA 13.

[F1 90333 Obstructed locations. Automatic sprinklers
shall be instailed with doe regard to obstmctions thar will
délay schivation or obstruct the water: distribution pattem.
Antomatic sprinkless shall be installed in or under covered
kiosks, displays, booths, concession stands, or equiproent
that exceeds 4 fieet (1219 moa) in widshs, Not less than a 3-foot
(914 mm) clearance shall be maintained between automatic
sprinkiers and the top of piles of combustibie fibers.
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be automatically actuated unless specifically provided forin
this code.,
[F] $03.3.5 Water supplies. Water supplies for automatic
sprinkler systems shall comply with this section and the
mdrdsmhwwdin&c&on%.a.l.mmbhm
sapply shell be protected. against backflow i accordance
with the requirements of this section and the Internarional
Plumbing Code.
[I]!BS&S.I Pomestic services. Where the domestic
service provides the.water supply for, dhe automatic
ﬁnkhrsymﬂnsnpﬂyshaﬂbemmdmwnh
section.

[} 903.3.5.1.1 Limited area sprinkier systems.
Limited arca sprinkler systems serving fewey thar 20
speinkiers on any single connection are permitted to
‘be comnected to the domestic service where a wet
automatic standpipe is not available. Limited area
sprankler systems connected to domestic water sup-
plies shall comply with each of the following require-
ments:
1. Valves shall not be installed bétween the
domestic water riser congrol valve and the

2. The domestic service shall be capable of sup-
plying the simmltaneovs domestic demand and

the sprinkler demand reiquired o be
cally calculated by NFPA 13,NFPA 13R or
NFPA 13D.

[¥] 993.3.5.1.2 Residential combination services. A
single combination water supply shail be allowed pro-
vided that the domestic demand is added to the sprin-
kier demand as required by NFPA 13R.

{F] $03.3.5.2 Secondury water supply. A secondary
on-site water supply equel to the hydraulically calenlated
sprinkler demzd, includipg the hese stream tequire-
ment, stnﬂbemuvﬂedfurhﬂkmhﬂdingsmm
mic Desiga Category C, I, B or F a3 determined by this
code. The secondary water supply shafl bave a doration
of not less than 30 minutes as detexmined by the occu-
pmqtmrddasnﬁnﬁmmmtdmmmmﬁﬁ.

Exception: Existing buildinps.

[(F] 903.3.6 Hose threads. Fire hose threads and fittings
tised in connection with antomatic sprinkler systems shall
baupmqmbedbylhﬁmwdeofﬁml.

[F] 2034 Sprinkler system manitoring and sianms. All
valves controlling the water sopply for automatic sprinkler syp-
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tems, pumps, tanks, watey levels and temperatures, critical air
pressures and water-flow switches on all sprinkler systems
skall be elecirically supervised.

Exceptions:

L. Automstic sprinkler systems protecting cme- and
two-family dwellings.

2. Limited area systems serving fewer than 20 sprin-
klers.

3. Automatic sprinkler systems installed in accordance
with NFPA 13R where a common sopply main is used
to supply both domestic water and the antoratic
sprinkler systems and a separate shutoff valve for the
atomatic sprinkler system is not providad.

4. Jockey pump control valves that are sealed or Jocked
in the open position.

S5, Conirol valves to commercial kitchen hoods, paint
spray booths or dip tanks that are sealed or Jocked in

6. Valves controlling the fuel sopply to fire pomp
engines that are sealed or locked in the apen position.

7. Trim valves to pressure switches in dry, preaction sod
deluge sprinkler systems that are sealed or locked in
the open position.

MMIMMMWMMWW
Mhmmmmmmmm
an approved centret station, remote supervising station or
proprictary supervising station as defined in NFPA 72 or,
“whea approved by the firc.code official, shall sound an audi-
ble signal at a constanily attended location.

Exceptions:

1. Underground key or hub valves in roadway boxes
w&dby&emnmmpﬂityorpubhcunhym
not reguired to be

2 Backﬂowpwvennnndevwemvalmlouwdm
limited afea sprinkler system supply piping shall
be Jocked in the open position, In occupancies
required to be equipped with a firs alatm system,
the backflow preveuter valves shail be electrically
sapervised by a tamper switch installed in accor-
dance with NFPA 72 and separately annnnciated.

[F1 90342 Alarmis. Approved audible devices shall be
conpected t every automatic sprinkier system. Such sprio-
kler water-flow alarm devices shall be activated by water
fiow equivalent to the flow of a single speinkler of the small-
est orifice size installed in the systemn. Alarm devices shall
be provided on the extesior of the building in an apptoved
location. Where a fire alarm system is installad, actnation of
the antomatie sprinkler system shall actnate the building fire
alamaystem.
Fi 903,43 Floor control valves. Approved supervised
indicating conirol valves shalf be provided at the point of
commeclion tothe riser oneach foor in high-rise buildiogs.
[¥] 903.5 Testing and maintenance. Sprinkler systems shall
be tosted and maintained in accordance with the International
Fire Code.

178

SECTION 904
ALTERNATIVE AUTOMATIC
FIRE-EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS

{F] 9041 General. Automatic fire-extinguishing systems,
other than antornatic sprnkler systems, shalf be dm@ad,
installed, inspected, tested and maintained in accordance with
the provisions of this section and the applicable referenced
standards.
mmmmmmm“gsys-
tems ingtalled as an alternative 1o the required amtomatie sprin-
khsym:ofSwﬁoanbeappmvedbyﬂnﬁmcode
official Automatic fire-extinguishing systems shall nocbe con-
sidered alternativeq for the purposes of exceptions or redoc-
tions ellowed by other requirements of this code.
[F] 994.2.% Conumercial hood and duct systems. Fach
required commercial kitchen exhaust hood and duct system
required by the International Fire Code or the Insernational
MMMICademhma‘IypeIhoodmﬂbeprmm

with an approved automatic fire-extinguishing  system
installed in sccordance with this code.

[F] 9043 hetullation. Antomatic

shallbeimmﬂedinmdmwiﬂlﬂﬁsseeﬁnn.
[F] 994.3.1 Electrical wiring. Electrical witing shall be in
accondance with the ICC Electrical Code.

{F}mm;&mmnﬁcﬁm-umgﬁslﬂngm-

tems shall be antomatically actuated and provided with a

wﬂlmmofmmn:nmmdmmwnh Section
1L1.

MWWMMW
mwmmmmﬁ.mmmmm
closers, window shatters, conveyor openings, smoke end
heat vents and other {eatures necessary for proper operation
of the firc-extinguishing system shall be provided as
m@mmmmmmwm&e

ing gystems

mmmmmmmm«
required fo indicate the operation, of automatic fire-extin-
MWWM?&MN
waring sigms provided to wirmn of pending agent
discharge, Where exposure (0 sutomatic-extinguishing
ggents poses a bazard to persons and a delay is required to
cusure the evacoation of occupants before agent dischargs,
asepamemhgmgnﬂshanbemdadmalﬁtm
peats cnce agent discharge has begun. Andible signals shalt
be in sccondance with Section 907.9.2,
(F1304.3.5 Menitoring. Where 2 building fire alsrm sys-
tem is instadied, automatic Rre-extinguishing systams shell
be mondtozed by the building fire alarm system in accor-
datice with NFPA 72.

[F] 9044 Inspection and testing. Automatic Sre-extinguish-

ing systems shall be inspected end tested in nccordance with

the provisiens of this section prior to acceptance.
[E’IMInspeeﬂmPﬂnrmwnﬂnchngﬁnﬂmzp—
tance tests, the following items shall be inspectad:

f. zzm-dspecxﬁmmformstcmmmdwgnha—
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CHAPTER 3
USE AND OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION

SECTION 301
GENERAL

3011 Seope. The provisicns of this chapler shall control the

classification of all buildings and structures as touse end occn-

pancy.

SECTION 302
CLASSIFICATION
3021 General, Stoctures or partions of structnres shall be
classified with respect o occupancy in one or more of the
gwpslimdbelmhmomorspmﬂmisinmndedlobe
at different times for differeat shall comply
with all of the requirements that are applicable to each of the
for which the room or space will be oconpied. Struc-~
tures with multiple occupancies of uses shall comply with Sec-
tion 508. Where a structure is proposed for a purpase that is not
specifically provided for in this code, such structurs shall be
chssified in the proup that the occupancy most nearly resem-
bles, according to the fire safety and relstive hazand fnvalved.
1. Assembly (see Section 303): Groups A-1, A-2, A-3,
A4 and A-5 '
2. Business (sec Section 304): Group B
3. Educations] (see Sectinn 305): Group B
4. Factory and Indusirial (sco Section 306): Geoups F-{
and ¥-2
5. High Hazand (scc Section 307): Grovps H-1, H-2, H-3,
H4 snd H-S5
6. Institntional (scc Section 308): Gronps I-1,¥-2,I-3 and
4
7. Metcantile (see Section 309): Geoop M
8. Residential (sec Saction 310): Groups R-1, R-2, R-3
and R-4
9. Storage (see Section 311); Groups S-1 and §-2
10. Utility and Miscellanecut (zee Section 312): Group U

SECTION 308
ASSEMBLY GROUP A
303.1 Assembly Group A. Assembly Group A occupancy
includes, amcag others, ihe se of a building or stracture, ors
pmnouumenf.forﬂngﬂhmngdpemnsforpupoaum

as civic, sncial or religious functions; food or drink
consumption; or Awaiting transpartation.
Exceptions:
1. A building nsed for assembly purposes with an otco-
pant load of less then 50 persons shall be classified as
a Group B occupancy.
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2. A rvom or space used for assembly purposes with an
occupant Joad of less than 50 persons aud accessory Io
another occupancy shall be classified a2 a Group B
occupancy or a8 part of that occupancy.

3. A room or used for assembly purposes that is
less than 750 square feet (70 m™) in area and is acees-
sory to another occupancy shall be classified as 2
Group B occupancy or as part of that occupancy.

Assembly occupancies shall include the following:

A-1 Assembly uses, usuelly with fixed seating, intended for
the production and vicwing of the performing acts or
motion pictures inclading, but not Emited to:

Modioa pi !
and coocet halls
Televirion and radio studins admitting an andience
Theaters
A-2 Assembly uses intended for food and/or drink cou-
Bangoet halls
Night clubs
Restanrants
Taverns and bars

A-3 Asgembly uses intended for worship, recreation or
armsement and other assembly uses not clpssified else-
where in Group A inchuding, but nor limited to:

Ammsement arcades
Art galieries
Bowling alleys
Piaces of religious worship m
Commpuity halls
Conrtzooms
Damm halils (pot includivg food or drink consomp-
Exhibition halls
Fuperal pazlors
Gymnasinms (withoot spectator scating)
Indonrmnungngpools(r_ﬁlhmmmﬁng)
Indoor keanis conrté (withiont ing)"
Lecture halls
Libsaries
Museums
Waiting areas in transportarion terminals
Pool and billiard pariore

A-4 Assembly uzes intended for viewing of indoor sporting
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A.5 Assembly uses intended for participation in or viewing
outdoor activities including, but sot Hinited to:

Amusement park stctores
Bleachers

Grandstands
Stadinms

SECTION 304
BUSINESS GROUP B

304.1 Bosiness Group B. Business Group B occupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or structure, or a
portion thereof, for office, professional or service-type transac-
tions, including storage of records and acconnts. Business
occopancies shall include, butnot be limited 1o, the following:
Airpot teaffic eontrol towers
Animal hospitals, keonels and pounds

Barber and beasty shops

Car wash

Civic administration

Chinie—outpatient.

Dry cleaning and lsundries: pick-up and delivery stations
and self-sesvice

Mmmmmmmm

Telephone
Tining and skill developraent not within 2 scheol or
scpdemic program

SECTION 205
EDUCATIONAL GROUP E

305.1 Educationn] Group E. Educational Group E eccupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or stmcture, ora
poetion thereof, by six or more persons at any ons time for edu-
cational through the 12th grade. Religious educa-
tional rooms and religions anditorinms, which are sccessory to
B places of religious worship in accordance with Section 508.3.¢
and have occupant foads of less than 100, shall be classified as
A-3 oocupancies.

395.2 Day care, The use of a building or structure, or portion
thereof, for educational, supervision or personal care services
for maore than five children older than 2V, years of age, shall be
classified as a Group E occupancy. -

SECTION 306
FACTORY GROUP F

306.1 Factory Industrinl Gronp F. Factory Industrial Group
F occupancy includes, among others, the use of a building or

2

structure, o & partion thereof, for assembling, disassembling,
fabricating, finishing, manufacturing, packaging, repair or pro-
cessing operations that are not classified as a Group H hazard-
ots or Group S storage occupancy.

306.2 Factory Industrial F-1 Moderate-hazerd Occupancy.
Factory industrial uses which are not classified as Factory
Industrial F-2 Low Hazard shall be classified as F-1 Moderate
Hazard and shall inclnde, but not be limited to, the following:

Aijrcraft

Appliances

Athletic equipment
Automobiles and other motor vehicles
Bakeries

Millwork (sash & door)
Moﬁonpmmmdmbuslmﬂlming(wﬂmxtm)
Musical instroments

Paper mills or prodects
FPhotographic film
Plagtic products
Printing or publishing
Recreational vehicles
Refuse incineration
Shoes
Soaps end detergents
Textiles

Tobacco

Trailers

Upholstering

‘Wood; distillation
‘Woodworking (csbinet)

3063 Fuctory Industrial F-2 Low-hazard Ocenpancy. Fac-
tory industrial uses that involve the fabrication or manufactur-

-ing of noncombustible materizls which daring finishing,

pecking-or processing do not involve a significant fire hazerd
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shall be classified as F-2 occupancies and shall inclode, but not
be limited o0, the following:

Beversges; op to and including 12-percent aleohol content

Brick and masonry

Ceramic prodacts

Founds; :

Glass prodocts

hs !

Metal products (fabeication and assembly)

SECTION 307
HIGH-HAZARD GROUP H

[F1 307.1 Bigh-hazard Growp H. High-hazard Group H occu-
pancy inclndes, among otbers, the use of a building o stracture, or
2 pwtml thereof, tit involves the manufacting, processing,
geaeration or storage of materials that constitute a physical or
hezlth bazard is quantities in excess of those allowed in control
aneas construcied and located as required in Section 414. Hazard-
ons uses are classified in Groups H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4 and H-5 and
sixall be in accondance with this section, the regnirements of Sec-
tion 415 and the Internationel Fire Code.
Exceptions: The foliowing shall not be classified in Group
H, tuxt shail be classified in the occnpancy thet they most
nearly resembie:

1. Bnildings and stroctures that contain not more than
the maximuom aljowable per control area
of hazardous materials as shown in Tables 307.1(1)
and 307.1(2), provided thet such birildings are main-
tained in accordsmce with the Infemational Fire
Code.

2. Buildings utilizing conirol areas in accordance with
Section 414.2 that contsin not more than the maxi-
mum sllowable quantifies péx conirol arez of haz-
ardous materials as shown in Tables 307.1(1) and
307.12.

3. Buildings and structurcs occupied for the applica-
tion of flammsble fnishes, provided that such build-
ings or areas confornmn to the requirements of Section
416 and the Internarional Fire Code.

4. Wholesale and retail sales and storage of Sammabie
and combustible liquids in mercantile occupancies
conforming to the Infernotional Fire Code.

§. Closed piging containing flaramable or combastible
Tiquids or gascs otilized for the operation of machin-
€5y or equipment.

6. Cleaning establishments that utilize combustible
tiquid solvents having a flask point of 140°F (60°C)
or higher in closed systems employing equipment
isted by an approved testing agency, provided that
this occnpancy is separated from all other areas of
the building by 1-honr fiee bacriers or 1-hour hori-
zontal assembiies or both.

7. Cleaning establishments that wiilize 5 liquid solvent
having a fizsh point at or above 200°F (93°C).
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&. Liquor stores and distributors without bulk storage.
9. Refriperation symems,
10. The storage or utilization of materials for agricul-
furz] purposes on the premises.
11, Stationary batieries tilized for facility emergency
mnnmnpwdpowasq:plymtebmmm-
nmnfnﬁhﬂc&.mvided the batiedes are
provided with safety venting caps and vewilation is
provided in accordance with the Imternational

Mechanizal Code.
12. Cmﬁsimshaﬂnuﬁmiiﬂepmnﬂmhwnhom
prodncts in their orginal nsed in retail

display or commonly used building materials.

13 Buildings and stroctures occupied for asrosol stor-
age shall be classified a3 Grotp S-1, provided that
such conform to the requirements of the
International Fire Code.

14, Display and storage of nonflammable sofid and non-
flammable or nosconibustibie liquid hazardous
materials in quantities not excesding the maximum
allowahlle quantity per control area jn GrovpMor S
occopancies complying with Section 414.2.5.

15. Thbe storage of black powder, smokeless propellant
and gmall ayms peimers in Groops M and R-3 snd
special indnstria) explosive dovices in Groaps B, F,
M and B, provided such storage copfonms to the
guantity limits and requi prescibed in the
International Fire Code.

m.uwmummm
quantity shall conform: 1o the ofﬁmmdg,
incinding Section 414, and the Mnternational Fire Code.

[F] 3072 Definitions. The following words and terms shall,
for the porposes of this section and as used elsewhere in this
code, have the mesnings shown herein.

AEROSOE., A product thet is digpensed from an asnosol con-
tainer by a propellant, -

Aerosel products shall be classified by means of the calcula-
tion of thely chexoical heats of combustion and shalf be desig-
nated Levet 1, 2 or 3.

Level 1 aevosnl produets. Those witha total chemical heat
of comintstion that is less than of equa] to 8,600 British ther-
al anits per poond (Baw/ib) (20 kl/z). .

Lavel 2 aerosol products. Those with a total chemical heat
of cambustion that iy greater than 8,600 B/l (20 ki/g), bat
less than or equal to 13,000 Bta/ib (30 ki/g).

Level 3 aerosol products. Those with atotal chemical heat
combustion that is greater than 3,000 Br/lb (30 ki/g).
AER()SOLCDNmmER.Amalcanmag!morplum
bottle designed to dispense an serosol. Mets] cans shall be lim-
ited to 2 maximum size of 33.3 fHuid cunces (1,000 mi). Glass
or plastic bottles shall be limited to 2 maximim gize of 4 fuid

ounees (118 mi).
BALED COTTON. A nataral seed fiber wrapped in and
secured with industry accepted matetials, vsually consisting of

=
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burtap, wovea polypropylene, polyethylene or cotton or sheet
polyethylene, and secured with steel, synthetic or wire bands or
wire; also includes linters {lint removed from the cottonseed)
end motes (residual materials from the pinning process),

BALED COTTON, DENSELY PACKED, Cotion made into
banded bales with a packing density of at Jeast 22 pounds per
cubic foot (360 keg/m?), and dimensions complying with the fol-
lowing: a kength of 55 inches (1397 + 20 mm), a width of 21
inches (533.42 20 mm) and a height o 27.6 to 35.4 inches (701 to
£99 mmj).

BARRICADE. A stucture that consists of 2 combination of
walls, floor and roof, which is designed to withstand the rapid
welease of energy in en explosion and which is fully confined,
partislly vented or fully vented; or other effective method of
shielding from explosive materials by 4 netural or artificial bar-
rer.

Artificial barricade. An artificial mound or revetment a
minimnm thickness of 3 feet (914 mm).

Naturel barricade. Nahral featores of the ground, such as
hills, or timber of sufficient density that the surrounding
exposures that require protection cammot be seen from the
mzgazine or buflding contzining explosives when the trees
are bare of leaves.

BOILING POINT. The temperature at which the vapor pres-
sure of a liquid equals the atmospheric pressure of 14.7 ponnds
per square inch {psi) (101 kPs) gage or 760 mm of mercury.
‘Where an accurate boiling point is nnavailable for the material
in question, or for mixtares whick do not have a constant bojil-
ing point, for the purposes of this classification, the 20-percent
evaporated point of & distillation performed in accordence with
ASTM D 86 shall be used as the beiling point of the liquid.
CLOSED SYSTEM., The uge of a solid or liquid hazardous
materjal involving & closed vessel or system that remains
product are not liberated outside of the vesselor system and the
product is not exposed 1o the atmosphere during normal opera-
tions; and all nses of compressed pases, Examples of closed
systems for solids and hguids inclode product conveyed
through a piping system into a closed vessel, system or piece of
equipment.

COMBUSTIBLE DUST. Finely divided solid material that is
420 microns or less in diameter and which, when dispersed in
air in the proper proportions, could be ignited by 2 flame, spark
or other source of ignition, Combustible dust will pass through,
a U.S. No. 40 standard sieve,

COMBUSTIBLE FIBERS. Resdily ignitable and free-bum-
ing materials in a fibrous or shredded fonm, such as cocoa fiber,
cloth, cotton, excelsior, hay, hemp, benequen, istle, jute, kapok,
oakum, rags, gisal, Spanish moss, straw, tow, wastepaper, cer-
not include densely packed baled cotton.

COMBUSTIBLE LIQUID. A liquid having a closed cup
flash point at or above 100°F (38°C). Combustible Iiguids shall
be sebdivided as follows:

Class I1. Liguids having a closed cop flash point at or zbove
100°F (38°C) and below 140°F (60°C).

Class IIIA. Liguids having a closed cup flash point at or
abave 140°F (60°C) and below 200°F (93°C).

Class ITIB. Liquids having a closed cup flash point at or
above 200°F (93°C).

The category of combaustible liquids does not include com-
pressed gases or cryogenic fluids.
COMPRESSED GAS. A material, or mixture of materials
which:

1. Is e gas at 68°F (20°C) or less at 14.7 pounds per square
inch atmosphere (psia) (101 kPa) of pressure; and

2. Has a boiling point of 63°F (20°C) or less at 14.7 psia
(101 kPa) which is either liquefied, nonliquefied or in
solution, excepi those gases which have no other health-
or physical-lmzard properties are hot considered 10 be
com until the pressure in the packaging exceeds
41 psia (282 kPa) at 68°F (20°C).

The states of a compressed gas are categorized as follows:

1. Nonliquefied compressed gases are gases, other than
those in solution, which are in a packaging under the
charged pressure and are entirely gaseons at a tampera-
ture of 68°F (20°C).

2, Liquefied compressed gases are gases that, in a packag-
ing under the charged pressure, are partially liquid at a
temperatore of 68°F (20°C).

3. Compressed gases in solution are nonliquefied gases that
are dissolved in a solvent,

4. Compressed gas mixtures consist of a mixtore of twe or
more compressed gases contained in a packaging, the
hazard properties of which are representext by the proper-
ties of the mixtore 2 a whole,

CONTROL AREA. Spaces within a building where quanti-
ties of hezardous meterials not exceeding the maximum
allowable quantitics per control area arc stored, dispensed,
used or handled. See also the definition of “Outdoor control
area” in the international Fire Code.

CORROSIVE. A chemicai that canses visible destraction of,
or irreversible alterations in, living tissue by chemical action at
the point of contact. A chemical shall be considersd corrosive
if, when tested on the intact skin of albino rabbits by the method
described in DOTh 49 CFR, Pect 173,137, such a chemical
destroys orchanges imeversibly the structure of the tissuc at the
point of contact following an exposurs period of 4 hours, This
term does not refer to action on inanimate surfaces.

CRYOGENIC FLUID. A liquid having a boiling point lower
than -150°F (-101°C) &t 14.7 pounds per square inch atmo-
sphexe (psia) (an absolute pressure of 101 kPa).

DAY BOX. A pottable magazine designed to hold explosive
matexials constructed in accordance with the requirements for
2 Type 3 magazine as defined and classified in Chapter 33 of
the Inzernarional Fire Code.
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' e m?zn‘égm
RANIMUM ALLOWASLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF WATERIALS POSING A PRYSICAL HAZARD~ S
THE MAAYERN,
ALLOMABLE . Gis Ges
GUASTTITY IS | Soid pounds | Liguidgations | {cublcdset | Selld pounds | Liquid galtloni | fcublc fead
MATERIAL CLASS EXCEEDED | {cubiciet) | {poumds) | =t NTF) oublcfuel) | {pounds) st NTP}
1§ H2 o B3 12004 120%
Combustible Hquid™* HA H2 or B3 WA 33pe NA NA 3300 N/A
mB NA 13,2007 13,300
Loose (100) (104
e o Qe | 140 H-3 2stel | WA NA NIA NA NA
 Cryogenies flammable N/A H2 NA 45 NA NA 43 NA
| Cryogenics, oxidizing N/A H3 WA 45! NA N/A a5 NA
Division 1.1 H1 L (=¥ NA 0258 (0258 NiA
Division 1.2 H1 ol ({3 NiA 25 0258 NA
Division 1.3 | Hilec2 C b ) A N/A. 1€ oy NA
Bsplogives Division L4 B3 S0F-% (500« N/A 502 (SO KA
Divigion 1.4G H3 1258l NiA NIA NA N/A NA
Divisicats | B 1o (1 N/A 0.25 @.25p NA
Division 1.6 H1 1EmE WA NIA NA NA . N/A
Gaseons N/A 10004 N/A 100048
Flammable gas tiquefied H-2 'Nm 1080 WA . NIA aphe WA
1A H-2 305t 30
Flammahle liqoid 1B and 1C acH3 NA 1208 NA N/A o0 NA
c‘"‘"’hml !M%m NA u“éfs A 120t en WA A 1204+ NA
Fiammabis solid N/A E3 1254+ N/A NA 125 NA WA
uD 1 1es 63 NA 0258 NA
NN A NN
i : | -3 * . . NA
Oxgasio peroxide m H3 {2880 (255 NA 1254 (1250 NA
v NA NL - NL NA N/L NI WA
v WA NL NL NA NL NL NIA
4 H-} 1= {18 NiA. 0.25¢ - 0251 N/A
Orxidizex 3+ B-2orH-3 10ee (111} NA 2 & NA
, 2 B3 25050 (2s0ye NA 25 2350y WA
i N/A 43004 {4,000 N/A 4,005 (4,C00Y NA
- Gaseos NIA NA 1,500% N/A NA 1,500%=
Oxidizing g26 Bouefied B3 NIA 154 NiA N/A 15t WA
{continsed}
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{F) TABLE 307.1(1)—coritinued
WMMEWMCWWAWHMMMMWNGAHYQMHWWJ

GROUP WHEN * STORAGE® USE-CLOSED SYSTEMS®
THE MAXIMUNM :
QUANTITY IS | Solid pounds | Liquid gallons (a::hel Solld pounds | Liquid gations {ﬂi;?ﬁu
MATERIAL CLASS EXCEEDED | (cublciost) (pounds) at NTP) {eublc fecl) fpounds) | sthTP)
Pyrophoric muterial - NA H-2 48 {aps Som5 s (s 1074
- 4 . H g::\ . (;)):r : égs 0.25¢ (025» %.,:
. . 3 -1 or H-2 . (5" . 1 - 104e
Unstable (reactive} 2 . H3 Spae (50¥-* . 2508-¢ 508 50y 25phe
1 WN/A - NL NL "N NL - N/L NL
-3 H2 She . & || NA 5t (& N/A
Water reactive 2 H3 . 504 (5pyhe N/A 500 {50yt N/A
. 1 N/A NL NL - NIA® NL NL NA

For S 1 cubiz foot =0.023 m®, | pound = 0.454 kg, | gadlon =3.785 L.

ML = Not Limlted; NFA = Not Applicabls; UD = Unclassified Detonabls

& For use of contrel aress, sos Section 414.2.

b NWMmmeMnumﬂanhm . .

e mmxmwmmaﬂmmmmMummuwmmwhmmmmming 13;
vecupancics, the quantities dMMWuMMMMmmmmmmwmdwmﬁqM&ﬁ
Mgﬂmﬂgﬁmmhmmmm“mmmmhﬂm individnal containers not exceeding 1.3 gallons.

d.M:xmmlllowablemuwmmhmlNMquWWMNMWMmWMmM' 903.3.1.1. Where
both notcs :

e anmmehlemwhmnwmuﬁmhymwuﬁmuﬂmsmdm:ﬁmwu&ummml
both notes shail be applied accmmmiativety, .

f mmm=MmuMm-mwmwmmmmmmmmmms L1,

£ Pesmitted only ip bufidings equipped throughous with sn suomstic sprinkier systemt in accordance with Section 903.3,1.1.

h Wmmmuqumwmn&mmmwmﬂmhhm :

i hndubuiklng,&emnmmﬂpmtyufaeombuﬁhhliqmddmguymhinmwhdmufﬂdpﬁummﬂhﬁommﬂmwmmpﬁs‘

} Quantifics in pareathesis indicate quantity units in parenthesis sf the head of oach column.

L Amimmqmﬂltyofﬂbpomﬂuhdadcmp!hud!qmdChuBonﬁmuﬂhdwhmMMmmfwnﬁnummwtnaﬂu
ers and the manner of storage ghall be appsoved.

L Nﬁumiﬂtd’ﬂtpymu:hn:umnpnmhmﬂnmm&uwdhmmah%::mhMEmdthﬁ
shall be used.

m.For gallons of liquids, divids the amommt in pounds by 20 in accondance with Section 2703.1.2 of the Jrternarional Fire Code,

n. For storape and digplay quaxtities ju Group M and storage quantities is Group § occupancies m:plmgmsmﬂmmwuﬂmzj(l)mdﬂ&m}

0. Densely packed baled cotton that eamplics with the packing requirements of ISO 8115 shall not be incloded in this mutesial tlass.

p- The SoBowing skall not be incloded in detexmining the muxiomm sllowsble quantities:

1, Liguid or gascous fusd in fael tanks om vehicles.

2 Lignid or gasecas fusl in el tinks on motorized equipment operated fa secondance with this code.

3. Gaseons foels in piping Fystems and Fxed appliances regolated by the Inzermational Fuel Gay Code.
4. Liquid fucis in piping gypterns and fixed appliances regulated by the international Mechanical Code.

[
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. [F] TABLE 207.1(2)
MANIRIUA ALLOWABLE QUARTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL POBING A HEALTH HAZARD =]
FTORAGEY USE-LLOGED SYSTEHNSY USE-OPER SVSTERSY
i [ae . uqﬁigdiqu mﬂuﬁg}m Sosa Hepuid gadons mmﬁm . - | i gotiens
Comrosive S0C0 500 81048 5460 360 810t 1,400 10
| Highly toxic 10 oy 200 0 ] oy 20" 3 Q¥
Toxic 500 (509 s10f 509 (560¥ - 810 125 | sy

Fr 81 I evbicfoot =0.028m’, | posnd = 0454 ke, 1 milop = 3,785 L.
2. For use of countrol areas, see Section 414.2,
b inresail and wholssale sales oocepancies, the ities of medicines,
cent by volums of water-miseible ligoads
aged in individual containers not axeeeding 1.3 palions.

uwmummummm

quantitiesol foodstuffs, contumer.
s anet with the semuinder of the solations not being Aaparable, shall ot be bimited, provided that such matedals are prck-

<. For stonge sl displiy quantitics in Group M and storage quantitics is Grovp S occapancies complying withSection 414.2.4, sce Table 414.2.4(7).
d. The aggregatc quemtity i ure snd fiosage shall not exceed the quantity Dxted for stocage. -

& Quamitins chal] be incresend 100 percent in buildings:
Wheze Note { also applics, the fucrease for both rotes

i withan sntomatic sprinkier in sccordance with Sectica 903.3.1.1.
- tdhroughomt q;pmwd system

L Quantities sinll be incressed 200 porcent when stored in spproved storsge cabinetn, gas cabiness or exhunsted enclosures as specified in the Fusmazional Fire
Code, Whore Niote 2 also applics, the increase for both notes shall be appilied scoumnlaively.

§- Asinglecylinder confyining &u&whdﬂhmﬁh:ﬁsbﬂdmhaﬂmﬁﬂdhﬁﬁuﬂhw:m
able guunity, Two cylinders, 150 pounds or lexs in 2 single contral avc, shall be copsidered s taaximom affowable quantity provided the buildisg
is equipped thronghons with an sotomstic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.

k. Alowed only whea sored fo appeoved exhansted gas cabinets or exhrusted encloxmes as spetified in the uernational Fire Code.

L Quantities in parenihvesis indicuts quantity units in peseathesiy s the bead of ench cohomn.

J. For galiogs of liquids, divide the maoent in povads by 10ir acoordance with Sertion 2763.1.2 of the Inkemaionad Fire Code.

DEFLAGRATION. An exothermic reaction, such as the
cxtremely rapid axidation of a flammahle dust or vapor in air,
in which the reaction progresses throogh the unburned material
atarate Jessthan the velocity of sound. A deflagration can have
an explogive effect. |

DETACHED BUILDING. A scparate single-siory building,
withoo! a basement or cxaw] space, used for the storage or use
ﬁmmmmﬂwmm

DETONATION. An exotheamic reaction chamstierized by the
preseace of 2 shock wave in the omterial which cstablighes and
the material ot & rate greater than the velocity of soutd. The
principal heating méchanism is one of shock compression,
Detonations have an explosive. effect.

DISPENSING. The pouring or transferring of apy material
from a container, tank or similar vessel, whereby vapors, dusts,
furnes, mists or gascs are liberated to the atmosphere, -

EXPLOSIVE. Any chemical compound, mixture or device,
the primary or common purpose of which is to function by
explosion. The term includes, but is not limited to, dynamite,
safety fuses, squibs, detonaring cord, igniter cond, igniters and
display fireworks, 1.3G (Class B, Special). .

The tesm “explosive™ includes any material determinedto be
within the scope of USC Title 18; Chapter 40 and also includes
any material classified as sn explosive other than consumer
fireworks, 1.4G (Class C, Commmon) by the hazardous materi-
als regulations of DOTn 49 CFR. .

High explosive. Explosive material, such ss dynamite,

which can be caused to detonate by means of a No. 8§ test

blasting cap when unconfined. -

2006 IMTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE®

Law explostve. Explosive material thet will bumt oc defis-
grate whea ignited It is charactesized by a rate of reaction
that i less then the speed of sound. Examples of low explo-
sives include, but are not limited to, black powder; safety
fase; igniters; igniter cond; fose lighters; fireworks, 1.3G
(Clazs B, Special) apd propellants, 1.3C,
Moassdetanating explosives. Division 1.1, 1.2 maad' 1.5
. explosives alons or in comblpstion, ar aded into varions
types of ammunition or contsincrs, most of which can be
expected to explode virtually instantaneously when a suall
portion is subjectsd to fire, severe cancussion, impact, the
impalse of an initiating agem or the effect of a considerable
 dischiarge of entrgy from without, Materials that react jn
- fhie manner represent & mass explosion hazard. Snch m
explosive will nonmally cause severe siructural damage to
adjacent objects. Explosive propagation could occur imme-
distely to other items of smmunition and explosives stored
sufficiently close to and pot adequately protected from the
initiatly exploding pile with a time intorval short encugh so
tlmtv;mogmequmﬁ&smbemmidemdasmfw
quantity-distance purposes.
UNDOTe Class 1 explosives. The former clascification
system used by DOTR inclnded the terms “high” and “low™
explosives as defined herein. The following terms further
define explosives under the cuneat system applied by
DOTn for sl explosive materials dofined ag hazapd Class |
matesials. Compatibility group letters are used in concert
with the divisicn to specify further limitations on each divi-
sion noted (i.e., the letter G identifics the materisl 25 4 pyro-
technic substance or anicle comtaining a pyrotechuic
substance and similzr materials).
Divislon 1.1 Explosives that hurve a mass explosion haz-

ard, A mass explosion is one which affects almost the
entive load [nstantancously.
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Division 1.2. Explosives that have a projection hazard
but not a mass explosion hazard,

Division 13. Explosives that have 2 fire hazard and
either a minor blast hazard o 2 miner projection hazard
or boih, bt not 2 masg explosion hazard.

Division 1.4. Explosives that pose a minor explosion
hazard. The explosive effects ars largely confined 1o the
package and no projection of fragments of appreciable
size of range is to be expected. An external fise must not
cause vi instantansous explosion of almost the
entire contents of the package.

Division 1.5, Very insensitive explogives. This division
is comprised of subsiances that have A mess explosion
hazard, but that are so insensitive there is very Httle prob-
ability of mitiation or of transition from burning to dato-
nation under notmal conditions of transport.

Division 1.6, Extremely insensitive articles which do not

have amass explosion hazand, This division is comprised

of articles that contain only extremely inseasitive deto-

uating snbstances and which demonstrate a negligible

bability of accidents] initiation or s

FIREWORKS, Any composition or device for the purpose of
producing a visible or andible effect for entertainment pur-
poses by combustion, deflagration or detonation that mests the
definition of 1.4G Ereworks or 1.3G fireworks as set forth
herein .

FIREWORKS, 1.3, (Farmesiy Clags B, Special Fireworks.)
Large fireworks devices, which are explosive materials,
Tntended for use in fireworks displays and designed to produce
audible or visible effects by combustion, deflagration or deto-
mation. Such 1.3G fireworks include, but ave not limited to, fire-
crackers containing more than 130 milligraws (2 grains) of
explosive compositian, aerial shells containing more than 40
grems of pyrfechiic compesition, and other display piecey
which excead the limita for classification s 1.4G fireworks.
Such 1.3G fireworks are also described as ficeworks, UNO335
by the DOTa

FIREWORKS, 14G. (Formedy Class C, Common Fire-
woﬂu.)Smlllﬁrewaiudcvhuemtainingt_uuimdm
of pyrotechnic composition designed primarily to produce vis-
ible or audible cffects by combustion. Such 1.4G fireworks
which comply with the construction, chemical composition
and labeBng regulations of the DOTa for fireworks, UNO336,
and the U.S. Consumer Prodoct Safety Commission (CPSC)as
set forth in CPSC 16 CFR: Parts 1500 and 1507, are not explo-
sive materials for the purpose of this code.

FLAMMABLE GAS. A material that is a gas at 68°F (20°C)
or less at 14.7 ponnds per square inch atmosphere (psia) (101
kPa) of pressure [a material that has a boiling point of 68°F
(20°C) or less at 14.7 psia (101 kPa)] which:

1. Isignitable at 14.7 psia (101 kPa) when inamixtope of 13
percent or Jess by vohime with air; or

2. Has aflammable range at 14.7 psia (101 kPa) with air of
at least 12 percent, repardless of the lower limit,

The limits specified shall be determined at 14.7 psi (101 kPa)
of pressure and 2 temperature of 68°F (20°C) in accondance

FLAMMABLE LIQUEFIED GAS. A liquefied compressed
gaswhich, under a charged pressure, is partially iqnid at a tem-
perature of 68°F (20°C) and which is flammable,
FLAMMABLE LIQUID. A liuid having a closed cup flash
point below LOO°F (38°C). Flammable liguids are further cate-
gorized imto a grovp kmown as Class 1 liguids, The Class I cate-
gory is subdivided as follows:

Class IA. Liguids having a flash point below 73°F (23°C)
and a boiling point below 100°F (38°C).

Class 18. Liquids having a fiash point below 73°F (23°C)
and a boiling point at or sbove 100°F (38°C).

Qlass IC. Liguids having a flash point at or above 73°F

(23°C} and below 100°F (38°C).

The category of flammable ligeids does not include com-
pressed gases or cryogenic fluids.
FLAMMABLE MATERFAL. A matesial capable of being
readily jgnited from common sources of heat or at a temperature
of 600°F (316°C) or less.

FLAMMABLE SOLID, A solid, othey than a biasting agent o
explosive, that is capable of cabsing fire through friction,
absorption or tnoisture, spontsncovs chemical change, or
retpined heat from manafacturing or processing, or which has an
ignition temperatore below 212°F (100°C) or which bumns so
vigorously and pereistently when jguited 8 to creaie a serions
hezard. A chemical shall be considered a flammable solid a8
determined in accordance with the west method of CPSC 16
CFR; Part 150044, if it igniies and bums with 2 self-pustained
flame at arate greater than 0.1 inch (2.5 mum) per second along its
major axis.

FLASH POIN'T. The miofmmm texaperature i degrees Fahiren-
hieit at which = liguid will give off sufficient vapors to form an
ignitable mixture with air nesr the sirfice or in the container, bit
will not sustain combustion. The flash point of a liquid hall be
determined by eppropriste test procedure and apparatus as spec-
ified in ASTM D 56, ASTM D 93 ox ASTM D 3278.
HANDLING. The deliberate transport by anry means to a point
of storage or use.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, Thoss chemicals or substances
that are physical hazards or bealth havards as defined and classi-
ficd in this section and the Infernatione! Fire Code, whether the
materials are in usable or waste condition.

HEALTH HAZARD, A classification of a chernical for which
there is statistically sipnificant evidence that acnie or chronie
health effects are capable of occurring in expased persons, The
texm “health hazard™ incledes chemicals that are toxic or highly
HEGHLY TOXIC. A material which produces a Jethal dose or
fethal concenteation that falls within any of the following catego-
ries:

1. Ackemical thathias a median lethal doss (LD,,) of 50 mil-
ligrams or less per kilogram of body weight when admin-
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grams each.

2. A chemical that has a median lethal dose (LDg) of 200
milligrams or Jess per kilogram of body weight when
administered by continnous contact for 24 hours (orless if
death ncenrs within 24 hours) with the bare skin of 2lbino
rabbits weighing between 2 and 3 kilogroms each.

3. A chemical that has a median lethal concentration (LCy)
in air of 200 parts per million by volume or less of gus or
vapor, o 2 milligrams per liter or fess of mist, fome or
dust, when administered by continwous inhelstion for 1
bove {or less if death occs within 1 honr) 1o albing rats
weighing between 200 and 300 grams each.

Mixiures of these mateials with ordinary materiats, such as

water, might not warmant classification es bighly toxic. Whils
this system is basically simpie in spplication, any hazand evelua-
nmﬂﬂnmqwdﬁrﬂmpmmmﬁgnmnmofﬁuwpeof
material shall be performed by experieaced, technically compe-
tent peqsons,

INCOMPATIBLE MATERIALS. Msterialy that, when
mixzd, bave the potential to react in 2 manoer that generates
heat, fomes, gases or byproducts which are hazardons to life or
property.

OPEN EYSTEM. The use of a solid or liguid hezardous mate-
rislinvolving a vesse] or system that is continuously open to the
atmosphere dusieg pormal operations snd whese vapors are
liberated, or the product is exposed © the atmosphere during

normal Examples of open systems for solids and
liqeids inclode di ing from or imo open beakers or con-

OPERATING BUILDING. A building occupied in conjunc-
tion with the mamufactore, transporiation or use of explosive
materials. Operating buildings arc separated from one another
with.ghe nse of intraplant or intraline distances. ]

ORGANIC PEROXIDE. An organic compound that contains
the bivalent -O-0- soncture and which may be considered to be
astructural desivative of hydrogen pesoxide whes one or bodi
of the hydrogen atoms have been replaced by an organic radi-
cal. Organic peroxides can pose a explosion hazard (detona-
tion or deftagration) or they can be sbock sensitive. Thiey can
also decompose into variods unsteble compounds over an
extended period of time.

(Zass I Those fonnulations that are capable of deflagration

but et detonstion.

Class I1. Those formmulations that bum very repicly and that

pose 3 moderate reactivity hazard,

Class TIL Those formulations that burn rapidly and that
pose a moderate reactivity hazard.

Class IV. Those formulations tha bium in the same manner
as ordinary combustibles and that pose a minimnal reactivity
hazard.

Clazs V. Those formulatfons that bum with less intensity
then ondinasy combustibles or do not sustain combustion
and that pose no reattiviry hazard

2008 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE™
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Undlassified detonable. Orpanic peroxides that are capahle
of detonativn. These pm'mdes potc an amemely.high
cxplosion hazard throngh rapid explosive decomposition.
OXIDIZER. A matetial chat readily yields oxygen oc other
idizing gas, or that readily reacts to promote ot initiate com-
bustion of combustible matedals. Examples of other oxidizing
gases include bromine, chiorine and flucrine,
&sl.Anodemmundﬂgomcprnwrmm
doe to mfammam or

rate and can cBUsE mmmmofmnbm‘blﬂ.

Class 3. An oxidizer that will cause a severe increase i the
buming rate of corbustible matedials with which it comea
in cootact or that will undergo vigorous self-mmstzined
decomposition-due to contarsination or exposure to beat.,
Clasz 2. An oxidizer that will cause a modeeate incyease in
the burning rate or thal cacses spontanecus ignition of com-
bustible matezials with which it comes in contact.

Class 1, An oxldizer whose primary bezand is that ii slightly
fncreases the burning taie but which does nof canse sponta-
neons ignition when it comes in cantact with combustible
materials.

OXIDIZING GAS. A gas thet can seppoet and accclersie
contbustion of other materiale.

PHYSICAL HAZARD, A chemical for which these is-evi-
dence that it is a combustible liquid, compressed gas, cryo-
genic, explosive, flammable gas, Bammable Hquid, fammable
mmmammmmh(m
tive) or walter-reaclive material

PYROPHORIC. A chemical with an autoignition
re in air, st or below a temperature of 130°F (54.4°C).

PYROTECHNIC COMPOSITEON. A chemical mixture
ltatpmdnmnsiblchghtduphynnrmdsﬂmu;ha
self-propagating, heat-relcasing chemical reaction which is
imitiated by ignition.

TOXIC. A chemical falling within any of the foliowing cate-
rories:

1. A c¢hemical thet has a median lethal dose (LDgy) of more
than 50 milligrama per kilogram, bat not more than SO0
milligrams per kilogram of body weight when adminis-
tered crally to albino rats weighing beeween 200 and 300
prams each.

2. A chemical that has a median lethal dose (LD,,) of more
thag 200 milliprams per kilogram bat not more than
1,000 milligrarns per kilogrem of body weight when
administered by continuous contact for 24 honors {or less
if death occurs within 24 bours) with ¢he bare skin of
albino rabbiis weighing between 2 and 3 kilograms each.

3. Achemical that bas a median lethal concentration (LCy,)
in air of more tham 200 parts per miflion bout not more
than 2,600 parts per tillion by volume of gas or vepor, or
mare than 2 milligrams per liter but notmore than 20 mil-
Hgrams per liter of mist, fume or dust, when adimitis-
tered by continuons inhatation for 1 hour (or Jessif death

an
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occurs within 1 houor) to slbino rats wejghing between

200 and 300 grams cach.
UNSTABLE (REACTIVE) MATERIAL. A material, other
thmu%%mﬂwmsﬁemaxmwﬁﬂy
produced, vigorously polymerize, decompose, condsnss
or become self-reactive fnd undergo other violent chemical
changes, including explosion, when exposed to heat, friction or
shock, or in the abssnce-of an inhibitor, or in the presence of
contaminants, or in contact with incompatible materials.
Unstable (reactive) materials are subdivided as follows:

Class 4. Maseriels that in themsclves are readily capable of
detonation or explmsive decomposition or explosive reac-
.tion at normal teroperstutes and presswres. This class
includes materials that are sensitive to mechanical or local-

mdﬂnmlshnckatnormaliunpummsandpmm

Class 3. Materials that in themselved are capable of detona-
tion ar of explosive decomposition or explosive reaction but
whtich reqiire a strong initiating source or which must be
heated under confinement before initiation. This clasg
includes materials that are seositive to theomal or mechagi-
2l shock at elevated temperatures and pressores.

Class 2. Materials that in themselves ere nomaily unstable
and readily undergo violent chemical change bt do rot det-
cnate. This class incindes matesials that can undergo chemi-
_¢cal chanpe with rapid release of entypy at- normal
temperatires md pressares, and thet can undergo violent
__¢hamical chango at clevated temperatures and pressores.
Class 1. Miaterials that in themselves are normally stible but
which can become unstable at elzvated tamperatures and
pressare,
WATER-REACTIVE MATERIAL. A materisl that
explodes; violently reacts; produces flammable, toxic o other
hazardous gases; or evglves enough heat to canee antoigrition
or ignitions of combustibles ugon exposure O Water of mois-
ture. Water-reactive meterials are snbdivided as follows:

‘Class 3. Materjals that react explosively with water without
mquumgbntoremﬁmmm

Chssz.Mamalsthmmviuh:ﬂywnhwmmmm
ahhly 16 boil wajer. Materials that produce flanymable,
moxic or other hazardous gases or evolve enough heat to
canse antoignition or ignition of combustibles upon expo-
slire 1o water or loisture.
Class 1. Materials that react with watey with some relesse of
energy, but not violently.
[¥] 307.3 High-hazard Greup H-1. Buildings and stractures
containing misterials that pose a detonation hazard shall be
classified as Gronp H-1. Suchmamnlsshanm:lude.htnot
be limited to, the following:
Explosives:
Division 1.1
Divigion 1.2
Division 1.3
Exception: Materials that ans used md maintained in
afoxm where either confinement or configuration will

not elevate the hazard from a mass fire to mass explo-
smnhamﬂihallbeaﬂowedml‘l—zownmm .

Diviﬂonld

Exception: Articles, inchuding articles packaged for
shipment, that are not regulated as ah explosive under
Burean of Alcobol, Tobacco and Fivearms regula-
tions, or unpackaged articles used in process opera-
tions that do not propagate a detonauon or
,deﬂngrpﬁbabetwcmxnclmshaﬂhe allowed in H-3
occupancies.
+ Division 1.5
Division 1.6
Oxidizers, Class 4
Unstable (reactive) materials, Clm3dotmnhhand€!ass4

[F]Sﬂ?dﬂigh-hmrderpH-zBuﬂdingsaﬁmmm
containing materials that pose a deflagration hazard ora haxard
from accelerated burning shall be classified 23 Growp H-2.
Such matedals shall include, but not be fimited 1o, the follow-

ing;

Chss!.l!ormﬂammablzormmbumbbhqmdswhoh
-Amuwdamdmmmﬂyopmmusym
or in closed containers or systems pressurized at more than
. 15 psi (103.4 kPs) gage.
Combustible dusts . -
Flammable pases -
Organic peroxides, Class I
Oxidizess, Class 3, thatare used or stored ini normally open
comtainkrs or systems, of in closed contairers or systems
puﬁmdnmmﬂmlipn(l@kﬁ)me .
Pyrophotic liquids, sofids and gases, nondetonable
Unstable(macuve)mmds,ﬂass3 mdelonable
Wnte—:ncuvemnah.(:lmS ]

mmsmmcmﬁ-abuﬂﬂngsmdmm
comtaining materials that readily suppont combustion or that
pmeaphyucﬂhmdshaﬂbedmnﬁedasﬁ:wpﬂ-ﬁi Such
materigls shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Class 1, I¥ or THA flammable or combustible Bquids that
are used or sinred in normally closed containers or
systems pressurized at 15 pounds per square inch gauge
(103.4 kPa) or less

Combastible fibers, other then dersely packed baled cotton

Conmmu'ﬁmm:ka.l AG (Class C, Comemon)

C:yogemnﬂn&ds,omﬁﬁng

Flinmuaable so

Drgampmmdu Class T and I

Oxidizers, Class

Oxdxms,C!ass:i that are used or stored in wormalty
dosedcmummmsynmspmmmdatls;mndspa
square inch gauge (103 kPajor Jess -

Orxidizing gases

Unstahle(tmw)matcmls,massz

Water-resctive materjals, Class 2 -
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[F1 307.6 High-bazerd Group H-4. Buildings and structuzres
which contain materials that are health hazards shell be clessi-
fied es Growp H-4. Such materials shalt include, but not be Em-
jted to, the following:

Corrosives

Highly toxic materials

Toxic materials '
{Elm.'?’ﬂigbhmd(}mpﬁ-sms«mm
tor fabrication facilities and comparable research and develop-
ment arezs in which harsrdons productiop matesials (HPM)
are used and the ity of matecials is in excess of

thase listed in Tables 307.1(1) and 307.1(2) shall be classified
as Group H-5. Such facilifics and areas shall be designed and
eonmnc&edmmﬂanccmthSmﬁmﬂSS

mmsmapumnummm structures containing
a materisl or majerials hazards that are classified in
encormoseof Groops H-1, H-2, H-3 and H-4 shall confoom to the

mwhmﬁdhmﬁxm

INSTITUTIONAL GROUP §
303.1 Institutionsl Group L Institmtional Grosp I occupancy
includes, erong others, the se of 2 buflding or structure, ora
paﬁmﬁmﬁmwbﬁhpmplsmmudfuukvemnwpa—

vised environmenr, heving physical limitations because of
hezlth or age ane hatbored for medical treatment of other care

or treatment, or in which people are detained for penal or cor-
uoﬁoulpupowsormwhidnﬂwh‘b&yofdmompmh
restricted. Institutional shall be classified as
Group K1, -2, E3 or 14,
3082 Group I-1. This occopancyshall include buildings,
struptures or parts thereof kiousing were than 16 persans, on 2
24-hoar basis, who becanse of age, mental disability or other
reasons,liwinampewisedmdenﬁalmuomntﬂmlm-
vides persopal care services. The oocupanis are capable of
to an emergency situation without phiysical assis-

tance from staff. This groop shall include, bt not be Limited fo,
the following:

‘Residential board and care facilities

Assisted living facilities

Halfway houses

Groug bomes :
Congregate care facilities +

Social rehabilitation facilities

Alcohol and drag eenters

Convalescént facilities

A facility such a8 the above with five or fewex persons shall
be classified as 8 Group R-3 ox shall comply with the Jnterna-
tional Residentint Code i accordance with Section 101.2, A
fm!itysuchasabow.hmxingat!nsmxmdmtmﬂmlﬁ
persons, shall be clessified as Group R-4.

308.3 Gronp E-2. Th:socmpamyslmﬂmludebﬂdmgsmd
structures nsed for medical, sn:gu:al. psychiatric, narsiog or

mmmmawﬁmmmmm
include, but not be Kmited o, the following:

2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE?
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Hospitals
Mursing homes (both intermediate care facilities and
skilled norsing facilities)

Menial bospitals

Detoxification facifities

A facility such as the sbove with five or fewer persons shall
be classified as Group R-3 or: shall comply with the fnterna-
tional Residential Code in accordumce with Section 101.2.

388.3.1 Child care facility. A child care facility that pro-

vides care on 2 24-hour basis to mode than five children 2'/,

years of age or Jess shall be classified as Growp I-2.
3084 Group I-3. This occupancy shall inchide buildings and
stroctures that are inhabited by more than five persons who are
mmmmsemy.ah[éfmhtyuom@edbypm
sons who are generally incapable of self-preservation due to
security measures not under the occupants’ control. This groop
shall include, but #o? be limited to, the following:

Prisons

Iails

Ref

Detenti

C " ml .

Prerelease centers |

Buildings of Gronp I-3 shall be classified as one of the occu-
pancy conditions indicated in Sections 308.4.1 through
308.4.5 (sex Section 408.1),

30843 Conddition 1. This occvpancy condition shall
inclnde buildings in which free movement is allowed from

" s pennitted, to the exterior via means of egress without
tmdmAOmdmunlfmhtympemnwdwbcm
structed a5 Group R.

30842 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which frec movement is allowed from
sleeping arcas and any other occupied smoke comparmment
t¢ one ar more other smoke compartaients. Egress to the
exterior is impeded by locked exits.

30843 Conditlor 3. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed within
individual smoke compirtments, such as within a residen-
tial upit comprised of individusl sleeping units and grovp
activity spaces, where egress is inpeded by remote-con-
trolled release of means of egrezs from such x zmoke com-
partment to enother smoke comparement,

3844 Condition 4 This y condition shall
indodeiadldiags in which free movement is restricted from
anoccupiedepace. Remote-controlled releasc is provided to
penmit ovement from sleeping units, sctivity spaces and
other occopied aress within the smoke compartment to
ofhicr smoke compantments.

30345 Condition 5. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is pestricted from
an occupied space. Staff-controlled manaal mlzase is pro-
vided t0 permit movement from sleeping mnity, activity
sprces andl other occupied areas within the smoke comtpart-
ment i other sinoke compartments. .
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308.5 Group I-4, day care Eacilities, Thiz group shall include
buildings and structures occupied by persons of any age who
receive custodial care for lzss than 24 hours by individuals
other than parents or guardians, rejatives by blood, marriage or
adoption, and in 2 place other than the home of the person cared
for. A facility such as the above with five or fewer persons shall
be classificd 25 a Group R-3 or shall comply with the ftzma-
fional Residentiol Code in sccordapce with Section 101.2,
Places of worship during religions functions are not included.

308.5.1 Adult care facility. A facility that provides accom-
modations for fess then 24 bours for more than five uire-
lated adults and provides supervision and personal care
sexvices shall be classified 25 Group 1-4.

Exception: A facility where occopants are capable of
responging to an emergency situation without physical
assistance from the staff shall be classified 25 Groop A-3.
308.5.2 Child care facility, A facility that provides svpervi-
sion and personal care 0a less than a 24-hour basis for moere
than five children 2Y/, years of age or less shall be classified
as Group 14,
Exception; A child day care facility thet provides care
for more than five bt no more than 100 children-2Y,
years or less of age, when the moms whese soch childres
are cared for are locatzd on the level of exitdischarge and
cach of these child care rooms has an exit door divectly to
the extetior, shall be classified s Group E.

SECTION 308
MERCANTILE GROUP U1

309.1 Mercantile Group M, Mercantile Group M occupancy
inclndes, among others, buildings and steuctures or 2 portion
thereof, for the display and sale of merchandise, and involves
stocks of goods, wares or mierchandise incidents] to such pur-
poses and accessible to the public. Mercantile occupancies
shail include, but not be imited 10, the Following:

Deparement stores

Drug stores

Markets

Motor fucl-di ing facilit
Retzil or wholesale stores
Sales rooms

309.2 Quantity of hazardous materinle, The apgregate quan-
tity of nonflammable solid and nonflammabls or
noncombustible Kquid hazardous materials stored or displaysd
in a single control area of a Group M shall not
exceed the quantities in Table 414.2.4(1),

SECTION 310
RESIDENTIAL GROUP R
310.1 Residentfial Group B. Residential Growp R inclodes,
among others, the use of 2 building or structure, or 2 portion
thereof, for sleeping purposes when not classified ag an Instita-
tional Group I or when not regulated by the International Resi-

4

dential Code in accordsnce with Section 101.2. Residential
pcenpacies shall inclode the following: &

R-1 Residentia] occupancies contaiting slesping wnits -
where the occupants are primarily transient in nature,
inchuding;

Boudinghnnsu(tmnsiﬁt)
Hotels (rransient)
Motels (transieat) .

R-2 Residential occupancies containing sleeping units or
more than two dwelliag units whers the occupants are
primarily permanent in namre, incloding:

Apariment houses ] ‘"
Boarding honses {not transient)
Convents -

Dormitori
Fratemities and sororities

Hotels (nontransient)

Monasteriey

Motels (nontransicnt)

Vacation fimes} .

Congregate hiving facilitics with 15 or fewer ocon-
pants are permitted to comply with the constroction
requirements for Growp R-3. .

R-1,R-2, R4 or 1, including:
Baildings that do not contsin more than two dwelling i
enits

Adoht facilities that piovide accommodations for
five or fewer persons of any age for less than 24
hours,
five or fewer persons of any age for tess than 24
hours,

Congregaeliving facilitics with 16 or fewer parsons.

Adnlt and child care facilitiexs that are within a sin-
gle-family home are permitted to comply with the
Internetional Residential Code, .

R-4 Residential occupancies shall include buildings
arranged for occupancy as residential carefassisted liv-
ing facilities inclnding more than five but not more than
16 occupants, excluding staff,

Group R4 occupancics shall meet the require-
meuts for construction as defined for Group R-3,
except as otherwise provided for in this code, or shall
comply with the Internarional Residential Code.

310.2 Defiuitions. The following words and terms shall, for the
purposes of this section and as used elsewhere in thia code,
have the meanings shown herein,

BOARDING HOUSE. A building arranged or used for Jodg- .
ing for compencation, with or without meals, and not qecupied
&s a single-family unit.
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CONGREGATE LIVING FACILITIES. A building or pat
thereof that coptains slecping units where residents share bath-
room and/or kitchen facilities.

DORMITORY. Aspmemabnildmgwhmgrmpslu':pmg
sccommodations are provided in one room, or i a series of
closely associated rooms, for persoas sot members of the same
family group, under joint occupancy apd singlé management,
as in college dormitories or fratemity houses,
PERSONAL CARE SERVICE. The care of residents whodo
not require chromic or convalescent medical oc nursing care.
Pessona] care involves responsibility for the safety of the resi-
dent while inside the blding.

RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING FACILI-
TIES. A boilding or part thereof housiog persons, on & 24-hour
baas.whobmeofage. munald:sd:ﬂnywomwmms.
live in & sepesvised residential cavironment which provides
personal care services. The occupants are capable of respond-
ing to an cmexgency situation without physical assistance from
staf¥. This classification shall include, but not be limited (o, the:
following: residentiat board and care facilities, asgisted living
facilities, halfway houses, group homes, congregate care faciti-
ties, socizl rehabilitation facilitiex, alcohol and drog sbuse cen-
TRANSIENT. Cccupancy of a dwelling tmil o slesping unit
for not more than 30 days,

SECTION 311
STORAGE GROUP S

311.1 Storage Group 5. Storage Group S occupancy includes,
among others, the use of & building oo structuze, or a portion
thereof, for storage that is not classified as & hazardines occo-
pancy.

3112 Moderate-hazard storage, Group S:-1. Buildings
occiifiied for storage uses that ave not classified as Group S-2,
including, but not limited to, storage of the following:

Aaémls,l.cuelsZandS
Ajrcraft repair hasgar
Bag:ddh,buﬂ-pmdpaper

Bulnﬂs

Belting: canves and leather

Books and paper in roils or packs
Boots 4nd shoes

Buttons, including cloth covered, pearl or bone .
Cardboard and cardboard boxes

Cordage
Dry bost stomge (adoor)
Famiture

Purs

Glues, mucilape, pastes and size

Grains

Homs and combs, other than celluloid

Leather

Linoleum

Lomber

Molor vehicle repair parages complying with the maxinm

2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILOING CODE™
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allowable guantities of hazardous materiale Bsted In
‘Table 307.1(1) (sce Section 406.6)
Photo enpravings
Resilient flooring
Silks
Soaps
Sugar
Tires, bulk storage of
Tobacco, cigars, cigarettss and smuft
Upholstery and maitresses
Wax cendies

311.3 Low-hazard storage, Group 5-2. Includes, among ath-
mhﬂdmgsmedfmﬁcmofmmbuﬁﬂcmk
such as products on wood pallets or in paper cartons with or
without single thickness divisions; ot in paper wrappings. Such
products are permitted to have a negligible smount of plastic
trim, such 83 knobs, handles or film uses
shall include, but not be limited to, storage of the following:

Aircraft hangar

Asbestos .

Beverages up to and inclading 12-percent alcobol in metal,
glazs or ceremic containers

Cement in bags

Chalk 2nd crayodis

Dmypmdnctsmnunwuedcwedpmrmm

Dry cell batteries

Electrical coils

Electrical motors

Empty cans -

Food products

Foods in noncombustible containers

Fresh frujts and vegetables in nonplastic trays or confainers

Frozen foods

Glass )
Glass boitles, enipty ot filied with noncombustible liquids

Oil-filled and other types of distribution transformers

Pukmgmnpmn:endowd
Pmdmn pottery

Thhnndsoapstuuu
Washers end dryers

SECTION 312 .
UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS GROUP U

312.1 General. Buildings and strociures of an accessosy char-
mmdmsedlmmsmmmmclm;ﬂedmanyspamﬁc
occupancy shall be constrocied, equipped and maintained to
conform to the requirements of this cofe commensurate with
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the fire and kife hazard incidental to their occnpancy. Group U
shall inciude, but not be limited to, the following: )
q - ll !‘ i’ﬁ ‘ Rl
Aircraft hangars, accessory to a one- or tw-family
residence (see Section 412.3)
Barns

.Carports i

Fences more than & feet (1829 mm) high
Grain silos, accessory 1o a residential occupancy
Greenhouses '

Private garapes
Retsining walls
Sheds

Stables

Tanks

Towars.
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VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: VACTOR TRUCK REPAIR

Agenda Item No. 10.1

Executive Summary:

The Vactor truck was sent to Standard Equipment Company in Chicago for its annual inspection. The
inspection consists of a complete operation of the vehicle and preventive maintenance, Some equipment
is in need of repair. Gauges need to be replace due over pressurization, upper debris and lower debris hose
flanges need replacing, main gate valve to the water pump needs replacing (will not hold) and a complete

hydraulic oil system flush (first time for this).

Recommended Action:

Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Repairs to Vactor Truck,

UHR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\02.02.15 Vactor repairs.doc

Committee: PW &, Engineering Meeting Date: 2/2/15
Lead Department: Public Works Presenter: Lenny Gahgan
Item Budgeted: @Y&a ElN 0 IZINIA Account(s) Budget Expenditure
50-60-84-88405 $7.000.00

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 2e;n§eAques;:led :2’910'00
explanation of what account(s) the overage -1-D Actu 6,249.43
will be charged to will be provided in the Amount Encumbered $0.00
Executive Summary or attached detail.

Total: $7.000.00 $9,159.43

Request is over/under budget:
Under|-
Over $2,159.43




Resolution 2014-R-XX
A Resolution Ratifying Repairs to Vactor Truck
BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Round

Lake as follows:

1. The actions of the Director of Public Works in authorizing repairs to the Vactor Truck in the
amount of $2,910.10 by Standard Equipment Company, as specified in the invoice attached hereto as
Exhibit A, are hereby approved and ratified.

2. The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works are authorized to take afl necessary steps

to implement this resolution.

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:



Standard Equipment Company
2033 W. Walnut Street
Chicago, IL 60612

(312) £829-121% Phone

{312) 829-¢l142 Fax

Customer WORKORDER Document Pg
78809 ** ESTIMATE/ERP 30 DAYS ** Ra243601 1
1/27/15 13:52
S0ld To Ship To
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 60612

442 N CEDAR LAXE ROAD
ROUND LAKE IL 60073

B47/546~-5400

Br Trk Make Model Serial Eguipment Meter 8ls Customer P.O.

0Gg2 YT 2100 05-12V-9681 000002080 4,721 010
Ordr Ship CH Description Each Amount
Ordered 1/22/15
Terms Vendor
ALTTN:

THE FOLLOWING IS A REPAIR ESTIMATE FROM THE EVALUATION THAT
WAS PERFORMED ON YOUR VACTOR.
is'**'******1"***’*‘#********i\"k*********"Jr'lr'k\'t'*'k*'b****‘i:*******i’****w
HOSE REEL: WE WILL REPLACE AND SECURE THE LOOSE GAUGE IN THE
HOSE REEL PANEL AND INSTALL A QUICK CONNECT
FIITING, WE WILL DIAGNOSE THE OVER PRESSURTZED
SYSTEM LIGHT THAT ALWAYS COMES ON.
PARTS $31.20 LABOR $299.38 TOTAL $330.58
'*****1\'***'k'k1‘:*************************i—:*‘Jr'k*‘k"\"k**********‘.‘:***'*
BOOM: WE WILL REPLACE THE UPPER DEBRIS HOSE FLANGE AND LOWER
DEBRIS HOSE.
PARTS $513.47 LABOR $179.63 TOTAL $693.10
i-*d'********************1\-*******************ﬁ**!\'*************
HYDRAULIC SYSTEM: WE WILL CHANGE THE BYDRAULIC OIL AND
: FILTER.

= e e s e At ,..._............._._._......_.—....-,.....,....-_.._._....-...wu..._._._._..........--....._——_w—-._.._—-_.-w—_—_._..‘m.,.....,..__...... ——

CONTINUED



Standard Bguipment Company
2032 W. Walnut Sitrect
Chicago, I]. BO&L2Z

{312) B29-19219% Fhone

{(312) B2%-814. Fax

Customer WORKORDER Documant Pg
78809 ** ESTIMATE/EXP 30 DAYS ** Adz243601 2
1/727/15 13:52
Sold To Ship To
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 60612

442 N CEBDAR LAKE ROAD
ROUND LAKE IL 60073

847/546-5400
Br Trk Make Model Serisl Equipment Meter 3ls Customer P.O,
001 vT 2100 g5-12v~9681 0G0002080 4,721 010
Ordr Ship OH Description Each Anount
PARTS $807.10 LAEBOR $179.63 TOTAL 5986,73

EAKA AR E AN R R F AR AR R AR A R A AR A hh R AR AR D AR AR S A AR A SR AL A AN kR kA o
RODDER PUMF: WE WILL REPLACE THE LEAKING GATE VALVE BY THE
RODDER PUMP.
PARTS $360.81 LABOR $538.88 TOTAL $899.65%
R R R R L R L E L T,
TOTAL FRRTS 51712.58 TOTAL LABOR $1197.52
TOTAL REPAIRS %2810.10

i R L e PR PP
NOTE: THIS IS A& ESTIMATE ONWLY ADDITIONAL PARTS AND LABOR

MIGHT BE REQUIRED AFTER THE UNIT IS DISASSEMBLED.
i i L e Y
NOTE: REPAIRS FROM ABOVE ESTIMATE ARE TO BE PERFORMED AT

STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY.

NON-TAXABLE MUNICIFAL N/C
E8995~-7523-06

HOSE REEL
HYDRAULIC SYSTEM
BOOM

CONTINUED



Standard Equipment Company
2033 W, Walnut Strest
Chicage, IL 60612

(312) B29-14919 Phone

(312) B829-6142 Fax

Customer WORKORDER

Document
TEBOG ** EBSTIMATE/EXP 30 DAYS ¥«*

R4243601

¥} tﬂ

1/27/15 13:52

Sold To Ship To
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 50612
442 W CEDAR LAKE ROAD
RCOUND LAKE IL 60073

B47/546-5400

Br Trk Make Model Serial Equipment Meter 8ls Customer P.O.

001 vT 2100 05-12v-9681 000002080 4,721 010

Ordr Ship CH Description

Each Amount

00

Sighature Date

Total .00

Pi1llad T

Mhacrkad Te

Anrhrriecad Somatiire Tata

SEGMEMT TOTAL



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: PRAIRIE WALK LIFT STATION PUMP REPAIRS

Agenda Item No. 10.2

Executive Summary:

Prairiec Walk sanitary lift station located in Lakewood Grove had a pump failure. Xylem Water Solutions
responded to pull the pump and returned it to their shop. After completing their inspection, it was noted

the seal housing/adaptor so signs of wear and tear in the o-ring area. An estimate was provided $2,220.35.

Xylem Water Solutions is a very effective and professional company in the sales, preventive maintenance

and repairs of lift stations. It is my recommendations to approval this repair.

Recommended Action:

Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Repairs to Prairie Walk Lift Station Pump

Committee: PW &, Engineering Meeting Dates 2/2/15
Lead Department: Public Works Presenter: Lenny Gahgan
Item Budgeted: @Yes EINO IIINIA Account(s) Budget Expenditure
50-60-92-99206 $32,000.00
Itern Requested $2,220.35
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed
explanation of what account(s) the overage Y-T-D Actual $16,565.32
will be charged to will be provided in the Amount Encumbered $0.00
Executive Summary or attached detail.
Total: $32,000.00 $18,785.67
Request is over/under budget:
Under $13,214.33
| Overf- _

U:HR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\02.02.15 Priarie Walk Lift Station Pump Repair.doc




Resolution 2014-R-XX
A Resolution Ratifying Repairs to Prairie Walk Lift Station Pump
BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Round

Lake as follows:

1. The actions of the Director of Public Works in authorizing repairs to the Prairie Walk lift station
pump in the amount of $2,220.35 by Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc., as specified in the invoice
attached hereto as Exhibit A, are hereby approved and ratified.

2. The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works are authorized to take all necessary steps

to implement this resolution.

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:



xylem

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.
Flygt Products

PRODUCT REPAIR / SERVICE ESTIMATE

Estimate #2 R2015-CHi-0022
Tag #: 4848
JobName: VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

Cu:.tt.:; mer l-n-fd:maf_lon
Company Name: VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
Address 442 CEDAR LAKE RD

ROUND LAKE IL60073

PvI:rdI.Icr f_C.!E.,nfiﬁlc'a;_rnn
Product Number: 0031530911296

Model:

Impeller Code: 462
HP: 20

Valts: 460
Phases: 3

Inspection Information
Inspected By: Tim Broolks
Motor Data:

Date: 1/28/2015

Wire Configuration: UT:Red V1:Black W1:White

Megger to ground: R INFINITY B INFINITY W

INFINITY

Resistance through cable: RB 2,20 RW 2.23 8w

2.23

Stator Condition: Good
Shaft Condition: Good
Oil Condition: Good
Inspection Plugs:

Hydraulic:

xylem

Impeller/Propeller Condition; Fair

Fiygt Praducts

8402 183rd Street Sulte A, Tinley Park IL 60487

PH: (708) 342-0484
FX: (708) 342-0491

Page 1 of 4

Contact: Kevin Amaan
Telephone:
Telephone:

Fax:

Email:

Serial Number: 3153.091-1150048

Sensors:

FLS
CJcis
KLIX
[_] Bearing

[ cable

Cabie Condition: Good

FLEGT

a xylem brand



o ol Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.
*Q\,f E -‘:i‘“.l Flygt Products

PRODUCT REPAIR / SERVICE ESTIMATE

Estimate #: R2015-CHI-0022 Date: 1/28/2015 Page 2 of 4
Tag #: 4848
JobName: VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

Volute Condition: Good Cable Length: 76
Hydraulic Type: N
Installation
Type: p [] Control

Discharge Size; 4

[ MFv

Primary Requirement: Basic overhaul

Repair/Service Reguirements and remarks

The pump was brought in for a basic overhaul using customer supplied basic repair kit. The stator ohms and
meggers good. The seal housing/adaptor has some pit marks in the o-ring area. The shaft is ok. The impeller
and insert ring are in fair condition. The insert ring has some groove marks In it. The volute was heavily clogged
when it arrived in the shop.

Parts, Labor and Other Charges

Parts:
Qty PartNo Description
1 608 22 1 ADAPTOR,CI
Total Price $1,131.35
Labor and Other Charges:
Qty PartNo Description
9 14-69 00 01A LABOR,SVC FLYCGT,NO TAX Z2-TP MODELS:
3000,7000,8000
14-69 00 21C ENV FEE 11-50HP NO TAX TP ENVIRONMENTAL
FEE
1 14-69 00 24A MISC ITEMS,MEDIUM PUMPS TP
MATERIALS,LUBES,SOLVENTS,ETC
Total Price $£1,089.00

Flygt Products _
8402 183rd Street Suite A, Tinley Park IL 60487 FLRGT

}{\! E@ m PH: (708) 342-0484 2 xylem brand

b. FX: (708) 342-049]



Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc.

Xy E@m Flygt Products

PRODUCT REPAIR / SERVICE ESTIMATE

Estimate #: R2015-CHI-0022 Date: 1/28/2015 Page 3 of 4
Tag #; 4848 »
JobName: VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

Total Price: $2,220.35
Product Replacement
Product Number: Estimated Delivery: Weeks
Cost of New Unit:
Description:
Terms

Please note: If additional repair requirements. are identified during service, the total cost of your repair may
change. Should this occur, we will contact you for approval before praceeding.

A signed Purchase Order or approval below must be raceived before any repair work can begin.

If repaired unit is not picked up or delivered within § days of completion, the repair will be inveiced.

Terms of payment: Net 60 Days

Warranty: Parts used for this repair carry a 12 month warranty.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quotation. Please contact us if there are any questions.

Tirm Brooks

Phane:

Fax:

Email: tim.brooks@xyleminc.com

Flygt Products
8402 183rd Street Sulte A, Tinley Park IL 50487 FLY&

}(\ j i@ m PH: (708) 342-0484 2 xylerm brand

FX: (708) 342-0491



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TrTLE: 171 W. BELVIDERE RD. SPECIAL USE -~ EMMA’S Agenda Item No. 12.1

Executive Summary:

Pursuant to a Public Notice of Hearing for January 27, 2015, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of
Appeals considered a Petition for a Special Use Permit for Emma’s for the sale of alcoholic beverages.

The Plan Commission - Zoning Board of Appeals recommended to the Village Board that the application
Petition for a Special Use Permit for Emma’s for the sale of alcoholic beverages be approved.

Attached is:
e The Ordinance to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages at the address noted above
e The Plan Commission - Zoning Board of Appeals Report of Findings and Recommendations
¢ The petitioner’s petition for a special use permit application

Recommended Action:

Adopt an Ordinance Granting A Special Use Permit To Allow The Sale Of Alcoholic Beverages At 171
W. Belvidere Road, Round Lake, Illinois

Committee: - Meeting Date: 2/2/15
Lead Department: Administration Presenter: Steve Shields
Item Budgeted: |:|Yes E'No I_X__INIA Account(s) Budget Expenditure
XX-XX-XK-XXXXX -
Item Requested
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed Y-T-D Actual

explanation of what account(s) the overage will
be charged to will be provided in the Executive ~ |Amount Encumbered
Summary or attached detail.

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Reqguest is over/funder budget:
Underj-
Over|-

U:AHR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\)2.02.15 Emmas Petition for Special Use.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 15-0-___
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AT 171 W. BELVIDERE ROAD, ROUND LAKE,
ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, Emma’s by Bryan Sterbenz and Katrina Hardie (the “Applicants™),
submitted a petition for a special use permit (the “Petition) to allow for the sale of alcoholic
beverages at 171 W. Belvidere Road, Round Lake, Illinois, legally described in Exhibit A
attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Section 17.52.040 of the Round Lake Village Code provides that the sale of
alcoholic beverages shall be a special use in the C-3 Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on
January 27, 2015, regarding the Petition; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals found that the Petition
meets the standards for a special use and recommends the special use permit be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Village President and Village Board of Trustees (collectively “Board of
Trustees™) have reviewed the documents pertinent to the Petition and the recommendations of
the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals and determined that the standards for special use
have been met;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that the requisite public notice and
hearing has been completed in conformity with the Round Lake Village Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as

follows:

Section1:  The Board of Trustees hereby finds and determines that the facts set forth

in the preamble hereto are true and correct and hereby adopts same as part of this Ordinance.



Section 2:  That a special use permit to allow for the sale of alcoholic beverages is
hereby granted to the Applicants for the subject property legally described in Exhibit A attached
hereto.

Section 3:  That this special use permit is not a liquor license and that the special use
permit is expressly conditioned upon Applicants® compliance with the regulations set forth in
Section 5.32 of the Round Lake Village Code.

Section 4:  That the “Findings and Recommendations™ of the Plan Commission/
Zoning Board of Appeals are concurred and approved.

Section 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as provided by law,

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM: , 2015




January 29, 2015

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Round Lake

442 North Cedar Lake Road
Round Lake, IL 60073

RE:  Village of Round Lake
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals
Recommendations Regarding
Petition for Special Use:

Emma’s by Bryan Sterbenz & Katrina Hardie, Applicants
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Pursuant to a published Public Notice of Hearing, on January 27, 2015, at 7:00 P.M. the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing to consider a Petition for a Special Use
Permit (“Petition”) submitted by Bryan Sterbenz & Katrina Hardie d/b/a Emma’s. Applicants request a
Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages, pursuant to Section 17.52.040(B) of the Village of
Round Lake Zoning Ordinance, at 171 West Belvidere Road, Round Lake, Illinois 60073.

Prior to the hearing, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals received copies of the
Petition, which include a description of the proposed business operations.

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals finds as follows:

Public Notice of Hearing was given by publication in the Lake County Sun, a newspaper, and
certification of publication was accepted by the Commission, all as provided by ordinance and at the
direction of the Zoning Administrator

The property at issue is presently zoned C-3 and is located in the Village of Round Lake. Ina C-
3 zoning district, a petition for special use is required for the sale of alcoholic beverages. See
17.52.040(B). The Applicant proposes to open a deli and seeks a Special Use Permit for the sale of beer
and wine containing alcohol. The Applicant did not request any variation or change to the structure itself.

Public comment and questions were invited by the Chairman. Only the Applicant, Bryan
Sterbenz, testified under oath. No citizen posed any questions to the Applicant or the Commission.
There were no written or verbal objections to the Applicant’s Petition for a Special Use Permit.

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals finds that the requested Special Use Permit
conforms to the standards in Section 17.100.060(A) through (G) of the Zoning Ordinance, to-wit:

A. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special uses will not be
detrimental to, or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

B. That the special uses will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair property values within the neighborhood;



That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the
district;

That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will
not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of
the structures already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate
neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a substantial
depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood;

That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are
being provided;

That adequate measures have been or will be taken fo provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets;

That the special uses shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of
the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be
modified by the Village Board pursvant to the recommendations of the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals.

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals further finds that the proposed special use shall
be conditioned as follows:

The Applicant must comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Section 5.32 of the Round
Lake Village Code (liquor licenses).

Commissioner Gutknecht made a Motion to recommend approval of the Petition, which was

seconded by Commissioner

By a vote of four (4) ayes and zero (0) nays, the Plan

Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals recommends approval of the Petition for the sale of alcoholic
beverages per Section 17.52.040 on the subject property, as presented, subject to any other licensing and
permit requirements of the Village.

AYES
Gutknecht
Mazzanti
Rodriguez
Monaco
NAYS
None

Respectfully submitted,

John Gutknecht

Chairman of the Plan Commission/
Zoning Board of Appeals

Meeting of January 27, 2015



e L o -

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE /50

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on January 27, 2015 at 7:00 p.m., the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Round Lake will hold a public hearing on
a Special Use Petition, as required by Chapter 17.56.040(C) of the Village of Round Lake Zoning
Code, for the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for the property commonly known as 171 W.
Belvidere Road, Round Lake, IL. (Pin#0632211091)

Time and Place of Hearing: Round Lake Village Hall, Council Room - 2™ Floor, 442 N. Cedar
Lake Road, Round Lake, lllinois 60073, 7:00 p.m.

Petitioner: Bryan Sterbenz & Katrina Hardie (Emma’s}

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals will hear testimony from Village Staff and the
public, and will consider any evidence presented related to this matter. Written objections and
other comments, if any, relating to the petition, may be made in writing and filed with the
Village Administrator prior to 4:00 p.m., the day of the public hearing. All persons in
attendance at the hearing shali have an opportunity to be heard. The public hearing may be
continued from time to time without further notice, except as otherwise required under the
lllinois Open Meetings Act. All interested parties are invited to attend

Village of Round Lake
John Gutknecht, Chairman
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

Please Type or Print
OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received: /2-//-7/%
Hearing Date: __ |-27-]
Case Number: | 5-o 1

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
442 North Cedar Lake Road
Round Lake, IL 60073
(847) 546-5400 — PHONE
(847) 546-5405 —FAX

PETITION FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT
(PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED BEFORE THE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS)

Applicant: Bryan Sterbenz & Katrina Hardie (EMMA’s) Date: 12/10/14
Address: Bryan Sterbenz ; 26052 W. Randich Ct. Ingleside. I1 60041 Phone; 224-337-9281

Katrina Hardie 28537 W. High Rd. Ingleside, I1 60041

Property Owner: William Vander Velde

Address: 20635 Abbey Woods Court Suite 303, Frankport, 11 Phone: 773-550-1444
PIN: 06322 1109l

Detailed zm:ung relief being requested (please specify applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance}):
i} _pec Secdion  17.56.040. C.
the I //gge (ede F;r —}”le sale of alcoholic J’Pv&r‘a@g&

Current Zoning Classification of Property: C-3
Current Use of Property: Vacant Commercial Unit
Requested Use of the Property: Deli serving beer, wine, meat, cheese, soup; Video Gaming

Related Section of the Ordinance 17.56.040 C Lot Sq. Ft. Bldg. Sq. Ft. 1,496 Sq. Ft
Address of Property: 171 W Belvidere Round Lake, 11 60073
Area of Subject Site:

(Stated in square feet if the area is less than one acre, and in acres and fractions thereof if one acre or more.)
Legal Description of Property: Please attach to this application.

Filing Fee: $500.00/acre and $200.00 each additional acre. Must be submitted with the application. Please make
checks payable to the Village of Round Lake.

Revised 9/5/13 4



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

PLEASE ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS THOROQUGLY. FATLURE TO PROVIDE DETAILED

" INFORMATION WILL RESULT IN A DELAY IN PROCESSING YOUR APPLICATION
A. Background information
1. Statement of the circumstances, factors and arguments that the petitioner offers in support of the proposed special
use permit (Please be specific, state the ordinance in which you are requesting a special use, the reasons why the
special use should be granted, and if the special use is granted, state the changes that will be made in the property).:

Bryan Sterbenz and Katrina Hardie, are requesting a special use permit for Emma's. Business is also
seeking a B-2 Liquor license and both a Jocal and state Gaming license. We will be applying for permits
concerning construction in various trades (with no structural change to the above stated building).

2. Fxplain the reasons why the granting of this Special Use Permit will not be contrary to the public interest; character
of the existing zoning of the area; and the proposed use will not detract from the desirability of using adjoining
properties for their present uses due to the following conditions (Please be specific by explaining how the special use
will effect the existing structure and will conform to the adjoining properties).:

171 W. Rt.120 js a 1500 sq. ft commercial unit. where afl units are esthetically the same, both in structure
and visual appearance. Emma's will not be changing anything structural. or to anything o the outside

of the building.

3. Will additional utilities or roadway improvements need to be provided to service the special-use permit? Please
explain why or why not. Please submit any detailed information regarding ingress/egress from the property.

No additiona) utilities or roadways will be required to service the special unit permit. Parking Lot and

curbs are all up to city and state codes.

4. Will special design features be included in the plans to prevent any detrimental effect on abutting properties or the
general vicinity of the site in question, including but not limited to increased density? If so, please explain:

Any and all remodeling/new construction will be listed on the final plan.

5. Will the special-use generate any odor, noise, vibration, light or particulate that will negatively impact surrounding
land-uses or individuals? (Please explain why or why not)

The special use permit will nof generate any sort of odor, noise, vibration, light, or particulate that will

negatively impact its surroundings. Nothing visually will be changing to the outside of the building.

6. What type of goods and services, manufacturing, or processing will the special-use entail?

Emma’s will serve as a local deli to the Round Lake and surrounding communities. The business will not
only offer a variety of wines from local vineyards, but also numerous meats, cheeses, and soups.

Assuming all necessary licensing is approved, Emma's will also have S individual state regulated video

gaming machines.
Revised 9/5/13 5



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

1 (We) hereby affirm that al! of the above statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans
submitted herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

I (We) hereby acknowledge my (our) obligation to reimburse the Village of Round Lake for all necessary
and reasonable expensegdncurred by the Village in the review and certification of any documents submitted

in /C@%tion with ppllcatnon
L/?f\{ an S #ybe M?B

Prop%wﬁef mandatory)“ / 7 . Se /U/o(é{e At L2 c

Signed and subscnbed before me on e
OFFICIAL SEAL-

this / / day of ﬂq@g 200 KRISTEN O°BRIEN

Notary Public - State of [flinois

My Commission Expires Apr 18, 2018
Notary Publ I

This application was filed with the Community Development Department on

Village Staff

Office Use Only
Staff Checklist:

M- bl Completed application (all fields have entries)
Required Fee has been paid
Datc of Publishing the Public Hearing Notice in the Newspaper
Date that Notice of Hearing was Posted on Property
Site Plans are atfached
Ten (10) copies are attached

Revised 9/5/13 7




12/8/2014 Round Lake, il. Code of Ordinances [codes] - Chapter 17.100 - SPECIAL USES | Municode Library
17.100.060 - Finding of fact and recommendations of plan commission.

The plan commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing
plans and specifications for the proposed special uses, which shall remain a part of the permanent
record of the plan commission. The plan commission shall submit same together with its
recommendations to the villaﬁe board for final action. No special use shall be recommended by the
plan commission, unless such commission shall find:

A. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental
to, or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare;

B. That the special use will not be injuricus to the use and enjoyment of other proRerty in the
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair
property values within the neighborhood;

C. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district;

D. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not
be so at variance with either the exierior architectural appeal and functional plan of the
structural already construcied or in the course of construction in the immediate
neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as fo cause a substantial
depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood;

E. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are
being provided; _

F. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets;

G. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the
district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified
by the village board pursuant to the recommendations of the plan commission.

(Zoning ord. § 4.10-6)

17.100.070 - Terms of relief—Conditions and guarantees.

Prior to the granting of any special use, the plan commission shall in a conclusion or paragraph,
separate from the findings of fact, stipulate the terms of relief recommended.

The plan commission may also stipulate any conditions and restrictions, upon the establishment,
location, construction, maintenance and operation of the use as is deemed necessary for the
protection of the public interest and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements
specified inSection 17.100.060. In all cases in which special uses are recommended, the plan
commission may require such evidence and guarantees as it may deem necessary as proof that the
conditions stipulated in connection herewith are being and will be complied with.

(Zoning ord. § 4.10-7)

17.100.080 - Action by village board of trustees.

A. The village board shall not act upon a proposed special use permitted under this title until it shall
have received a written report and recommendation from the plan commission on the proposed
special use.

B. The village board may grant or deny, by ordinance or resolution, any application for special use,
and may establish such conditions and restrictions upon the establishment, location,
construction, maintenance and operation of the special use, as is deemed necessary for the
protection of the public interest and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements
specified in_Section 17.100.060

C. In all cases where the village board permits the establishment of a special use, the terms of the
relief granted shall be specifically set forth in the ordinance or resolution in a conclusion.

(Zoning ord. § 4.10-8)

datectextitl;charset= tf-8,%3Cul%20class %30 %22chunks %22%20syle% 3D % 22box-sizing% 3A%20bor der-box % 3B%20m argin% 3A% 200px % 200pc%204... 11



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: ROUTE 60 BANQUET HALL SPECIAL USE Agenda Item No. 12.2

Executive Summary:

Pursuant to a Public Notice of Hearing for January 27, 2015, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of
Appeals considered a Petition for a Special Use Permit for Route 60 Banquet Hall, 1797, 1805, and 1809
Cedar lake Road, for the sale of alcoholic beverages.

The Plan Commission - Zoning Board of Appeals recommended to the Village Board that the application
Petition for a Special Use Permit for Route 60 Banquet Hall Special Use for the sale of alcoholic
beverages be approved.

Attached is:
¢ The Ordinance to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages at the addresses noted above
& The Plan Commission - Zoning Board of Appeals Report of Findings and Recommendations
¢ The petitioner’s petition for a special use permit application

Recommended Action:

Adopt an Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages a 1797,
1805, 1809 S. Cedar Lake Road, Round Lake, Illinois

Committee: - Meeting Date: 2/2/15
Lead Department: Administration Presenter:_Steve Shields
Item Budgeted: F_—IYes EINO ENIA Account(s) Budget Expenditure
XX-XX-XX-XXXXX -
. i Item Requested
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed Y-T.D Actual

explanation of what account(s) the overage will
be charged to will be provided in the Executive  |Amount Encumbered
Summary or attached detail.

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Request is over/under budget:
Under|-
Over]-

U:HR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\02.02.15 Route 60 Banquet Hall Petition for Special Use.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 15-0-___
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AT 1797, 1805, 1809 S. CEDAR LAKE ROAD, ROUND
LAKE, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, Route 60 Banquet Hall by Ruben Lucio and Ana B. Martinez Lucio (the
“Applicants”), submitted a petition for a special use permit (the “Petition”) to allow for the sale
of alcoholic beverages at 1797, 1805, and 1809 8. Cedar Lake Road, Round Lake, Illinois,
legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Section 17.52.040 of the Round Lake Village Code provides that the sale of
alcoholic beverages shall be a special use in the C-3 Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on
January 27, 2015, regarding the Petition; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals found that the Petition
meets the standards for a special use and recommends the special use permit be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Village President and Village Board of Trustees (collectively “Board of
Trustees™) have reviewed the documents pertinent to the Petition and the recommendations of
the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals and determined that the standards for special use
have been met;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that the requisite public notice and
hearing has been completed in conformity with the Round Lake Village Code; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as
follows:

Section 1: The Board of Trustees hereby finds and determines that the facts set forth

in the preamble hereto are true and correct and hereby adopts same as part of this Ordinance.



Section 2:  That a special use permit to allow for the sale of alcoholic beverages is
hereby granted to the Applicants for the subject property legally described in Exhibit A attached
hereto.

Section 3:  That this special use permit is not a liquor license and that the special use
permit is expressly conditioned upon Applicants’ compliance with the regulations set forth in
Section 5.32 of the Round Lake Village Code.

Section 4:  That the “Findings and Recommendations™ of the Plan Commission/
Zoning Board of Appeals are concurred and approved.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as provided by law.

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM: , 2015




January 29, 2015

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Round Lake

442 North Cedar Lake Road
Round Lake, IL 60073

RE: Village of Round Lake
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals
Recommendations Regarding
Petition for Special Use:

Route 60 Banquet Hall by Ruben Lucio and Ana B. Martinez Lucio
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Pursuant to a published Public Notice of Hearing, on January 27, 2015, at 7:00 P.M. the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing to consider a Petition for a Special Use
Permit (“Petition”) submitted by Ruben Lucio and Ana B. Martinez Lucio d/b/a Route 60 Banquet Hall.
Applicants request a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages, pursuant to Section
17.52.040(B) of the Village of Round Lake Zoning Ordinance, at 1797, 1805, and 1809 S. Cedar Lake
Road, Round Lake, Illinois 60073.

Prior to the hearing, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals received copies of the
Petition, which include a description of the proposed business operations.

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals finds as follows:

Public Notice of Hearing was given by publication in the Lake County Sun, a newspaper, and
certification of publication was accepted by the Commission, all as provided by ordinance and at the
direction of the Zoning Administrator

The property at issue is presently zoned C-3 and is located in the Village of Round Lake. Ina C-
3 zoning district, a petition for special use is required for the sale of alcoholic beverages. See
17.52.040(B). The Applicant proposes to open a banquet hall and seeks a Special Use Permit for the sale
of alcohol at a fully stocked bar. The Applicant did not request any variation or change to the structure
itself.

Public comment and questions were invited by the Chairman. Only the Applicant, Ruben Lucio,
testified under oath. No citizen posed any questions to the Applicant or the Commission. There were no
written or verbal objections to the Applicant’s Petition for a Special Use Permit.

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals finds that the requested Special Use Permit
conforms to the standards in Section 17.100.060(A) through (G) of the Zoning Ordinance, to-wit:

A. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special uses will not be
detrimental to, or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

B. That the special uses will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair property values within the neighborhood;



That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the
district;

That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will
not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of
the structures already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate
neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a substantial
depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood,;

That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are
being provided;

That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets;

That the special uses shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of
the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be
modified by the Village Board pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals.

Commissioner Gutknecht made a Motion to recommend approval of the Petition, which was
seconded by Commissioner . By a vote of four (4) ayes and zero (0) nays, the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals recommends approval of the Petition for the sale of alcoholic
beverages per Section 17.52.040 on the subject property, as presented, subject to any other licensing and
permit requirements of the Village.

AYES
Gutknecht
Mazzanti
Rodriguez
Monaco
NAYS
None

Respectfully submitted,

John Gutknecht

Chairman of the Plan Commission/
Zoning Board of Appeals

Meeting of January 27, 2015



.o

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on January 27, 2015 at 7:00 p.m., the Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Round Lake will hold a public hearing on
a Special Use Petition, as required by Chapter 17.56.040(C) of the Village of Round Lake Zoning
Code, for the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for the property commonly known as 1797, 1805,
1809 S. Cedar Lake Road, Round Lake, IL. {Pin#1005308050)

Time and Place of Hearing: Round Lake Village Hall, Council Room — 2" Floor, 442 N. Cedar
Lake Road, Round Lake, llinois 60073, 7:00 p.m.

Petitioner: Ruben Lucio

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals will hear testimony from Village Staff and the
public, and will consider any evidence presented related to this matter. Written objections and
other comments, if any, relating to the petition, may be made in writing and filed with the
Village Administrator prior to 4:00 p.m., the day of the public hearing. All persons in
attendance at the hearing shall have an opportunity to be heard. The public hearing may be
continued from time to time without further notice, except as otherwise required under the
Illinois Open Meetings Act. All interested parties are invited to attend

Village of Round Lake
John Gutknecht, Chairman
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

Please Tvpe or Print
OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received: (-zz 15

Hearing Date; /-27- /5
Case Number: -0

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
442 North Cedar Lake Road L
Round Lake, IL 60073 FPAzp [-22-/%
(847) 546-5400 ~ PHONE
(847) 546-5405 —FAX

PETITION FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT
(PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED BEFORE THE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS)

Applicant: _RUBEN LUCIO / ANA B. MARTINEZ LUCIO Date: 1/21/15
Address: 1797 CEDAR 1 AKE RD Phone: 847-791-3652
ROUND LAKE, 1l 60073

Property Owner: _CEDAR LAKE PLAZA LLC
Address: _PO BOX 2074 Phone: 847-021-3537.
DES PLAINES, IL 60017

PIN: 1005308050
Detailed zoning relief being requested (please specify applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance):

BANQUET HALL
For all occasions, weddings, showers, birthday parties, conventions, meetings

Current Zoning Classification of Property: ___ RETAIL

Current Use of Property: _ RETAIL — VACANT

Requested Use of the Property: _ BANQUET HALL

Related Section of the Ordinance Lot 8q. Ft. Bldg. Sq. Ft. 5971

Address of Property: _1797..1805, 1809 S. CEDAR LAKE RD_ROUND LAKE, IL 60073
Area of Subject Site: 5,871

(Stated in square feet if the area is less than one acre, and in acres and fractions thereof if one acre or more.)

%LLegal Description of Property: Please attach to this application.
Filing Fee: $500.00/acre and $200.00 each additional acre. Must be submitted with the application. Please make
checks payable to the Village of Round Lake.

Revised 9/5/13 4



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

PLEASE ANSWE. L. QUESTIONS THOROUGLY, FAILURE TO PROVIDE DETAILED
INF ON RESULTINAD IN PROCESSING YOUR APPLICATION

A. Background information

1. Statement of the circumstances, factors and arguments that the petitioner offers in support of the proposed special
use permit (Please be specific, state the ordinance in which you are requesting a special use, the reasons why the
special use should be granted, and if the special use is granted, state the changes that will be made in the property).:

Special use for a banquet hall. Offered for rept for various occasions, weddings, baby showers, birthday

parties. small conventions, meetings. Will have kitchen for use and bar. Full service bar with bartender.
Bartender will be owner or manager.

2. Explain the reasons why the granting of this Special Use Permit will not be contrary to the public interest; character
of the existing zoning of the area; and the proposed use will not detract from the desirability of using adjoining
properties for their present uses due to the following conditions (Please be specific by explaining how the special use
will effect the existing structure and will conform to the adjoining properties).:

None as it will be mostly for family gatherings. Music will be contained to avoid noise poliution or

ing of excess.

3. Will additionat utilities or roadway improvements need to be provided to service the special-use permit? Please
explain why or why not. Please submit any detailed information regarding ingress/egress from the property.

No additional public improvements will be necessary. All improvements will be made only inside of
premises.

4. Will special design features be included in the plans to prevent any detrimental effect on abutting properties or the
general vicinity of the site in question, including but not limited to increased density? If so, please explain:

in the interior of the premises.

Revised 9/5/13 5



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit Application

5. Will the special-use generate any odor, noise, vibration, light or particulate that will negatively impact surrounding
land-uses or individuals? (Please explain why or why not)

noi i Wi ntained to the interjor of establishment.

6. What type of goods and services, manufacturing, or processing will the special-use entail?

Banquet hall services. Catering food will be offered in the future.

B. Additional Information

1. Attach a Site Plan of the property drawn to scale and pictures showing the dimensions and square footage
of the proposed use. The accuracy of the Site Plan is vital to the effectiveness of the plan review and will
not be accepted if it cannot be easily read and evaluated.

2. Exhibits Required: Provide ten (10) copies of the entire package including, but not limited to the Site
Plan drawn to scale, referenced in paragraph 1, as well as ten (10) copies of any other data or materials
submitted as exhibits. The aforementioned information is requested to assist Village staff, Plan
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals, and the Village Board in determining the impact appropriateness of
the requested special use. Please type or neatly write as much detailed information to ensure an effective
evaluation of the petition. If additional space is necessary, please write on the back of the appropriate sheet.

3. The application fee must be submitted with the aforementioned to cover administrative costs associated
with the petition review. All checks must be made payable to the Village of Round Lake.

Revised 9/5/13 6



Village of Round Lake
Special Use Permit A pplication

1 (We) hereby affirm that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans
submitied herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

I (We) hereby acknowledge my (our) obligation to reimburse the Village of Round Lake for all necessary
and reasonable expeases incurred by the Village in the review and certification of any documents submitted
in conjunction with this application.

o D AN APE
Applicant )
e . - A L K
Applicant T '
:/Earfsgzz
Property Owaer (mandatory)
& "OFFICIAL SE AL“
Signed and subscribed before me on : MARTHA KOEGHIG

Notary Public, State of Minois g
My Commissvon Expmas 07113/17 ;-’.

this 227 dayot_ L L2085

‘This application was filed with the Commupity Development Deparument on

Village Staff

OfBice Use gnly
Staff Checklist:

Completed application (all fields have entries)
Required Fee has been paid
{2 Date of Publishing the Public Hearing Notice in the Newspaper
{7 gzz Date that Notice of Hearing was Posted on Property
Site Plans are attached
Ten (10) copies are attached

L-___—*

Revised 9/5/13 7



12/8/2014 Round Lake, IL Code of Ordinances [codes] - Chapter 17.100 - SPECIAL USES | Municode Library
17.100.060 - Finding of fact and recommendations of plan commission.

The plan commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing
plans and specifications for the proposed special uses, which shall remain a part of the permanent
record of the plan commission. The plan commission shall submit same together with its
recommendations to the villaﬁe board for final action. No special use shall be recommended by the
plan commission, unless such commission shall find:

A. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental
to, or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare;

B. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other progerty in the
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair
property values within the neighborhood;

That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderiy
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district;

D. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not
be so at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the
structural already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate
neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a substantial
depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood;

E. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are
being provided;

F. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets;

G. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the
district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified
by the village board pursuant to the recommendations of the plan commission.

(Zoning ord. § 4.10-6)

17.100.070 - Terms of relief—Conditions and guarantees.

Prior to the granting of any special use, the plan commission shall in a conclusion or paragraph,
separate from the findings of fact, stipulate the terms of relief recommended.

The pfan commission may also stipulate any cenditions and restrictions, upon the establishment,
location, consiruction, maintenance and operation of the use as is deemed necessary for the
protection of the public interest and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements
specified inSection 17.100.060. In all cases in which special uses are recommended, the plan
commission mar require such evidence and guarantees as it may deem necessary as proof that the
conditions stipulated in connection herewith are being and will be complied with.

{Zoning ord. § 4.10-7)

17.100.080 - Action by village board of trustees.

A. The village board shall not act upon a proposed special use permitted under this title until it shall
have nlaceived a written report and recommendation from the plan commission on the proposed
special use.

B. The village board may grant or deny, by ordinance or resolution, any application for special use,
and may establish such conditions and restrictions upon the establishment, location,
construction, maintenance and operation of the special use, as is deemed necessary for the
protection of the public interest and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements
specified in_Section 17.100.060

C. In all cases where the village board permits the establishment of a special use, the terms of the
relief granted shall be specifically set forth in the ordinance or resolution in a conclusion.

{Zoning ord. § 4.10-8)

datartesct/himl;charset=uif-8,%3C1%20class %3D % 22chunks %22%20style%3D % 22box-sizing%3A%20border- box % 38%20m argin% 3A%200px %200 %201... 1M



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

TITLE: AMENDING LIQUOR LiCENSE CODE Agenda Item No. 14.1

Executive Summary:

Due to the Plan Commission - Zoning Board of Appeals recommendation to the Village Board that the
application Petition for a Special Use Permit for Island Café and for Banquet Route 60, for the sale of
alcoholic beverages be approved (see 12.1 &12.2) the number of licenses in the Village Code needs to
change. Staff also performed a detail review of actual licenses to the authorized number in the code and
noted that there were a few inconsistencies. Attached is an Ordinance to change number of licenses.

Recommended Action:

Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Liquor License Chapter of the Round Lake Village Code (Number of
licenses)

Committee; - Meeting Date: 2/2/15
Lead Department: Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator
Item Budgeted: EIYes ElND ENIA Account(s) Budget Expenditure
XX-XX-XX-XXXXX -
. Item Requested
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed Y-T-D Actual

explanation of what account(s) the overage will
be charged to will be provided in the Executive  |Amount Encumbered
Summary or attached detail.

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Request is over/under budget:
Under|-
Over|-

U:\HR And Finance\Agenda Items\Village Board\(2.02.15 Liquor License Changes.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LIQUOR LICENSE
CHAPTER OF THE ROUND LAKE VILLAGE CODE
(Number of Licenses)

WHEREAS, to accurately reflect the number of businesses currently operating within the
Village of Round Lake that are licensed to sell alcohol, the Village President and Board of
Trustees desire to update the number of liquor licenses authorized under the classes provided for
in the Round Lake Village Code;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, ILLINOIS:

SECTION ONE: That Title 5, Business Licenses and Regulations, Chapter 5.32.080, Number
of Licenses, as amended, is further amended, with deletions shown in strike through text and
additions shown in bold, underlined text, so that Chapter 5.32.080 shall be read as follows:

5.32.080 Number of lcenses.

Not more than the following number of authorized licenses for each class may be issued.

Class Description Authorized
' Number

A Tavern with full liquor packaged goods 65
B Packaged goods — Full liquor 78
B-1 Packaged goods — Beer and wine 2
B-2 Restaurant — Beer and wine 02
B-3 Restaurant — Full liquor 34
C Non-profit clubs . 1

| c1 Catering 0
D Special event/temporary Unlimited
D-1 Special village sponsored event Unlimited
F 26 intermittent date license 10
Late-hour Three a.m. license on Saturdays and Sundays 64




SECTION TWO: That the Village Clerk is directed hereby to publish this Ordinance in
pamphlet form, pursuant to the Statutes of the State of Illinois.

SECTION THREE: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

APPROVED:

Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk

PASSED:
APPROVED:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM: , 2015
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